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October 26, 2017

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of
Washington:

State Law requires that every general-purpose local government publish within six months of
the close of each fiscal year a complete set of audited financial statements. This report is
published to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements.

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A., have issued an unmodified (“*clean'") opinion on the
City of Washington's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017. The independent
auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. The MD&A compliments this letter of transmittal and should be read in
conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

The City of Washington, incorporated in 1782, is located in the eastern part of North Carolina
on the northern banks of the Pamlico River. It has been the county seat of Beaufort County
since 1785. It has a land area of 7.663 square miles and a population of 9,639. The City is
empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its
boundaries. It is also empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation,
which it has done from time to time.

The City has operated under the Council-Manager form of government since May 7, 1952. The
City Council is comprised of five (5) council members, elected at large, non-partisan, for

a two-year term and a Mayor without voting powers other than to break a tie vote elected for a
two-year term. Council members hold policy making and legislative authority. They are
responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the annual budget,



appointing Board members, Commission members, City Manager, City Clerk and City Attorney.
The City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is responsible, among other things, for
implementing and enforcing policies and ordinances of the City of Washington, for managing
daily operations of the government, for appointing all employees including department directors,
and for budget development.

The City of Washington provides a full range of services for its citizens. These services
include: planning and zoning; the construction and maintenance of streets, curbs, gutters and
sidewalks; parks and recreational activities; library services; police; emergency management
services; and fire protection. In addition to these general government activities, the City also
provides and maintains airport operations, cemeteries, water, sewer, stormwater, solid waste
and recycling, and electrical utilities for its citizens and the surrounding areas of Beaufort,
Martin, and Pitt counties. These utilities are included in the reporting entity. This report
includes all of the City's activities in delivering and administering these services.

The City Council is required to adopt an annual budget by no later than the close of the prior
fiscal year. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Washington's financial
planning and control. The annual budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and
department (e.g., police). Department heads may request of the Finance Director or City
Manager the transfer of resources within a department (intradepartmental transfers). Transfers
between departments (interdepartmental transfers) may be approved by the City Manager;
however, he must report the approved transfers to the City Council at their next regular
meeting.

Local Economy

The City of Washington continues to serve as the economic, service, and retail center for
Beaufort County. The economy is based on medical services, small-scale diverse
manufacturing, retail sales, agriculture, service, and eco-tourism. The County has an employed
labor force of 20,196, leaving around 950 unemployed in the county. The unemployment rate
for Beaufort County, which the City of Washington is a part of, is currently 4.7%, which is a
decrease of 1% from a rate of 5.7%, a year ago. This is equivalent to the State of North
Carolina's average unemployment rate of 4.7% and the national average of 4.5%. During the
past fiscal year, Washington's local economy continued to feel the effects of a modest and steady
recovery, similar to other rural cities and towns in the country. This is evidenced by a 5.0%
increase of revenues in the areas of property, sales, and occupancy taxes. The current year reflects
a $.02 increase in the property tax rate to provide funding for the police station capital project
fund and represents one half of the year to year revenue increase. Revenues were conservatively
budgeted for fiscal year 2017-2018 and management will be keeping a close eye on actual receipts
to ensure that budget shortfalls do not occur in the next fiscal year.

Several new businesses began operation in the City within the past year in addition to several
expansions of existing businesses. Fairfield Inn, Cookout, Edward Jones- Jordan Cantrell, Carry
Out by Chrislyn, Golden Ticket Cinemas, Giddy-Up Coffee House, First Bank, First South Bank,
Food Lion, Wendy’s, Verizon, Wal-Mart, It’s Fashion, and Wimco are examples. New business
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startups in the Downtown Business District include Ribeyes Steakhouse, United Country/Respess
Real Estate, Miss Bea Charters, Cotton Sails Design & Events, The Wine Crate, and Moss
Landing Marina.

The Washington Tourism Development Authority worked diligently to follow its mission to
enhance the economy of Washington and Beaufort County through the promotion of the area as a
destination for leisure and business travel. French West Vaughn was engaged to lead its creative
and public relations efforts. The WTDA continued to manage the Washington Civic Center as the
City’s primary venue for meetings, weddings, and other large events. More than 100 events were
held at the Civic Center during the year. The most recent economic impact statistics prepared by
the North Carolina Department of Commerce show the economic impact of tourism in Beaufort
County to be up. Direct visitor spending was estimated at $81 million for Beaufort County, an
increase of 4.6%.

Long-Term Financial Planning

During fiscal year 2016-2017 the City utilized operating cash for capital purchases instead of
installment financing.

During fiscal year 2017-2018 the City has budgeted $170,000 of installment financing for the
purchase of a sewer vacuum truck. City Council will determine the use of installment financing
or operating cash prior to the purchase.

The City"s application to the Clean Water State Revolving Fund for a $2,000,000 loan for the
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 2015 project was approved as eligible to receive a low
interest/principal forgiveness loan to reduce inflow and infiltration in older sections of the
collection system. The project has been approved for $1,696,402, work began in fiscal year
2016-2017 and is anticipated to be complete in fiscal year 2017-2018. $500,000 of the loan is
principal forgiveness and the interest rate on the balance is 0%.

Major Initiatives

The Beaufort County Economic Development Department had an active year resulting in the
following projects with positive impact on the local economy:

Projects Completed:

- Renovation of Apollo Restaurant to Ribeyes of Washington $25,000 Building Renovation
Grant (10 jobs, $300,000 investment)

- Washington Hotel Project $100,000 Rural Infrastructure Grant (20 jobs, $6.8 million
investment)

Projects Underway:

- idX Woodworking Training Center $500,000 Rural Building Reuse Grant (50 jobs, $1
million investment)
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- Oakridge Industries Expansion $320,000 Rural Building Reuse Grant (32 jobs, $1.4 million
investment)

- Washington Beaufort County Industrial Park 35KVA electric line extension $100,000 Rural
Infrastructure Grant

- Beaufort County Committee of 100°s $1.2 million 24,200 sq. ft. building

Downtown waterfront improvements and upgrades continue to be a major City initiative.

The City was awarded and completed a $94,340 Downtown Revitalization grant project from the
Rural Grant Programs of the Department of Commerce for walkway, fagcade and art improvements
in the downtown district.

The City assisted a local developer building a $6.8 million flagship hotel through a $100,000 NC
Rural Economic Development publicly owned infrastructure improvement grant. The hotel opened
in June of 2017.

Phase 1 of a way finding signage project for the City was completed during the year at a cost
of $160,000.

A downtown restaurant was renovated and opened by Ribeyes of Washington through the City’s
assistance and a $25,000 Building Renovation Grant Program of the Department of Commerce.

The City is replacing its financial and utility billing software with implementation planned for
fiscal year 2018.

The City is continuing an aggressive load management switch installation program to reduce
residential energy costs. 479 switches were installed this fiscal year. 4,544 switches have been
installed since October 2010 resulting in residential customers saving approximately $212,848
per year on their electric bills.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Washington for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. This was the twenty first
consecutive year (fiscal years ended 1996-2016) that the City has received this prestigious
national award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City had to publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR that satisfied both Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid
for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues to meet the
Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA
to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated
service of the entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to express our appreciation to
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all members of the department who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. We
would also like to thank our independent auditors, Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A., for
their extensive assistance provided. Credit must also be given to the Mayor and the City Council
for their support for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the
City's finances.

Respecttully Submitted,

g GG U oo, LYo

Bobby E. Roberson
City Manager

Matthew J. Rauschenbach
Chief Financial Officer
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MARTIN ¢ STARNES
& ASSOCIATES, CPAs, P.A.

“A Professional Association of Certified Public Accountants and Management Consultants”

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Washington
Washington, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Washington, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the City of Washington Tourism Development Authority. Those
statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion insofar
as it related to the amounts included for the City of Washington Tourism Development Authority, is
based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the City of
Washington Tourism Development Authority were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation


http://www.martinstarnes.com/

and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Washington, North Carolina, as of June 30, 2017,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, for fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 the City adopted
new accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 73, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets that are not within the Scope of GASB 68 and
Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, the Other Post-Employment Benefits Schedules of Funding Progress and
Employer Contributions, the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System’s Schedules of the
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Contributions, and Law Enforcement
Officers’ Special Separation Allowance Schedules of the Changes in Total Pension Liability and Total
Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consist of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Washington's basic financial statements. The introductory information, combining
and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and statistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, and other schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures
performed as described above, and the report of other auditors, the combining and individual fund
financial statements, budgetary schedules, and other schedules, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory information and the statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 26,
2017 on our consideration of the City of Washington’s internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City of Washington’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the City of Washington’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Marters Alirmes € (Losocistio), CRAs, P 4.
Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.

Hickory, North Carolina
October 26, 2017



This page left blank intentionally.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Washington, we offer readers of the City of Washington’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Washington for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here, in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the City’s financial statements, which
follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of the City of Washington exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $116,980,438 (net position). Of this amount,
$27,217,785 (unrestricted) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

e The government’s total net position increased by $5,859,322, an increase of 5.24%. Of this amount,
governmental net position increased by $1,259,699, while business-type net position grew by
$4,599,623.

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Washington’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $10,549,968, an increase of $1,146,917. Approximately 26.87%
of this total amount, or $2,834,520, is non-spendable or restricted.

o At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $6,700,195,
or 58.35%, of total General Fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

e The City of Washington’s total debt decreased by $566,628, or 8.4%, during the current fiscal year.

e The City currently has an A1 with no outlook rating from Moody’s Investor Services and A+ with a
stable outlook rating by Standard & Poor's Corporation.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Washington’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic
financial statements present two different views of the City through the use of government-wide
statements and fund financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information, in
addition to the basic financial statements that will enhance the reader’s understanding the financial
condition of the City of Washington.



Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management’s Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government-Wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
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Summary > Detail

Basic Financial Statements. The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the
government-wide financial statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the
City’s financial status.

The next statements are fund financial statements. These statements focus on the activities of the
individual parts of the City’s government. These statements provide more detail than the government-
wide statements. There are three parts to the fund financial statements: 1) the governmental fund
statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements
explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental
information is provided to show details about the City’s individual funds. Budgetary information
required by the North Carolina General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Washington’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about
the City’s financial status as a whole.



The two government-wide statements report the City’s net position and how it has changed. Net position
is the difference between the City’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the City’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2)
business-type activities; and 3) component units, including general government, public safety,
transportation, economic and physical development, environmental protection, cultural and recreational,
special revenues, and capital projects. Property taxes and State and federal grant funds finance most of
these activities. The business-type activities of the City of Washington include water, sewer, electric,
storm water utilities, solid waste, airport operations, and cemetery operations. The final category is the
component unit. The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Washington
itself (known as the primary government), but also a legally separate entity, the Washington Tourism
Development Authority for which the City is financially accountable. The Washington Tourism
Development Authority is considered a component unit of the City because the City exercises control
over the Board by appointing its members and because the Board is required to expend the local
occupancy taxes promoting travel and tourism for the City. Financial information for this component unit
is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 16-18 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide a more detail look at the City’s most
significant activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Washington, like
other State and local governments in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the North Carolina
General Statutes or the City’s budget ordinance. All of the funds of the City of Washington can be
divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City’s basic
services are accounted for in governmental funds. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year for
spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting that provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund
financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are
more or less financial resources available to finance the City’s programs. The relationship between
government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is part of the fund financial statements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.



The City of Washington maintains nineteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, and the other governmental funds.
Data from the other eighteen governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Washington adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund, as required by the
North Carolina General Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from
the citizens of the City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the Board about which services
to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to
finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund
demonstrates how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City
succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison
statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and
classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget
as adopted by the City Council; 2) the final budget as amended by the City Council; 3) the actual
resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balance in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or
variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. To account for the difference
between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the
difference in the reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-23 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Washington has two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City of Washington uses enterprise funds to account for its water utilities,
sewer utilities, storm water utilities, electric utilities, airport operations, solid waste utilities, and cemetery
operations. Proprietary funds statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the water, sewer, storm water, and electric utilities, which are considered to be major
funds of the City of Washington. The airport operations, solid waste utility, and cemetery operations are
considered to be nonmajor proprietary funds. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the functions of the City of Washington operations. The
City uses internal service funds to account for three activities — its workers' compensation reserve, vehicle
replacement, and facility maintenance. These operations benefit both governmental and proprietary funds
and have been included within the governmental activities in the government-wide statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-26 this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 27-72 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Washington’s progress
in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary
information can be found on pages 73-77 of this report.



The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and
nonmajor proprietary funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information
on pensions. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 78-155 of
this report.

Interdependence with Other Entities: The City depends on financial resources flowing from, or
associated with, both the federal government and the State of North Carolina. Because of this
dependency, the City is subject to changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on
modifications to federal and State laws and federal and State appropriations. It is also subject to changes
in investment earnings and asset values associated with U.S. Treasury Securities because of actions by
foreign government and other holders of publicly held U.S. Treasury Securities.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Figure 2

City of Washington’s Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Assets:
Current and other assets $ 13,791,194 $12,393,339 §$ 24,652,285 $21,717,777 $ 38,443,479 $ 34,111,116
Capital assets, net 19,864,739 20,311,778 73,518,256 72,327,050 93,382,995 92,638,828
Total assets 33,655,933 32,705,117 98,170,541 94,044,827 131,826,474 126,749,944
Deferred Outflows

of Resources 1,966,837 369,839 1,191,451 226,675 3,158,288 596,514
Liabilities and Deferred

Inflows of Resources:
Long-term liabilities 7,175,777 4,932,019 6,980,113 6,253,886 14,155,890 11,185,905
Other liabilities 518,153 794,794 2,855,792 3,132,767 3,373,945 3,927,561
Total liabilities 7,693,930 5,726,813 9,835,905 9,386,653 17,529,835 15,113,466
Deferred Inflows of Resources 224,980 339,195 249,509 207,894 474,489 547,089
Net Position:
Net investment

in capital assets 18,242,564 18,512,443 68,989,708 67,569,334 87,232,272 86,081,777
Restricted 2,571,352 2,798,041 - - 2,571,352 2,798,041
Unrestricted 6,889,944 5,698,464 20,286,870 17,107,621 27,176,814 22,806,085
Total net position $ 27,703,860 $27,008,948 $ 89,276,578 $84,676,955 $116,980,438 $ 111,685,903




As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial
condition. The assets and deferred outflows of the City of Washington exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows by $116,980,438 as of June 30, 2017. This is an increase in the City’s net position of $5,859,322
for the fiscal year. By far, the largest portion (74.57%) reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, systems, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still
outstanding. The City of Washington uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Washington’s net
investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other resources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City of Washington’s net position, $2,571,352, represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net
position $27,176,814 may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The governments net capital assets increased by $744,167 during the fiscal year. This increase of .8% is
primarily attributable to the additional capital investment in the City’s utility systems, streets, parks,
drainage system, and airport facility.



Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for service

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes

Unrestricted intergovernmental

Other

Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Environmental protection
Cultural and recreation
Economic and

physical development
Interest on long-term debt
Water
Sewer
Electric
Storm water
Airport
Solid waste
Cemetery

Total expenses

Change in net position
before transfers

Transfers

Change in net position

Net position, July 1

Restatement

Beginning of year - July 1, as restated

Net position, June 30

Figure 3

City of Washington’s Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities

Total

2017 2016 2017 2016

2017 2016

$ 1,387,606 $ 1,344,198 $43,454,773 $42,708,740

$ 44,842,379 $ 44,052,938

509,505 424,848 165,557 ; 675,062 424,848
326,812 873,879 308,918 1,882,094 635,730 2,755,973
4,469,620  4,345971 - - 4,469,620 4,345,971
2,850,545 2,686,421 - - 2,850,545 2,686,421
2,043,145 2,059,167 - - 2,043,145 2,059,167
61,585 56,520 170,546 137,399 232,131 193,919
11,648,818 11,791,004 44,099,794 44,728,233 55,748,612 56,519,237
1,434,072 1,494,759 - - 1,434,072 1,494,759
6,198,994 6,000,378 ; ; 6,198,994 6,000,378
1,223,260 954,178 - - 1,223,260 954,178
386,877 656,104 . - 386,877 656,104
2,093,693 2,695,627 - - 2,093,693 2,695,627
338,539 (158,340) - - 338,539 (158,340)
44,582 48,440 - - 44,582 48,440

- - 3,189,163 3,219,750 3,189,163 3,219,750

- - 3,101,293 3,132,989 3,101,293 3,132,989

- - 29,510,316 27,838,189 29,510,316 27,838,189

- - 353,954 383,638 353,954 383,638

. ; 451,717 396,621 451,717 396,621

- - 1,283,818 1,236,236 1,283,818 1,236,236

- - 279,012 315,980 279,012 315,980
11,720,017 11,691,146  38,169273 36,523,403 49,889,290 48,214,549
(71,199) 99,858 5,930,521 8,204,830 5,859,322 8,304,688
1,330,898 1,020291  (1,330,898)  (1,020,291) - -
1,259,699 1,120,149 4,599,623 7,184,539 5,859,322 8,304,688
27,008,948 25,888,799 84,676,955 77,492,416 111,685,903 103,381,215
(564,787) - - - (564,787) -
26,444,161 25,888,799 84,676,955 77,492,416 111,121,116 103,381,215

$ 27,703,860 $27,008,948 $89,276,578 $84,676,955

$ 116,980,438 $111,685,903
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Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $1,259,699, or
4.66%. This increase is due to revenue exceeding plan, expenditures being less than plan, and an increase
in transfers.

Business-Type Activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Washington’s net position by
$4,599,623, or 5.43%. Revenues exceeded expenses by $5,621,603 before transfers and capital
contributions. The net transfers of the business-type activities totaled $1,330,898 for the year. Of this
amount, $908,723 is the annual dividend payment from the electric utility customers to the taxpayers of
the City of Washington.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Washington uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Washington’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful
in assessing the City of Washington’s financing requirements.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Washington. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the City’s fund balance available in the General Fund totaled to $6,873,791, while total fund balance
increased to $8,401,662. The governing body of the City of Washington has determined that the City
should maintain an available fund balance equal to 2 months operating expenses plus an additional
$2,000,000 in case of natural disaster recovery. The City currently has an available fund balance of
57.29% of General Fund expenditures and transfers out, while total fund balance represents 70.03% of the
same amount.

As of the end of the fiscal year, the City of Washington’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $10,549,968, an increase of $1,146,917, in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 63.51% of this total amount, or $6,700,107, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is
available for spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is either classified
as restricted (by State statute or granting agencies), non-spendable such as notes receivables, the
Cemetery and Library Non-Expendable Trust Fund balances, prepaid expenses and inventory, committed
for items such as economic development capital grants, recreation capital grants and a police station, or
assigned for downtown fagade improvements.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights. During the fiscal year, the City revised the budget on several
occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to
adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is
available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as federal
and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.
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Differences between the original budgeted revenues and the final amended budgeted revenues for the
General Fund amounted to a $286,347 increase and are summarized as follows:

e $250,386 increase in restricted intergovernmental
e $3,200 increase in sales and services
e $32,761 increase in miscellaneous

The difference between the original budgeted expenditures and the final amended appropriations for the
General Fund amounted to a $540,636 increase and are summarized as follows:

$250,072 in increases allocated to general government
$23,829 in increases allocated to public safety

$133,809 in increases allocated to transportation

$6,800 in decreases allocated to environmental protection
$139,726 in increases allocated to cultural and recreational

Transfers and the appropriation of fund balance rebalanced the General Fund budget as follows:

e $37,465 increase in transfer to other funds of which $37,465 was transferred to Capital Project Funds.
$291,754 increase in appropriated fund balance to cover the following appropriations during the fiscal
year: $59,381 to rebuild the dehumidification unit at the aquatic center and $202,858 for purchase
orders and projects from prior year.

During the year, actual revenues came in 2.7%, or $305,279, higher than budgetary estimates in the
General Fund while expenditures were 9.5%, or $1,209,619, less than budgetary appropriations.
Originally, $383,995 in fund balance was anticipated to be needed; however, none was actually used. As
with most years, several projects had not been completed at the end of the fiscal year and funding for
those projects will need to be appropriated for spending in the FY 17/18 budget since the government has
issued purchase orders and committed itself to completing the projects.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Washington’s proprietary funds statements provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Five enterprise funds saw increases in their net position at the close of the fiscal year on the full accrual
basis of accounting, Sewer Fund, Electric Fund, Storm Water Fund, Solid Waste Fund, and the Cemetery
Fund. The Water Fund and the Washington-Warren Airport Fund had a negative change in net position
on the full accrual basis of accounting. All seven enterprise funds experienced gains on the budgetary
basis of accounting, Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Electric Fund, Storm Water Fund, Washington-Warren
Airport Fund, Solid Waste Fund, and the Cemetery Fund.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City of Washington’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of June 30, 2017 amounted to $93,382,995 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, distribution systems, drainage systems, substations,
infrastructure, improvements, office furniture and machines, machinery and equipment, vehicles, and
construction in progress. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal
year was $744,167 or (.8%) overall. This is represented by a 2.2% decrease for governmental activities
and a 1.65% increase for business-type activities.

Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following:

e The airport completed the runway rehabilitation project totaling $439,350 and began a new project for
runway design with expenses of $7,257 for the fiscal year.

e Several electric system improvements such as 2™ & 5™ streets line rebuild and the Highway 32
Project were completed this year with those projects totaling $1,466,760. Two other projects that are
currently in progress for Grimesland and Page Road are ongoing.

e In the Water and Sewer divisions the Hotel Project continues for both divisions. The two EDA grant
projects completed this year totaling $2,401,180 for both divisions. The Water division has a new
project, Spring Road Water System Improvements, with those expenses coming to $15,470 at year
end and continuing into next year. The Sewer division’s Sewer Rehabilitation Project will continue
through this year with expenses currently totaling $652,059. The Sewer division was also awarded a
Wastewater Asset Inventory Grant in the amount of $150,000 with the City contributing $7,500.

Land

Buildings

Infrastructure

Plants, substations, lines
drainage, and runways

General and mobile
equipment

Furniture and office
equipment

Construction in progress

Capital assets, net

Figure 4

City of Washington’s Capital Assets

(net of accumulated depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
5,232,820 § 5,232,820 § 1,649,782 $ 1,649,782 § 6,882,602 § 6,882,602
5,198,299 5,751,556 5,764,131 5,215,398 10,962,430 10,966,954
6,417,875 6,244,011 - - 6,417,875 6,244,011
- - 56,911,013 52,387,392 56,911,013 52,387,392
2,375,852 1,035,518 4,969,748 4,170,359 2,523,439 5,205,877
273,896 1,577,603 147,587 27,970 421,483 1,605,573
365,997 470,270 4,075,995 8,876,149 4,441,992 9,346,419
19,864,739 $ 20,311,778 $73,518,256 $72,327,050 $93,382,995 $92,638,828

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 5 on pages 42-47 of this report.
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Long-Term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Washington had total debt
outstanding of $6,150,723.
Figure 5
City of Washington’s Outstanding Debt

General Obligation, Installment Notes, RZEDB, and Revolving Loan Fund

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Installment notes $ 1,599,507 § 1,774,000 $ 65,037 § 161,428 § 1664544 § 1,935428
Recovery Zone EDB 22,668 25,335 2,833,332 3,166,665 2,856,000 3,192,000
Revolving Loan Fund - - 1,630,179 1,589,923 1,630,179 1,589,923
Total $ 1,622,175 § 1,799,335 § 4,528,548 $§ 4918016 § 6,150,723 § 6,717,351

The City’s total debt decreased by $566,628, or 8.4%, during the current fiscal year. The City was
approved for a loan from the Clean Water State Revolving Loan Fund and will allow the City to make
improvements to older sections of its collection system, improving inflow and filtration.

The City currently has an A1 with no outlook rating from Moody’s Investor Services and A+ with a
stable outlook rating by Standard & Poor's Corporation.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 8% of its
total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the City of Washington is $69,140,308. The
City’s legal debt margin is $62,989,585.

Additional information on the City of Washington’s long-term debt can be found in note 11 on pages 62-
69 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Due to current economic factors and conservative budgeting measures, many General Fund revenues such
as sales tax, Powell Bill funds, building permits, and other sales and service revenues are expected to
remain relatively flat for FY 17/18 when compared to the current year. The original General Fund budget
for FY 17/18 totals $15,230,876, an increase of $25,869 or 0.2% when compared to the FY 16/17 original
budget of $15,205,007. Estimated revenues were not sufficient to cover budgeted expenditures, requiring
an appropriation of fund balance in the amount of $167,954 to balance the General Fund.

The City completed an analysis that calculated the true cost of certain governmental services and
determined the amounts being covered by user fees and the costs being subsidized by City taxpayers. As
part of the analysis, the City attempted to identify the different groups utilizing facilities and services in
an effort to receive additional outside funding from the County for benefits received by County residents
using City assets and services. Requests for county funding of these services were made and resulted in
funding of $20,000 for Senior programs and $20,000 for Parks & Recreation.

There is no contingency currently budgeted in FY 17/18, but significant fund balance is available for
emergency items that may arise during the year.
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Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

The following factors were also considered when preparing the City of Washington’s budget for the 16/17
fiscal year:

The unemployment rate for Beaufort County, of which the City of Washington is a part, is currently
4.7%, a 1% decrease from a rate of 5.7% in 2016. This compares favorably to the State’s average
unemployment rate of 4.7% and the national average rate of 4.5%.

The median household income for the City of Washington is $39,269, or 17.9%, below North Carolina’s
household income average of $47,830.

18.4% of Beaufort County residents live below the poverty level.

Ad valorem tax collections are expected to remain above 97%.

Retail sales are expected to remain relatively flat in fiscal year 17/18 when compared to 16/17.

The transfer of the dividend payment to the General Fund from the Electric Fund is likely to continue to
increase over the coming years.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Washington’s finances for
all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information

provided in this report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to the Office
of the Chief Financial Officer, P.O. Box 1988, Washington, North Carolina 27889.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net

Notes receivable, current
Inventories

Restricted cash and investments
Security deposits

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net
Total capital assets

Notes receivable, noncurrent
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year
Pension deferrals

Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Unearned revenues:

Advances from grantors

Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits

Current portion of long-term liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:

Due in more than one year

Net pension liability (LGERS)
Total pension liability (LEOSSA)
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Unavailable revenues - unexpended grant proceeds
Pension deferrals

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Stabilization for State statute
Permanently restricted for perpetual maintenance
General government

Public safety

Cultural and recreation

Economic and physical development
Tourism promotion

Unrestricted

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Exhibit A

Component
Primary Government Unit
Tourism
Governmental Business-Type Development
Activities Activities Total Authority

$ 11,811,620 16,566,489 $ 28,378,109 $ 257,525
121,136 - 121,136 -
1,590,225 6,272,462 7,862,687 29,971
3,385 81,088 84,473 -
71,783 1,011,325 1,083,108 -
5,045 720,921 725,966 -
_ - - 75
13,603,194 24,652,285 38,255,479 287,571
5,598,817 7,413,912 13,012,729 -
14,265,922 66,104,344 80,370,266 -
19,864,739 73,518,256 93,382,995 -
188,000 - 188,000 -
20,052,739 73,518,256 93,570,995 -
33,655,933 98,170,541 131,826,474 287,571
509,412 298,190 807,602 -
1,457,425 893,261 2,350,686 -
1,966,837 1,191,451 3,158,288 -
511,608 2,261,959 2,773,567 56,696
1,500 - 1,500 -
5,045 593,833 598,878 -
640,880 928,888 1,569,768 -
1,159,033 3,784,680 4,943,713 56,696
2,889,165 4,655,841 7,545,006 -
2,276,680 1,395,384 3,672,064 -
1,369,052 - 1,369,052 -
6,534,897 6,051,225 12,586,122 -
7,693,930 9,835,905 17,529,835 56,696
- 127,088 127,088 -
224,980 122,421 347,401 -
224,980 249,509 474,489 -
18,242,564 68,989,708 87,232,272 -
1,746,153 - 1,746,153 30,046
549,853 - 549,853 -
74,481 - 74,481 -
52,548 - 52,548 -
44,046 - 44,046 -
104,271 - 104,271 -
- - - 200,829
6,889,944 20,286,870 27,176,814 -
$ 27,703,860 89,276,578 § 116,980,438 § 230,875
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Exhibit B

Page 1 of 2
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
Program Revenues
Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and
Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs:
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 1,434,072 § 287,558 $ 41,001 $ -
Public safety 6,198,994 753,024 431,175 -
Transportation 1,223,260 12,423 - 176,392
Environmental protection 386,877 - - -
Cultural and recreation 2,093,693 334,601 37,329 36,013
Economic and physical development 338,539 - - 114,407
Interest on long-term debt 44,582 - - -
Total governmental activities 11,720,017 1,387,606 509,505 326,812
Business-Type Activities:
Water 3,189,163 2,944,752 - 28,925
Sewer 3,101,293 3,360,261 33,439 264,165
Electric 29,510,316 34,646,920 55,296 -
Stormwater utility 353,954 684,400 - -
Warren Field Airport 451,717 259,989 5,612 10,604
Solid waste 1,283,818 1,352,010 71,210 5,224
Cemetery 279,012 206,441 - -
Total business-type activities 38,169,273 43,454,773 165,557 308,918
Total primary government $ 49,889,290 $ 44,842,379 $ 675,062 $ 635,730

Component Unit:
Tourism Development Authority $ 400,260 $ 96,338 § 44,787 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit B

Page 2 of 2
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
Tourism
Governmental Business-Type Development
Activities Activities Total Authority
Functions/Programs:
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ (1,105,513) $ - 8 (1,105,513) $ -
Public safety (5,014,795) - (5,014,795) -
Transportation (1,034,445) - (1,034,445) -
Environmental protection (386,877) - (386,877) -
Cultural and recreation (1,685,750) - (1,685,750) -
Economic and physical development (224,132) - (224,132) -
Interest on long-term debt (44,582) - (44,582) -
Total governmental activities (9,496,094) - (9,496,094) -
Business-Type Activities:
Water - (215,486) (215,486) -
Sewer - 556,572 556,572 -
Electric - 5,191,900 5,191,900 -
Stormwater utility - 330,446 330,446 -
Warren Field Airport - (175,512) (175,512) -
Solid waste - 144,626 144,626 -
Cemetery - (72,571) (72,571) -
Total business-type activities - 5,759,975 5,759,975 -
Total primary government (9,496,094) 5,759,975 (3,736,119) -
Component Unit:
Tourism Development Authority - - - (259,135)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Ad valorem taxes 4,469,620 - 4,469,620 -
Local option sales tax 2,475,562 - 2,475,562 -
Utility franchise tax 1,261,970 - 1,261,970 -
Local occupancy tax 277,992 - 277,992 269,652
Other taxes and licenses 878,166 - 878,166 -
Interest earnings 61,585 170,546 232,131 561
Miscellaneous - - - 1,154
Total general revenues 9,424,895 170,546 9,595,441 271,367
Transfers 1,330,898 (1,330,898) - -
Total general revenues and transfers 10,755,793 (1,160,352) 9,595,441 271,367
Change in net position 1,259,699 4,599,623 5,859,322 12,232
Net Position:
Beginning of year - July 1 27,008,948 84,676,955 111,685,903 218,643
Restatement (564,787) - (564,787) -
Beginning of year - July 1, as restated 26,444,161 84,676,955 111,121,116 218,643
End of year - June 30 $ 27,703,860 $ 89,276,578 § 116,980,438 § 230,875

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit C

CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of 2
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017
Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,359,414 $ 1,976,459 $ 9,335,873
Taxes receivable, net 121,136 - 121,136
Accounts receivable, net 1,579,835 7,176 1,587,011
Notes receivable, net - 191,385 191,385
Inventories 71,783 - 71,783
Restricted cash and investments 5,045 - 5,045
Total assets $ 9,137,213 § 2,175,020 $ 11,312,233
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,

and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 362,238 § 25214 $ 387,452
Advances from grantors - 1,500 1,500
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits 5,045 - 5,045
Total liabilities 367,283 26,714 393,997
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Taxes receivable 121,136 - 121,136
EMS receivable 220,759 - 220,759
Other accounts receivable 26,373 - 26,373
Total deferred inflows of resources 368,268 - 368,268
Fund Balances:
Non-spendable, not in spendable form:
Notes receivable - 191,385 191,385
Inventories 71,783 - 71,783
Perpetual maintenance - library care - 95,395 95,395
Perpetual maintenance - cemetery care - 454,458 454,458
Restricted:
Stabilization by State statute 1,456,088 290,065 1,746,153
Restricted, all other 171,075 104,271 275,346
Committed 2,521 987,901 990,422
Assigned - 24,919 24,919
Unassigned 6,700,195 (88) 6,700,107
Total fund balances 8,401,662 2,148,306 10,549,968
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,

and fund balances $ 9,137,213 § 2,175,020 $ 11,312,233

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Total fund balance, governmental funds.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, not reported in the funds.

Net pension liability

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred inflows of resources in the funds.

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the funds.

Total pension liability

Assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund used by management
to account for workers' compensation claims are included in governmental
activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Long-term liabilities and compensated absences are not due and payable in
the current year and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Pension related deferrals

Other long-term liabilities (accrued interest) are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities, per Exhibit A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit C
Page 2 of 2

Total

Governmental

Funds

10,549,968

18,553,551

(2,276,680)

368,268
1,966,837

(1,369,052)

3,666,042

(3,530,045)

(224,980)

(49)

27,703,860




Exhibit D
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes 4,526,986 $ - 3 4,526,986
Other taxes and licenses 2,850,545 - 2,850,545
Unrestricted intergovernmental 2,043,145 - 2,043,145
Restricted intergovernmental 721,910 114,787 836,697
Permits and fees 122,492 - 122,492
Sales and services 1,107,998 - 1,107,998
Investment earnings 41,418 10,556 51,974
Miscellaneous 197,392 - 197,392
Total revenues 11,611,886 125,343 11,737,229
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,836,094 96,105 1,932,199
Public safety 6,027,734 - 6,027,734
Transportation 959,602 - 959,602
Environmental protection 371,084 3,067 374,151
Cultural and recreation 2,066,701 937 2,067,638
Economic and physical development - 338,539 338,539
Debt service:
Principal retirement 177,160 - 177,160
Interest and fees 44,187 - 44,187
Total expenditures 11,482,562 438,648 11,921,210
Revenues over (under) expenditures 129,324 (313,305) (183,981)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds 1,517,411 496,289 2,013,700
Transfers to other funds (514,945) (167,857) (682,802)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,002,466 328,432 1,330,898
Net change in fund balances 1,131,790 15,127 1,146,917
Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1 7,269,872 2,133,179 9,403,051
End of year - June 30 8,401,662 $ 2,148,306 § 10,549,968

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Exhibit E
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit B)
are different due to the following items:
Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (Exhibit D) $ 1,146,917

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, capital outlay is not an expense, rather it is an increase to capital assets. 554,268

Transfers of capital assets from governmental to business type activities are not reflected as transfers
in the governmental fund financials as they are not outflows of current financial resources. (92,902)

Depreciation is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Activities. However, it is not
reported in the governmental funds. (902,369)

In the Statement of Activities, only the loss on the sale of capital assets is reported. However, in the
governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net

position differs from the change in fund balance by the net book value of the capital assets sold. (40,275)

Benefit payments and administration costs for LEOSSA are deferred outflows of resources

on the Statement of Net Position. 22,890
Property taxes and EMS fees (64,576)
Change in deferred outflow - pension 1,574,108
Change in deferred inflows - pension 139,455
Change in net pension liability (1,753,510)

Principal repayments are expenditures in the fund financial statements. However, it reduces
long-term debt in the Statement of Net Position. 177,160

Accrued interest expense reported in the Statement of Activities does not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, is not reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds. (395)

Internal Service Fund 626,789
Expenses related to the increase in vacation and sick pay and the increase in the net pension

obligation in the Statement of Activities that do not pay for current financial obligations are

not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. This adjustment is the amount of

net change in these balances in the current year. (127,861)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 1,259,699

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes

Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees

Sales and services

Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

General government
Public safety
Transportation
Environmental protection
Cultural and recreation
Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and fees

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Appropriated fund balance

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Exhibit F

Variance From

23

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Original Final Actual Over/Under
4,540,812 § 4,540,812 4,526,986 $ (13,826)
2,657,026 2,657,026 2,850,545 193,519
2,071,329 2,071,329 2,043,145 (28,184)
639,258 889,644 721,910 (167,734)
62,000 62,000 122,492 60,492
984,278 987,478 1,107,998 120,520
33,507 33,507 41,418 7,911
32,050 64,811 197,392 132,581
11,020,260 11,306,607 11,611,886 305,279
2,115,501 2,365,573 1,836,094 529,479
6,266,406 6,290,235 6,027,734 262,501
941,738 1,075,547 959,602 115,945
379,086 372,286 371,084 1,202
2,227,465 2,367,191 2,066,701 300,490
177,160 177,160 177,160 -
44,189 44,189 44,187 2
12,151,545 12,692,181 11,482,562 1,209,619
(1,131,285) (1,385,574) 129,324 1,514,898
1,516,524 1,516,524 1,517,411 887
(477,480) (514,945) (514,945) -
92,241 383,995 - (383,995)
1,131,285 1,385,574 1,002,466 (383,108)
- § - 1,131,790 $ 1,131,790

7,267,351

8,399,141



Exhibit G
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017
Governmental
Major Enterprise Funds Nonmajor Activities
Water Sewer Electric Stormwater  Enterprise Internal
Fund Fund Fund Utility Fund Funds Total Service Funds
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,539,851 § 2,647,231 $ 9,975,084 $§ 659,584 $§ 744,739 $16,566,489 $§ = 2,475,347
Accounts receivable, net 514,920 855,668 4,560,128 78,312 263,434 6,272,462 3,214
Notes receivable - 81,088 - - - 81,088 -
Due from other funds 631,841 - - - - 631,841 -
Inventories 92,624 55,567 826,428 - 36,706 1,011,325 -
Restricted cash and investments 111,366 63,544 546,011 - - 720,921 -
Total current assets 3,890,602 3,703,098 15,907,651 737,896 1,044,879 25,284,126 2,478,561
Non-current assets:
Non-depreciable capital assets 207,405 746,311 309,165 4,870,866 1,279,665 7,413,912 -
Capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 13,245,549 18,654,167 27,525,142 3,302,500 3,376,986 66,104,344 1,311,188
Total non-current assets 13,452,954 19,400,978 27,834,307 8,173,366 4,656,651 73,518,256 1,311,188
Total assets 17,343,556 23,104,076 43,741,958 8,911,262 5,701,530 98,802,382 3,789,749
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Contributions to pension plan in
current fiscal year 54,929 54,929 125,554 - 62,778 298,190 -
Pension deferrals 164,548 164,548 376,110 - 188,055 893,261 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 219,477 219,477 501,664 - 250,833 1,191,451 -
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 48,888 97,886 2,061,725 9,226 44,234 2,261,959 123,707
Due to other funds - 631,841 - - - 631,841 -
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits 47,822 - 546,011 - - 593,833 -
Current portion of installment notes - - 60,160 - 4,877 65,037 -
Current portion of revolving loans - 178,941 - - - 178,941 -
Current portion of Recovery Zone
Economic Development bonds - - - 333,333 - 333,333 -
Current portion of compensated absences 81,240 71,035 139,225 - 60,077 351,577 -
Total current liabilities 177,950 979,703 2,807,121 342,559 109,188 4,416,521 123,707
Non-current liabilities:
Net pension liability 257,045 257,045 587,530 - 293,764 1,395,384 -
Non-current portion of revolving loans - 1,451,238 - - - 1,451,238 -
Non-current portion of Recovery Zone
Economic Development Bonds - - - 2,499,999 - 2,499,999 -
Non-current portion of OPEB liability 115,265 141,903 299,037 - 148,399 704,604 -
Total non-current liabilities 372,310 1,850,186 886,567 2,499,999 442,163 6,051,225 -
Total liabilities 550,260 2,829,889 3,693,688 2,842,558 551,351 10,467,746 123,707
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues - unexpended grant proceeds 63,544 63,544 - - - 127,088 -
Pension deferrals 22,551 22,551 51,546 - 25,773 122,421 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 86,095 86,095 51,546 - 25,773 249,509 -
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 13,452,954 17,770,799 27,774,147 5,340,034 4,651,774 68,989,708 1,311,188
Unrestricted 3,473,724 2,636,770 12,724,241 728,670 723,465 20,286,870 2,354,854
Total net position $16,926,678 $20,407,569 $40,498,388 $ 6,068,704 $ 5,375,239 $89,276,578 $ 3,666,042

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit H

CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Governmental
Major Enterprise Funds Nonmajor Activities
Water Sewer Electric Stormwater  Enterprise Internal
Fund Fund Fund Utility Fund Funds Total Service Funds
Operating Revenues:
Charges for sales and services $ 2,774,485 $ 3,266,547 $33,728,708 $ 670,746 $ 1,805,707 $42,246,193 $ 802,081
Late penalty charges 22,490 25,886 292,368 5,246 - 345,990 -
Impact fees 25,033 35,069 - - - 60,102 -
Other 80,851 25,525 163,106 8,408 6,258 284,148 -
Total operating revenues 2,902,859 3,353,027 34,184,182 684,400 1,811,965 42,936,433 802,081
Operating Expenses:
Administration 849,631 804,135 2,313,333 69,468 - 4,036,567 -
Wastewater treatment and collection - 1,555,508 - - - 1,555,508 -
Water treatment and distribution 1,636,312 - - - - 1,636,312 -
Electrical operations - - 3,542,789 - - 3,542,789 -
Electric power purchases - - 22,475,608 - - 22,475,608 -
Warren Field Airport operations - - - - 347,917 347,917 -
Solid waste operations - - - - 1,196,007 1,196,007 -
Cemetery operations - - - - 268,175 268,175 -
Depreciation 701,228 694,886 1,147,753 133,403 177,992 2,855,262 132,995
Insurance claims - - - - - - 63,324
Total operating expenses 3,187,171 3,054,529 29,479,483 202,871 1,990,091 37,914,145 196,319
Operating income (loss) (284,312) 298,498 4,704,699 481,529 (178,126) 5,022,288 605,762
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Rents 35,723 - - - - 35,723 -
Recovery of doubtful accounts 728 1,296 - - - 2,024 -
Investment earnings 15,949 16,019 71,213 65,422 1,943 170,546 9,611
Sale of surplus and scrap 4,340 - 40,559 - - 44,899 -
Loss on disposal of capital asset (1,751) - (12,033) - - (13,784) -
Assessments - 5,897 - - - 5,897 -
Fines and meters - - 9,385 - - 9,385 -
Solid waste disposal tax - - - - 6,475 6,475 -
Interest expense - (28,187) (1,476) (151,083) (120) (180,866) -
Grants funds - - - - 5,612 5,612 -
FEMA assistance - 33,439 55,296 - 71,210 159,945 -
Hurricane Irene FEMA grant expenses (241) (18,577) (17,324) - (24,336) (60,478) -
Miscellaneous 1,102 41 412,794 - - 413,937 11,416
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 55,850 9,928 558,414 (85,661) 60,784 599,315 21,027
Income (loss) before capital
contributions and transfers (228,462) 308,426 5,263,113 395,868 (117,342) 5,621,603 626,789
Capital Contributions and Transfers:
Capital contributions 28,925 264,165 889 (889) 15,828 308,918 -
Transfers in 111,540 - - - 191,469 303,009 -
Transfers out (148,563) (228,672)  (1,256,672) - - (1,633,907) -
Total contributions and transfers (8,098) 35,493 (1,255,783) (889) 207,297 (1,021,980) -
Change in net position (236,560) 343,919 4,007,330 394,979 89,955 4,599,623 626,789
Net Position:
Beginning of year - July 1 17,163,238 20,063,650 36,491,058 5,673,725 5,285,284 84,676,955 3,039,253
End of year - June 30 $16,926,678 $20,407,569 $40,498,388 $ 6,068,704 $ 5,375,239 $89,276,578 $ 3,666,042

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received from customers

Cash paid to employees for services

Cash paid to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Repayments to/from other funds

Payments to/from other funds

Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by

non-capital financing activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Interest paid on notes, bonds, and loans

Acquisition of capital assets

Capital contributions

Principal collected on note receivable

Proceeds from issuance of debt

Principal payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided (used) by capital

and related financing activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Investment earnings

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents/investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents/Investments:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Non-operating (expenses)
Non-operating revenues
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources for pensions
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources for pensions
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Non-Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Capital contributions

Exhibit I

Governmental

Major Enterprise Funds Nonmajor Activities

Water Sewer Electric Stormwater  Enterprise Internal
Fund Fund Fund Utility Fund Funds Total Service Funds
$ 3,505,029 § 3,226,236 $34,365,821 $ 684,938 $ 1,841,991 § 43,624,015 § 811,637
(813,583) (747,313)  (1,872,780) - (666,171) (4,099,847) (68,180)
(1,684,684) (1,619,178) (26,663,707) (75,134) (1,174,453) (31,217,156) (28,990)
1,006,762 859,745 5,829,334 609,804 1,367 8,307,012 714,467
- 476,541 - - (16,934) 459,607 -
(476,541) - - - - (476,541) -
111,540 - - - 191,469 303,009 -
(148,563) (228,672)  (1,256,672) - - (1,633,907) -
(513,564) 247,869 (1,256,672) - 174,535 (1,347,832) -
- (28,187) (1,476) (151,083) (120) (180,866) -
(287,517) (918,307)  (2,628,414) (124,684) (8,428) (3,967,350) (167,234)
63,544 272,302 - - 7,257 343,103 -
- 24214 - - - 24214 -
- 208,759 - - - 208,759 -
- (168,503) (89,146) (333,333) (7,245) (598,227) -
(223,973) (609,722)  (2,719,036) (609,100) (8,536) (4,170,367) (167,234)
15,949 16,019 71,213 65,422 1,943 170,546 9,611
285,174 513,911 1,924,839 66,126 169,309 2,959,359 556,844
2,366,043 2,196,864 8,596,256 593,458 575,430 14,328,051 1,918,503
$ 2,651,217 $ 2,710,775 $10,521,095 $§ 659,584 $ 744,739 § 17,287,410 $ 2,475,347
$ (284312) § 298,498 §$ 4,704,699 $ 481,529 $ (178,126) $ 5,022,288 § 605,762
701,228 694,886 1,147,753 133,403 177,992 2,855,262 132,995
41,652 22,096 500,710 - (24,337) 540,121 -
- - - - 83,297 83,297 11,416
554,408 (167,464) (318,818) 538 (52,611) 16,053 (1,860)
9,296 7,451 2,201 - (17,430) 1,518 -
(177,721) (177,721) (406,222) - (203,112) (964,776) -
(15,745) (15,745) (35,988) - (17,995) (85,473) -
197,978 197,978 452,519 - 226,257 1,074,732 -
(30,247) (14,539) (229,489) (5,666) (2,648) (282,589) (33,846)
5,869 - (253) - - 5,616 -
3,134 2,147 (3,574) - 3,924 5,631 -
1,222 12,158 15,796 - 6,156 35,332 -
$ 1,006,762 $ 859,745 § 5,829,334 $§ 609,804 $ 1,367 $§ 8,307,012 § 714,467
$§ 28925 § 55407 $ (889) $ 889 $ 15,828 § 100,160 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City of Washington (the "City") and its discretely presented
component unit conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applied to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting
policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The City is a municipal corporation that operates under the mayor-council-manager form of
government. Services include economic and physical development, public safety (police
and fire), transportation, public works, cultural/recreation, environmental protection,
electric, water, sewer, stormwater, airport, general, and administrative services.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present
the City and its component unit, a legally separate entity for which the City is financially
accountable. The discretely presented component unit presented below is reported in a
separate column in the City’s financial statements in order to emphasize that it is legally
separate from the City.

City of Washington Tourism Development Authority

The City of Washington Tourism Development Authority (TDA) is governed by members
appointed by the City Council of the City. The City is financially accountable for the TDA,
as the TDA derives its revenues through a special room tax authorized and collected by the
City. Creation of the Tourism Development Authority is required by the State statute to use
the funds remitted to promote travel and tourism and shall use the remainder for tourism
related expenditures, SL 1991-158. The Tourism Development Authority, which has a June
30 year-end, is presented as if it were a governmental fund (discrete presentation).
Complete financial statements for the TDA may be obtained by writing Washington
Tourism Development Authority, Post Office Box 1765, Washington, North Carolina
27889.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities display information about the primary government (the City) and its component
unit. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities.
Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
City. Any residual balances outstanding between governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as internal balances.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed, in whole or in
part, by fees charged to external parties.
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The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the
City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the
Statement of Activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the
City’s funds. Separate statements for each fund category, governmental and proprietary,
are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and
enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions
or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. The General
Fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, sales taxes, federal and
State grants, and various other taxes and licenses. The primary expenditures are for public
safety, transportation, environmental protection, cultural and recreation, and general
governmental services. The City has legally adopted an Economic Development Capital
Reserve Fund. Under GASB 54 guidance, the Economic Development Capital Reserve
Fund is consolidated in the General Fund. The budgetary comparison for the Economic
Development Capital Reserve Fund has been included in the supplemental information.

The City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:
Special Revenue Funds. Special revenue funds account for specific revenue sources
(other than special assessments or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to

expenditures for specified purposes. The City maintains one special revenue fund: the
CDBG Program Income Fund.
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Capital Project Funds. The City maintains 13 capital project funds: the New Police
Station Capital Project Fund, the Public Safety Capital Reserve Fund, the Facade Program
Fund, the Pedestrian Project, the Way Finding Fund, the IDX Impressions Building Reuse
Grant Fund, the Washington Downtown Properties Fund, Downtown Revitalization, the
Trillium Health Resources Grant Fund, the Hotel Project — New Age Properties Fund,
Havens Garden Park Pier, Ribeye’s Building Reuse Grant, and the Financial and Utility
Software Project Fund.

Permanent Funds. The permanent funds account for the assets held by the City in a
trustee capacity. The interest earned on the investments is used to support the perpetual
care and upkeep for the City’s two permanent funds: the Library Trust Fund and the
Cemetery Trust Fund.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the City’s water system.
Sewer Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the City’s waste water system.
Electric Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the City’s electric system.

Stormwater Utility Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the City’s stormwater
system.

For financial reporting purposes, the Water Capital Reserve Fund, the EDA Water System
Improvements, and the Springs Road Mobile Home Park Water System Capital funds have
been consolidated with the Water Fund. The Sewer Capital Reserve Fund, the EDA Sewer
System Improvements Capital Project Fund, the Wastewater Asset Inventory grant, and the
CWSRF Sewer Grant Fund have been consolidated with the Sewer Fund. The Recovery
Zone Bond Stormwater Projects Fund has been consolidated with the Stormwater Utility
Fund.

The City reports the following nonmajor enterprise funds:

The City has three nonmajor enterprise funds: the Warren Field Airport Fund, the Solid
Waste Fund, and the Cemetery Fund. For financial reporting purposes, the Airport
Terminal Capital Project Fund, Airport Runway Capital Project Fund, and the Airport
Rehabilitation Capital Project Fund have been consolidated with the Warren Field Airport
Fund.

Internal Service Funds. The Internal Service funds are used to account for the financing
of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or
agencies of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Workers’ Compensation Reserve
Fund is used to finance and account for the City’s Workers’ Compensation Insurance
Program. The Vehicle Replacement Reserve Fund is used to finance and account for the
City’s General Fund vehicle replacements. The Facility Maintenance Reserve Fund is used
to finance and account for maintenance and rehabilitation of City facilities.
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In accordance with the North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are
maintained during the year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide
and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related
cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives)
value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property
taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property
taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for
sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal
and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general
long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end,
except for property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as a revenue because
the amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other
than motor vehicles are materially past due and are not considered to be an available
resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of September 1, 2013, State
law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered
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motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, the State of North
Carolina is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor
vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts. Property taxes are due
when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they
are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013 and
for limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are
offset by deferred inflows of resources.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities franchise tax,
collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the government are recognized as
revenue. Sales taxes are considered a shared revenue for the City of Washington because
the tax is levied by Beaufort County and then remitted to and distributed by the State.
Intergovernmental revenues, sales and services, and fines and permits are not susceptible to
accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Expenditure-
driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been
incurred and all other grant requirements have been satisfied. Licenses, fines, permits, and
other revenue are not susceptible to accrual because they are generally not measurable until
received in cash. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes are reported as
general revenues rather than program revenues.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of
specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus,
when program expenses are incurred, there is both restricted and unrestricted net position
available to finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement
grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general
revenues.

Budgetary Data

Budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget
is adopted for the General Fund and Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund, certain
special revenue funds, capital project funds, permanent funds, and enterprise funds. The
CDBG Program Income Special Revenue Fund has a legally adopted annual budget.
Capital project funds that have legally adopted annual budgets are the Facade Program
Fund and the Public Safety Capital Reserve Fund. The Water Capital Reserve Fund and
the Sewer Capital Reserve Fund have legally adopted annual budgets, which are combined
with the enterprise funds in the accompanying financial statements. All appropriations
lapse at the fiscal year-end. All other special revenue funds and capital project funds have
legally adopted project budgets. The Recovery Zone Bond Enterprise Capital Project
funds, the EDA Water System Improvements project, the CWSRF Sewer Grant Fund, and
the EDA Sewer System Improvements project legally adopt a project budget. The City’s
Workers” Compensation Reserve Fund, Vehicle Replacement Reserve Fund, and Facility
Maintenance Reserve Fund, internal service funds, operate under a financial plan, which
were adopted by the governing Board at the time the City’s budget ordinance was
approved, as is required by the General Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the
modified accrual basis of accounting.
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Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for the
General Fund, special revenue funds, permanent funds, and proprietary funds, and at the
object level for the enterprise capital project funds. The City Manager and Finance
Director are authorized by budget ordinance to transfer appropriations between
departments within a fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any
fund or that change functional appropriations must be approved by the governing Board at
its next regular meeting. During the year, several amendments to the original budget were
necessary, the effects of which were not material. The budget must be adopted by July 1 of
the fiscal year, or the governing Board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time
until the annual ordinance can be adopted.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity
Deposits

All deposits of the City and the TDA are made in Board-designated official depositories
and are secured or required by G.S. 159-31. The City and the TDA may designate, as an
official depository, any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in
North Carolina. Also, the City may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and
SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

Investments

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the City and the TDA to invest in obligations of the
United States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United
States, obligations of the State of North Carolina, bonds and notes of any North Carolina
local government or public authority, obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal
agencies, certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances, and
the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). The City’s and the TDA’s
investments are reported at fair value. Non-participating interest-earning contracts are
accounted for at cost. The NCCMT- Governmental Portfolio, an SEC-registered (2a-7)
external investment pool, is measured at amortized cost, which is the NCCMT’s share
price. The NCCMT- Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to
maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand
deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents. The TDA considers demand
deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are not limited as to use, to be cash and cash equivalents.
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Restricted Assets

Restricted assets presented in the accompanying financial statements represent the amounts
of unexpended grant proceeds of the Water Fund and the Sewer Fund because their use is
completely restricted to the purpose for which the grant proceeds were originally issued.
For the purposes of reporting cash flows, the City’s restricted assets are considered to be
cash and/or cash equivalents. Customer deposits held by the City before any services are
supplied are restricted to the service for which the deposit was collected.

City of Washington Restricted Cash
Governmental Activities:

General Fund - customer deposits $ 5,045

Total governmental activities $ 5,045

Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise Funds:

Water Fund - customer deposits $ 47,822
Electric Fund - customer deposits 546,011
Water Fund - unexpended grant proceeds 63,544
Sewer Fund - unexpended grant proceeds 63,544
Total business-type activities $ 720,921

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the City levies ad
valorem taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal
year. The taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and interest do not

accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of
January 1, 2016.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Allowances for doubtful accounts are maintained on all types of receivables that
historically experience uncollectible accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the
percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

All fund-type inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the moving

average cost method. The costs of these inventories are expensed when consumed rather
than when purchased.
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The inventories of the City’s enterprise funds consist of materials and supplies held for
subsequent use. The cost of these inventories is expensed when consumed rather than
when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements and are
expensed as the items are used.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. The City’s capital
assets are recorded at original cost or at estimated historical cost. The total of these
estimates is not considered large enough that any errors would be material when capital
assets are considered as a whole. Donated capital assets received prior to June 30, 2015 are
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Donated capital assets
received after June 30, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value. All other purchased or
constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. General
infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2003, consist of road network and water and
sewer system assets that were acquired or that received substantial improvements
subsequent to July 1, 1980, and are reported at estimated historical cost using deflated
replacement cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend the asset’s life are not capitalized.

The City’s capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The major classifications of depreciable assets are as follows:

Estimated
Assets Useful Lives
Buildings 45 years
Other improvements 45 years
General equipment 5 to 10 years
Office machines 5to 19 years
Furniture 5to 19 years
Infrastructure 45 years
Plant and distribution systems 45 to 67 years
Substations, lines, and equipment 45 years
Vehicles 10 years
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Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Financial Position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The
City has two items that meet this criterion, pension deferrals for the 2017 fiscal year and
contributions made to the pension plan in the 2017 fiscal year. In addition to liabilities, the
Statement of Financial Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so
will not be recognized as revenue until then. The City has several items that meet the
criterion for this category — property taxes receivable, EMS receivable, other accounts
receivable, unexpended grant proceeds, and pension deferrals.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary
fund type Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method
that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs, except for prepaid insurance
costs, are expensed in the reporting period in which they are incurred. Prepaid insurance
costs are expensed over the life of the debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the City provide for the accumulation of up to thirty days earned
vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the government-wide
and proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-
related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.

The City’s sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave.
Any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement is used in the determination of
length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Upon termination of employment for
other than retirement, an employee hired prior to July 1, 1994 is paid for 25% of unused
sick leave. For employees hired on or after July 1, 1994, there is no payment for unused
sick leave.
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The City has assumed a first-in, first-out method of using accumulated compensated time.
The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been
designated as a current liability in the government-wide financial statements.

Net Position

Net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements is classified
as net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net position
represents constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through State
statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five
classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance
can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Non-Spendable Fund Balance

This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Inventories — portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents
the year-end balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable resources.

Perpetual Maintenance — cemetery and library resources that are required to be retained in
perpetuity for maintenance of the cemetery and library.

Notes Receivable — portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it
represents the amount the City expects to receive for CDBG loans made in previous years.

Restricted Fund Balance

This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes externally
imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Stabilization by State Statute — portion of fund balance that is not an available resource for
appropriation in accordance with State law [G.S. 159-8(a)].

Restricted for General Government — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue
source for general government administration.

Restricted for Public Safety — portion of fund balance restricted by revenue source for
public safety related activities such as police, fire, and E-911.
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Restricted for Economic and Physical Development — portion of fund balance restricted by

revenue source for economic development purposes.

Restricted for Cultural and Recreational — portion of fund balance restricted by revenue
source for use for parks, libraries, arts, and other related activities.

Restricted fund balance at June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Other
General Governmental
Purpose Fund Funds
Restricted, all other:
General government $ 74481 $ -
Public safety 52,548 -
Economic and physical development - 104,271
Cultural and recreational 44,046 -
Total $ 171075 $ 104,271

Committed Fund Balance

This classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making
authority. The governing council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the
government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year,
commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in
place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise
the limitation.

Committed for General Government — portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by
the City Council for financial and utility software.

Committed for Economic Development — portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by
the City Council for economic development purposes.

Committed for Public Safety — represents the portion of fund balance committed by the
governing body for future public safety capital related purposes.
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Committed fund balance at June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Other
General Governmental

Purpose Fund Funds
Economic development $ 2521 $ 1,148
General government - 46,584
Public safety - 940,169
Total $ 2521 $ 987,901

Assigned Fund Balance

Assigned fund balance is the portion of fund balance that the City of Washington intends to
use for specific purposes. The City's governing body approves the appropriation; however,
the budget ordinance authorizes the Manager and Finance Officer to transfer appropriations
between departments within a fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures
of any fund or that change functional appropriations must be approved by the governing
board at its next regular meeting.

Assigned for Economic and Physical Development — portion of fund balance budgeted by
City Council for economic development incentives relating to the Facade Program Fund.

Assigned fund balance at June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Other
General Governmental

Purpose Fund Funds
Economic and physical development  $ - § 24919

Unassigned Fund Balance

Unassigned fund balance represents the portion of fund balance that has not been assigned
to another fund or is not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the
General Fund.

The City of Washington has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs
with multiple revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following
order: bond/debt proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-City funds, and City funds.
For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund
balance first, followed in order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and
lastly, unassigned fund balance. The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this
policy if it is in the best interest of the City or when required by grant or other contractual
agreements.
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The City has adopted a fund balance policy for the General Fund. It states that the City
will maintain an additional $2,000,000 above the recommended two-month operating
reserve provided by the Local Government Commission for similar sized public bodies.
However, the excess funds are not restricted for a specific purpose and are available for
general appropriation.

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion
of General Fund balance that is available for appropriation.

Total fund balance - General Fund $ 8,401,662

Less:

Inventories 71,783
Stabilization by State statute 1,456,088
Total available fund balance $ 6,873,791

Outstanding encumbrances represent amounts needed to pay commitments related to
purchase orders and contracts that remain unperformed at year-end. Encumbrances at June
30, 2017 are detailed as follows:

Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds
Encumbrances $ 123385 $ 282,889

Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
— Budget and Actual — General Fund to the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental Funds:

A legally budgeted Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund is consolidated into the
General Fund for reporting purposes on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental Funds (Exhibit D). Fund balance for the
General Fund is reconciled as follows:

Fund balance, ending - General Fund (Exhibit F)  $§ 8,399,141

Transfers in 328,336
Transfers (out) (328,336)
Fund balance, beginning 2521

Fund balance, ending - General Fund (Exhibit D) $ 8,401,662
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E. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) and additions
to/deductions from LGERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by LGERS. For this purpose, plan member contributions are recognized in
the period in which the contributions are due. The City of Washington’s employer
contributions are recognized when due, and the City of Washington has a legal requirement to
provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of LGERS. Investments are reported at fair value

Detail Notes on All Funds

Assets
Deposits

All of the City’s and the TDA’s deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two
methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance
coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the City’s and the TDA’s agents in
these units’ names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured
deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer’s agent in the name of the
State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the City and the
TDA, these deposits are considered to be held by the agent in the entities’ name. The amount
of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest-bearing
deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the
Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering
uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the City and
the TDA or with the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of
collateral under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under collateralization. This risk
may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina
enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public
deposits under the Pooling Method. The City and the TDA have no formal policy regarding
custodial credit risk for deposits, but rely on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of
minimum capitalization for all Pooling Method financial institutions and to monitor them for
compliance. The City and the TDA comply with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when
designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured.

At June 30, 2017, the City’s deposits had a carrying amount of $23,313,292 and a bank balance
of $23,838,184. Of the bank balance, $296,766 was covered by federal depository insurance,
and $23,541,418 was covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method. The City also had
$1,395 in petty cash on hand at June 30, 2017.

At June 30, 2017, the City of Washington had $5,789,388 invested with the North Carolina

Capital Management Trust’s Governmental Portfolio, which carried a credit rating of AAAm
by Standard and Poor’s. The City has no policy regarding credit risk.

40



CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

At June 30, 2017, the TDA’s deposits had a carrying amount of $257,550 and a bank balance
of $266,136, of which $250,000 was covered by federal deposit insurance, and $16,136 was
covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method. The TDA also had $50 in petty cash at
June 30, 2017.

Accounts Receivable — Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The receivables shown in the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2017 are net of the
following allowances for doubtful accounts:

Fund June 30, 2017
Governmental Activities:
General Fund:
Taxes receivable $ 154,670
Miscellaneous 107,369
Total governmental activities $ 262,039

Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise Funds:

Water Fund - accounts receivable $ 52,678
Sewer Fund - accounts receivable 69,839
Electric Fund - accounts receivable 665,174
Electric Fund - miscellaneous receivable 52,130
Stormwater Utility Fund - accounts receivable 12,502
Solid Waste Fund - accounts receivable 30,002
Total business-type activities $ 882,325

Notes Receivable

The City issued a note receivable on July 12, 1999 in the amount of $188,000 in the CDBG
Program Income Fund of which the total principal is due on August 1, 2019. Interest is
calculated at 1% and is due monthly. The amount outstanding at June 30, 2017 is $188,000.

The City issued two note receivables on December 1, 2014 totaling $13,918 in the CDBG
Program Income Fund of which the total monthly principal and interest payments in the
amount of $339.78 are due. Interest is calculated at 8%, and the payment term is 48 months.
The amount outstanding at June 30, 2017 is $3,385.

The City issued a note receivable on December 12, 1994 in the amount of $400,000 in the

Sewer Fund. Interest is calculated at 5.6%. Principal and interest is due annually through
January 2020. The amount outstanding at June 30, 2017 is $81,088.
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Capital asset activity for the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as

follows:
July 1, 2016 Additions  Retirements Transfers  June 30, 2017

Governmental Funds:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land $ 5232820 § - 8 - - 8 5,232,820
Construction in progress 470,270 290,512 - (394,785) 365,997
Total non-depreciable capital assets 5,703,090 290,512 - (394,785) 5,598,817
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Buildings 11,722,620 20,385 - - 11,743,005
Streets and other improvements 11,333,047 185,799 (99,352) 282,512 11,702,006
General equipment 1,325,155 10,173 (56,766) - 1,278,562
Office machines 1,408,412 22,243 (205,348) - 1,225,307
Furniture 94,572 - - - 94,572
Vehicles 3,589,104 25,156 (259,287) 23,239 3,378,212
Total depreciable capital assets 29,472,910 263,756 (620,753) 305,751 29,421,664
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings 6,271,630 273,076 - - 6,544,706
Streets 5,089,036 294,447 (99,352) - 5,284,131
General equipment 1,153,947 48,701 (54,651) - 1,147,997
Office machines 1,071,635 85,126 (205,348) - 951,413
Furniture 94,570 - - - 94,570
Vehicles 2,460,353 201,019 (221,127) 3,868 2,444,113

16,141,171 § 902,369 § (580,478) 3,868 16,466,930
Total depreciable capital assets, net 13,331,739 12,954,734
Total capital assets, net 19,034,829 18,553,551
Vehicle Replacement Internal

Service Fund:

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Vehicles 1,276,949 § 167,234 § - - 1,444,183
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Vehicles - $ 132995 § - - 132,995
Total depreciable capital assets, net 1,276,949 1,311,188
Total Internal Service Fund capital assets, net - 1,311,188
Total governmental activities capital assets, net $ 19,034,829 $ 19864739
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Depreciation was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government
Public safety
Transportation
Cultural and recreational

Total

346,982
175,365

255,269
124,753

902,369

Capital asset activity for the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as

follows:

Water Fund:

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land

Construction in progress

Total non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Plant, substations, lines,

and distribution sy stem
Buildings
Furniture and office equipment
General and mobile equipment

Total depreciable capital assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Plant, substations, lines,

and distribution sy stem
Buildings
Furniture and office equipment
General and mobile equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable capital assets, net

Water Fund capital assets, net
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July 1, 2016 Additions Retirements  Transfers June 30,2017
$ 117,538 $ -3 -3 -3 117,538
1,152,176 181,345 - (1,243,654) 89,867
1,269,714 181,345 - (1,243,654) 207,405
16,263,407 119,775 - 1,243,654 17,626,836
7,165,906 - - - 7,165,906
804,442 - - - 804,442
4,723,955 43,263 (19,940) (59,718) 4,687,560
28,957,710 163,038 (19,940) 1,183,936 30,284,744
8,639,784 327,793 - - 8,967,577
3,747,946 196,620 - - 3,944,566
756,109 4,758 - - 760,867
3,244,094 172,057 (18,189) (31,777) 3,366,185
16,387,933 § 701,228 § (18,189) $ (31,777) 17,039,195
12,569,777 13,245,549

$ 13,839,491 $ 13,452,954
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Sewer Fund:

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land

Construction in progress

Total non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Plant, substations, lines,

and distribution sy stem
Buildings
Furniture and office equipment
General and mobile equipment

Total depreciable capital assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Plant, substations, lines,

and distribution sy stem
Buildings
Furniture and office equipment
General and mobile equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable capital assets, net

Sewer Fund capital assets, net

44

July 1, 2016 Additions  Retirements Transfers June 30,2017
$ 25,481 $ - 8 -3 -3 25,481
1,216,714 662,142 - (1,157,526) 721,330
1,242,195 662,142 - (1,157,526) 746,811
36,832,169 184,876 - 1,157,526 38,174,571
2,433,057 - - - 2,433,057
114,259 - - - 114,259
1,334,021 126,696 (26,176) - 1,434,541
40,713,506 311,572 (26,176) 1,157,526 42,156,428
19,644,267 582,785 - - 20,227,052
2,153,187 16,265 - - 2,169,452
78,174 7,478 - - 85,652
957,923 88,358 (26,176) - 1,020,105
22,833,551 $ 694,886 $ (26,176) $ - 23,502,261
17,879,955 18,654,167

$ 19,122,150 $ 19,400,978
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Electric Fund:

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land

Construction in progress

Total non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Plant, substations, lines,

and distribution sy stem
Buildings
Furniture and office equip ment
General and mobile equipment

Total depreciable capital assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Plant, substations, lines,

and distribution sy stem
Buildings
Furniture and office equip ment
General and mobile equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable capital assets, net
Electric Fund capital assets, net
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July 1,2016  Additions  Retirements Transfers June 30,2017
$ 64,777 ' $ - 8 -8 - 8 64,777
1,328,187 382,961 - (1,466,760) 244,388
1,392,964 382,961 - (1,466,760) 309,165
55,965,014 1,671,761 - 1,466,760 59,103,535
658,704 10,300 - - 669,004
258,725 18,063 - - 276,788
8,414,741 545,329 (186,590) 7,622 8,781,102
65,297,184 2,245,453 (186,590) 1,474,382 68,830,429
32,769,493 813,410 - - 33,582,903
434,925 14,107 - - 449,032
224,521 7,700 - - 232,221
6,896,419 312,536 (174,557) 6,733 7,041,131
40,325,358 $1,147,753 $§  (174,557) $ 6,733 41,305,287
24,971,826 27,525,142

$ 26,364,790 $ 27,834,307
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Stormwater Fund:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land

Construction in progress

Total non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Drainage sy stem
General and mobile equipment

Total depreciable capital assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Drainage system

General and mobile equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable capital assets, net

Stormwater Fund capital assets, net

Airport Fund:

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land

Construction in progress

Total non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Runways
Buildings
General and mobile equipment

Total depreciable capital assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Runways

Buildings

General and mobile equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable capital assets, net

Water Fund capital assets, net

July 1, 2016

Retirements

Transfers

June 30,2017
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175,338 - 175,338
4,735,133 (148,117) 4,695,528
4,910,471 (148,117) 4,870,866
5,474,849 148,117 5,622,966

275,205 (7,622) 283,755
5,750,054 140,495 5,906,721
2,238,138 - 2,361,434

239,413 (6,733) 242,787
2,477,551 (6,733) 2,604,221
3,272,503 3,302,500
8,182,974 8,173,366

July 1, 2016 Transfers June 30, 2017
1,266,648 $ - 1,266,648
443,939 (439,350) 7,257
1,710,587 (439,350) 1,273,905
4,767,347 439,350 5,206,697
1,529,232 - 1,529,232
684,374 5,738 690,612
6,981,453 445,088 7,426,541
3,624,256 - 3,685,698
284,383 - 311,617
427,667 2,391 445,182
4,336,306 2,391 4,442,497
2,645,147 2,984,044
4,355,734 4,257,949
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Solid Waste Fund:
Depreciable Capital Assets:

General and mobile equipment

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
General and mobile equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable capital assets, net

Water Fund capital assets, net

Cemetery Fund:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:

Construction in progress

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Buildings
General and mobile equipment

Total depreciable capital assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings

General and mobile equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable capital assets, net

Water Fund capital assets, net

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Accounts and vouchers

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Accrued interest payable

Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities
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July 1, 2016 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2017
$ 1460464 §$ - § (259,688) § 30,741 § 1,231,517
1,124,651 63,475 (259,688) 25,518 953,956
1,124,651 $ 63,475 $§ (259,688) $ 25,518 953,956
335,813 277,561
$ 335,813 $ 277,561
July 1, 2016 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2017
$ - 3 5,760 $ -3 -3 5,760
53,696 - - - 53,696
95,181 - - - 95,181
148,877 - - - 148,877
1,292 1,193 - - 2,485
21,487 9,524 - - 31,011
22779 $ 10,717  $ - 9 - 33,496
126,098 115,381
$ 126,098 $ 121,141
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 356,357 $ 2,165,539 $ 2,521,896

155,202 85,476 240,678

49 10,944 10,993

$ 511,608 $ 2,261,959 $ 2,773,567
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Pension Plan Obligations
Local Government Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description. The City is a participating employer in the State-wide Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS membership is comprised of
general employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local
government entities. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested
in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members — nine appointed by the
Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of
Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio
members. The LGERS is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office
of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by
calling (919) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.gov.

Benefits Provided. LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are
determined as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of
creditable service. A member’s average final compensation is calculated as the average of a
member’s four highest consecutive years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire
with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25
years of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members are
eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or
at age 60 with five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters). Survivor benefits are
available to eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180
days of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service
regardless of age (15 years of creditable service for firefighters and rescue squad members who
are killed in the line of duty) or have completed five years of service and have reached age 60.
Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a
return of the member’s contributions. The plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement
benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan.

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age
55 with five years of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable
service. LEO plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with
15 years of creditable service as an officer. Survivor benefits are available to eligible
beneficiaries of LEO members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last
day of service and who also have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of
age, or have completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have reached age 50, or have
completed five years of creditable service as a LEO and have reached age 55, or have
completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO if killed in the line of duty. Eligible
beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of
the member’s contributions.
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Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be
amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. City of Washington employees are
required to contribute 6% of their compensation. Employer contributions are actuarially
determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees. The City’s contractually
required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2017 was 8.00% of compensation for law
enforcement officers and 7.25% for general employees, actuarially determined as an amount
that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits
earned by employees during the year. Contributions to the pension plan from the City were
$784,712 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Refunds of Contributions — City employees who have terminated service as a contributing
member of LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions. By State law,
refunds to members with at least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a
60-day waiting period after service termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance
of a refund payment cancels the individual’s right to employer contributions or any other
benefit provided by LGERS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2017, the City reported a liability of $3,672,064 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016. The total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of December 31, 2015. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2016 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial
assumptions. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
City’s long-term share of future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected
future payroll covered by the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2016, the City’s proportion was 0.17302%, which was a decrease of
0.015% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $849,143. At June
30, 2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 68,992 $ 128,673
Changes of assumptions 251,505 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 2,030,189 -
Changes in proportion and differences between City
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 193,488
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 784,712 -
Total § 3,135,398 § 322,161

49



CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

$784,712 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows
and outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Amount
2018 $ 275,762
2019 276,180
2020 919,229
2021 557,354
2022 -
Thereafter -
Total  § 2,028,525

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increase 3.50 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and productivity factor

Investment rate of return 7.25 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including
inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general,
law enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality
rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the
U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality
improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015 valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are,
therefore, not included in the measurement.
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The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through
review of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant
whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return
projections reflect current yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations
of forward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year
horizons. Global public equity return projections are established through analysis of the equity
risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Other asset categories and strategies’
return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis. These projections are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class as of June 30, 2016 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Fixed income 29.0% 1.4%
Global equity 42.0% 5.3%
Real estate 8.0% 4.3%
Alternatives 8.0% 8.9%
Credit 7.0% 6.0%
Inflation protection 6.0% 4.0%

Total 100.0%

The information above is based on 30-year expectations developed with the consulting actuary
for the 2016 asset, liability, and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement
Systems, including LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of
return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal
rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.00%. All rates of
return and inflation are annualized.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from
plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate. The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the City’s proportionate
share of the net pension asset or net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.25%) or one percentage point higher
(8.25%) than the current rate:

1% 1% 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
City's proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset) $ 8,715,521 $ 3,672,064 $ (540,606)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

Plan Description. The City administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation
Allowance”), a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits
to the City’s qualified sworn law enforcement officers under the age of 62 who have
completed at least 30 years of creditable service or have attained 55 years of age and have
completed five or more years of creditable service. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85
percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to
the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any
increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly.
Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. A separate report was not issued for the
Plan. All full-time law enforcement officers of the City are covered by the Separation
Allowance.

At December 31, 2015, the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 2
Terminated plan members entitled to,

but not yet receiving, benefits -
Active plan members 32
Total 34
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting. The City has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay-as-you-
go basis. Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

The Separation Allowance has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the following
criteria, which are outlined in GASB Statement 73.

Actuarial Assumptions
The entry age actuarial cost method was used in the December 31, 2015 valuation. The total

pension liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increase 3.50 to 7.35 percent, including inflation
and productivity factor

Discount rate 3.86 percent

The discount rate used to measure the TPL is the weekly average of the Bond Buyer General
Obligation 20-year Municipal Bond Index determined at the end of each month.

Deaths after Retirement (Healthy): RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant base rates projected to the
valuation date using MP-2015 projected forward generationally from the valuation date using
MP-2015. Rates are adjusted by 104% for males and 100% for females.

Deaths before Retirement: RP-2014 Employee base rates projected to the valuation date
using MP-2015 projected forward generationally from the valuation date using MP-2015.

Deaths after Retirement (Beneficiary): RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant base rates projected to
the valuation date using MP-2015 projected forward generationally from the valuation date
using MP-2015. Rates are adjusted by 123% for males and females.

Deaths after Retirement (Disabled): RP-2014 Disabled Retiree base rates projected to the
valuation date using MP-2015 projected forward generationally from the valuation date using
MP-2015. Rates are adjusted by 103% for males and 99% for females.

Contributions. The City is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these
retirement benefits and has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned
on a pay-as-you-go basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operation budget.
There were no contributions made by the employees. The City’s obligation to contribute to this
Plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.
Administration costs of the Separation Allowance are financed through investment earnings.
The City paid $44,942 as benefits came due for the reporting period.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2017, the City reported a total pension liability of $1,369,052. The total pension
liability was measured as of December 31, 2016 based on a December 31, 2015 actuarial
valuation. The total pension liability was rolled forward to December 31, 2016 utilizing update
procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City
recognized pension expense of $92,078.

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Changes of assumptions $ - § 25240
City benefit payments and plan administrative

expense made subsequent to the measurement date 22,890 -
Total § 22,800 § 25,240

$22,890 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from benefit
payments made and administrative expenses incurred subsequent to the measurement date will
be recognized as a decrease of the total pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2018.
Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Amount
2018 $ 5,120
2019 5,120
2020 5,120
2021 5,120
2022 4,760
Thereafter -
Total $ 25,240

$22,471 paid as benefits came due and $419 of administrative expenses subsequent to the
measurement date are reported as deferred outflows of resources.
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Sensitivity of the City’s Total Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The
following presents the City’s total pension liability calculated using the discount rate of
3.86%, as well as what the City’s total pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.86%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.86%)
than the current rate:

1% 1% 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(2.86%) (3.86%) (4.86%)
Total pension liability $1,477,033 $1,369,052 $ 1,270,107

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

2017
Beginning balance $ 1,347,579
Service cost 49,469
Interest on the total pension liability 47,306
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (30,360)
Benefit payments (44,942)
Ending balance of the total pension liability $ 1,369,052

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, and health status (i.e. disabled and
healthy). The current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that
cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a
provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015 valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plans for Law Enforcement Officers and Others

Plan Description. The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a
defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a
Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers
employed by the City. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental
Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is included in the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes
the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan
that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That
report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.
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Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month
an amount equal to 5% of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested
immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the
plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2017 were $116,905, which consisted of
$79,490 from the City and $37,415 from the law enforcement officers. In addition, the City
has elected to contribute $50 bi-weekly in flex funds for other employees. Other employees
may also make voluntary contributions to their plan. Contributions to this plan for other
employees for the year ended June 30, 2017 were $298,410, which consisted of $117,120
from the City and $181,290 from the employees. No amounts were forfeited.

Other Employment Benefits

The City has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan
for members of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (the “Death Benefit
Plan”), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term
cost basis. The beneficiaries of these employees who die in active service after one year of
contributing membership in the Death Benefit Plan, or who die within 180 days after
retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership
service in the Death Benefit Plan at the time of death, are eligible for death benefits. Lump-
sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest months’
salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but the benefit may not
exceed $50,000 or be less than $25,000. Because all death benefit payments are made from
the Death Benefit Plan and not by the City, the City does not determine the number of eligible
participants. The City has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The
contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment
benefit amount and the other benefit amount. Contributions are determined as a percentage of
monthly payroll based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates are set for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. The City
considers these contributions to be immaterial.

The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment
benefit amount and the other benefit amount.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

According to a City resolution, the City provides post-employment healthcare benefits to
retirees with 30 years of credible service as recognized by the North Carolina Local
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System, a single-employer defined benefit plan, and
have at least ten years of creditable service with the City. The City pays the full cost of
coverage for these benefits until such employees become covered by Medicare. Medical
insurance will be continued for a maximum of two years for an employee who retires on
disability through the system but does not qualify for or pursue Social Security benefits. Also,
retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the City’s group rates. Currently, 25
retirees are eligible for post-employment health benefits. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017, the City made payments for post-employment health benefit premiums of $206,395.
The City obtains healthcare coverage through Blue Cross Blue Shield directly. The City
Council may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report is not issued for the plan.
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Membership of the Plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2016, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

Law
General Enforce ment
Employees Officers

Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 25 N/A
Terminated plan members entitled to, but

not yet receiving, benefits - -
Active plan members 188 29
Total 213 29

Funding Policy. The City’s members pay the current active employee rate for dependent
coverage, if the retiree elects to purchase the coverage. The City has chosen to fund the
healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The current ARC rate is 3.42% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the City
contributed $206,396, or 2.26% of annual covered payroll. The City purchases insurance from
a private carrier for healthcare coverage. The City’s required contributions, under a City
resolution, for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers
represented 1.12% and 1.12% of covered payroll, respectively. Employees paid premiums in
the amount of $153,919 for their share of dependent coverage. The City’s obligation to
contribute to the Plan is established and may be amended by the City Council.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Post-employment expenditures are made from
the General Fund and enterprise funds, which are maintained on the modified accrual basis of
accounting and the accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net Obligation. The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed
30 years.

57



CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the
amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation for
the healthcare benefits:

Annual required contribution $ 312983

Interest on net OPEB obligation 72,120

Adjustments to annual required contribution (68,897)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 316,206

Contributions made 206,396

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 109,810

Net OPEB obligation:

Beginning of year - July 1 1,802,996

End of year - June 30 $ 1,912,806

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Annual Percentage of Net
Year Ended OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB
June 30 Cost Cost Contributed  Obligation
2015 $ 361,872 56.2% $ 1,565,282
2016 361,872 34.3% 1,802,996
2017 316,206 65.3% 1,912,806

Fund Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2016, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $3,927,101. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $9,149,850, and the ratio of the UAAL to
the covered payroll was 42.9%. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of
the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events
far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and
healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The Schedule
of Funding Progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to
the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

58



CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes
are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan
members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that
point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was
used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00% investment rate of return (net of
administrative expenses), which is the expected long-term investment return on the employer’s
own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and a
Pre-Medicare trend rate of 7.75% - 5.00%. Both rates included a 3.00% inflation assumption.
The actuarial value of assets, if any, was determined using techniques that spread the effects of
short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The UAAL is
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an closed basis. The remaining
amortization period at June 30, 2016 was 30 years.

As of June 30, 2017, management had not decided on the funding options for this outstanding
obligation; therefore, OPEB will continue to be funded on a pay-as-you-go basis going into the
next fiscal year. Management will continue its efforts to find a way to fund the annual required
contribution while maintaining the level of service as prioritized by the City Council.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources are comprised of the following:

Source Amount

Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year $ 784,712

Benefit payments/administration costs paid

subsequent to the measurement date (LEOSSA) 22,890
Differences between projected expected and actual experience 68,992
Changes of assumptions 251,505
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments 2,030,189
Total $ 3,158,288
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Deferred inflows of resources at year-end are comprised of the following:

Source Amount
Property taxes receivable (General Fund) $ 121,136
EMS receivable (General Fund) 220,759
Other receivables (General Fund) 26,373
Unavailable revenues - unexpended grant proceeds 127,088
Changes of assumptions 25,240
Differences between expected and actual experience 128,673
Changes in proportion and differences between City contributions
and proportionate share of contributions 193,488
Total $ 842,757
Commitments
Construction

The City had outstanding commitments at June 30, 2017 of approximately $330,089 for electric
projects, $1,046,070 for water and sewer improvements, and $87,560 for storm water drainage
improvements.

Purchases

The City participates in the North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency (the "Agency").
Under the contracts executed by the City with the Agency, the Agency became the “all
requirements” power supplier to the City. The City is obligated to pay for this power at rates
set by the Agency and to set rates at a level such that sufficient electrical revenue is generated
to meet obligations to the Agency. The Agency furnishes power to the City by purchasing an
undivided interest in some of Progress Energy’s generating capacity and by contracting with
Progress Energy to furnish all of the Agency’s requirements. Under the terms of the agreement
with the Agency, the City is obligated to pay a proportionate share of the Agency’s obligation
to Progress Energy for the purpose of generating capacity whether or not the generator
produces power. This is commonly referred to as a “take or pay” contract in the electric
industry.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City
participates in a self-funded risk financing pool administered by the North Carolina League of
Municipalities. Through this pool, the City obtains general liability and auto liability coverage
of $2 million per occurrence and property coverage on a scheduled basis. The liability and
property exposures are reinsured through commercial carriers for claims in excess of retentions

60



CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

as selected by the Board of Trustees each year. Specific information on the limits of the
reinsurance can be obtained by contacting the Risk Management Services Department of the
NC League of Municipalities. The pool is audited annually by certified public accountants, and
the audited financial statements are available to the City upon request.

The City carries commercial coverage for risks of loss. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not exceeded
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The City’s Workers’ Compensation Reserve Internal Service Fund was established in 2010 to
account for a limited risk, self-insurance program to provide workers’ compensation benefits to
City employees. Premiums are paid into the Internal Service Fund by all other funds and are
available to pay claims and administrative costs of the program. The interfund premiums are
based upon the claims experience of the insured funds. A liability for a claim is established if
information indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. An excess coverage
insurance policy provides for individual claims in excess of $600,000, with the exception of
$750,000 for police and fire. A total of $63,325 in claims was incurred for benefits during
fiscal year 2017.

Claims Liability
June 30,2017  June 30, 2016
Unpaid claims, beginning of year $ 119,664 $ 255,092
Incurred claims (including claims incurred, 63,324 8,549
but not reported, as of fiscal year-end)
Payments and reduction in claims estimates (68,180) (143,977)
Unpaid claims, end of year $ 114,808 § 119,664

The City carries additional commercial coverage for flood, marina operator’s legal liability,
and airport owner/operator's general liability.

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, City employees who have access to $100 or more of City
funds at any given time are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The
Director of Finance is bonded individually for $50,000. The remaining employees who have
access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $100,000.

At June 30, 2017, the City was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the City's

management and the City Attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the City's financial position.
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Long-Term Obligations
Revolving Loans Payable

On November 17, 2003, the City was approved for a maximum loan amount of $2,986,000
from the United States Environmental Protection Agency, passed through the North Carolina
Department of Environment and Natural Resources under the Clean Water State Revolving
Fund. The loan proceeds are being used for the construction of the City of Washington Waste
Water Treatment Plant — Phase II. The loan is being reported as long-term debt in the Sewer
Fund and is repayable at 2.42% for 20 years beginning six months after the completion of the
project. The City began repayment of the loan in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The loan
repayment schedule based on a loan amount of $2,636,105 calls for equal principal repayments
of $131,805 annually for 20 years. The total amount outstanding at June 30, 2017 was
$1,054,442.

On April 23, 2012, the City was approved for a maximum loan amount of $600,000 from the
United States Environmental Protection Agency, passed through the North Carolina
Department of Environment and Natural Resources under the Clean Water State Revolving
Fund. The loan proceeds are being used for the construction of the Main and Respess Lift
Station. The loan is being reported as long-term debt in the Sewer Fund and is repayable at
0.00% for 15 years beginning May 2013. The loan repayment calls for equal principal
repayments of $36,697 annually for 15 years. The total amount outstanding at June 30, 2017
was $366,978.

On June 30, 2017, the City was approved for a maximum loan amount of $1,696,402 from
United States Environmental Protection Agency, passed through the North Carolina
Department of Environmental Quality under the Sewer Revolving Loan. The loan proceeds are
being used for a Sanitary Sewer project. The loan is being reported as long-term debt in the
Sewer Fund and is repayable at 0.00% for 20 years beginning May 2018. The loan repayment
calls for equal principal payments of $59,820 annually for 20 years. As of June 30, 2017, the
City of Washington has drawn down $208,759.

The annual debt service requirements of the revolving loans payable are as follows:

Year Ending Business-Type Activities
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 178941 $ 25518 § 204,459
2019 178,941 22,328 201,269
2020 178,941 19,138 198,079
2021 178,941 15,948 194,889
2022 178,941 12,759 191,700
2023-2027 631,094 19,138 650,232
2028-2032 52,190 - 52,190
2033-2037 52,190 - 52,190

Total $ 1,630,179 $ 114829 § 1,745,008

62



CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Installment Notes Payable

Detail of installment notes payable for all fund types is as follows:

Issue Issue Interest Balance
Purpose and Collateral Date Amount Terms of Issuance Rates June 30, 2017
Governmental Activities:
Refinance fire station 3/15/2013 § 2,075,000 Annual installment of $166,970 due o
through March 2028 2:58% $ 1,566,055
Equipment 4/15/2013 240,000 Annual installments of $50,501 due 136% 33,452
through February 2018
Total governmental activities § 1,599,507
Business-Type Activities:
Electric:
Equi t 4/15/2013 430,805 i
quipmen s Annual installments of $90,622 due 136% g 60,160
through February 2018 I
60,160
Nonmajor Enterprise:
Equipment - Cemetery 4/152013  § 35,000 Annual installments of $7,365 due 4877
through February 2018 1.36% ’
Total business-type activities $ 65,037
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The annual debt service requirements of these installment notes are as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Year Ending Governmental Activities
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 161,525 § 39,068 $ 200,593
2019 131,416 35,553 166,969
2020 134,848 32,122 166,970
2021 138,368 28,602 166,970
2022 141,981 24,989 166,970
2023-2027 767,477 67,372 834,849
2028 123,892 1,336 125,228
Total $ 1,599,507 § 229,042 $ 1,828,549
Enterprise Funds:
Year Ending Electric
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 60,160 § 307§ 60,467
Year Ending Cemetery
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 4877 § 25§ 4,902
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Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds

On December 10, 2010, the City issued $5,040,000 Recovery Zone Economic Development
Bonds. The proceeds are being used for Stormwater drainage improvements and a roof
replacement at Fire Station #1. The loan is being reported as long-term debt in the Stormwater
Fund and the governmental activities and is repayable at 2.695%. The bonds are due in semi-
annual equal principal repayments of $336,000 annually for 15 years. Recovery Zone
Economic Development Bonds payable and future maturities at June 30, 2017 are comprised of
the following:

Year Ending Governmental Activities
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 2,667 $ 1,078 $ 3,745
2019 2,667 947 3,614
2020 2,667 817 3,484
2021 2,667 686 3,353
2022 2,667 555 3,222
2023-2026 9,333 915 10,248
Total $ 22,668 $ 4,998 $ 27,666
Year Ending Stormwater Fund
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 333,333  $ 134,750 $§ 468,083
2019 333,333 118,417 451,750
2020 333,333 102,083 435416
2021 333,333 85,750 419,083
2022 333,333 69,417 402,750
2023-2026 1,166,667 114,333 1,281,000
Total $ 2,833,332 § 624,750 § 3,458,082
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Long-Term Obligation Activity

The following is a summary of changes in the City’s long-term debt as of June 30, 2017:

Current
Portion of
Balance Balance Long-Term
July1,2016  Additions Retirements June 30,2017 _ Liabilities
Governmental Activities:
Installment notes payable $ 1,774,000 $ - $ (174493) $ 1,599,507 $ 161,525
Recovery Zone Economic
Development Bonds 25,335 - (2,667) 22,668 2,667
Compensated absences 738,363 487,597 (526,292) 699,668 476,688
OPEB accrued liability 1,133,724 148,485 (74,007) 1,208,202 -
Net pension liability (LGERS) 523,170 1,753,510 - 2,276,680 -
Total pension liability (LEOSSA) 737,427 631,625 - 1,369,052 -
Total governmental activities $ 4932019 $ 3,021,217 $ (777459) $ 7,175,777 $ 640,880
Business-Type Activities:
Installment notes payable $ 161,428 $ -3 (96,391) $ 65,037 $ 65,037
Revolving loan payable 1,589,923 208,759 (168,503) 1,630,179 178,941
Recovery Zone Economic
Development Bonds 3,166,665 - (333,333) 2,833,332 333,333
Compensated absences 345,946 307,067 (301,436) 351,577 351,577
OPEB accrued liability 669,272 86,528 (51,196) 704,604 -
Net pension liability (LGERS) 320,652 1,074,732 - 1,395,384 -
Total business-type activities $ 6,253,886 §$ 1,677,086 $ (950,859) $§ 6,980,113 $ 928,888
Business-Type Activities
Major Enterprise Funds:
Current
Portion of
Balance Balance Long-Term
July1,2016 Additions Retirements June 30,2017 Debt
Water Fund:
Compensated absences $ 78,106 $ 58,149 § (55,015) $ 81,240 $ 81,240
OPEB accrued liability 114,043 16,024 (14,802) 115,265 -
Net pension liability (LGERS) 59,067 197,978 - 257,045 -
Total Water Fund activities  $ 251,216 $ 272,151 $ (69,817) $ 453550 $ 81,240

66



CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Sewer Fund:

Revolving loan payable
Compensated absences

OPEB accrued liability

Net pension liability (LGERS)

Total Sewer Fund activities

Electric Fund:

Installment notes payable
Compensated absences

OPEB accrued liability

Net pension liability (LGERS)
Total Electric Fund activities

Stormwater Fund:
Recovery Zone Economic
Development Bonds payable

Current
Portion of
Balance Balance Long-Term
July 1,2016  Additions Retirements  June 30,2017 Debt
$ 1,589,923 § 208,759 § (168,503) $ 1,630,179 § 178,941
68,888 47,192 (45,045) 71,035 71,035
129,745 17,092 (4,934) 141,903 -
59,067 197,978 - 257,045 -
$ 1,847,623 § 471,021 § (218482) § 2,100,162 $ 249,976
Current
Portion of
Balance Balance Long-Term
July 1,2016  Additions Retirements June 30, 2017 Debt
$ 149306 $ - $ (89,146) $ 60,160 $ 60,160
142,799 167,765 (171,339) 139,225 139,225
283,241 37,388 (21,592) 299,037 -
135,011 452,519 - 587,530 -
$ 710,357 $§ 657,672 $§  (282,077) § 1,085,952 § 199,385
Current
Portion of
Balance Balance Long-Term
July 1,2016  Additions Retirements  June 30,2017 Debt
$ 3,166,665 $ - $ (333333) § 2,833,332 § 333,333
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Nonmajor Enterprise Funds:

Current
Portion of
Balance Balance Long-Term
July1,2016 Additions Retirements June 30,2017 Debt

Airport Fund:
Compensated absences $ 1,850 $ 1,831 $ (800) $ 2881 § 2881
OPEB accrued liability - 1,068 - 1,068 -
Total Airport Fund $ 1,850 § 2,899 $ (800) $ 3,949 $ 2,881
Current
Portion of
Balance Balance Long-Term
July1,2016 Additions Retirements June 30,2017 Debt
Solid Waste Fund:
Compensated absences $ 41367 § 26371 $ (25,163) $ 4575 § 42,575
OPEB accrued liability 93,681 10,683 (9,868) 94,496 -
Net pension liability (LGERS) 50,630 169,694 - 220,324 -
Total Solid Waste Fund $ 185,678 $§ 206,748 $ (35,031) § 357,395 § 42,575
Current
Portion of
Balance Balance Long-Term
July1,2016 Additions Retirements June 30,2017 Debt
Cemetery Fund:
Installment notes payable $ 12,122 $ - 3 (7,245) $ 4,877 $ 4,877
Compensated absences 12,936 5,758 (4,073) 14,621 14,621
OPEB accrued liability 48,562 4,273 - 52,835 -
Net pension liability (LGERS) 16,877 56,563 - 73,440 -
Total Cemetery Fund $ 90,497 § 66,594 § (11,318) $ 145,773 $ 19,498

Compensated absences, net pension obligation, and OPEB have been liquidated in the General
Fund. Compensated absences are accounted for on an LIFO basis, assuming that employees are
taking leave as it is earned.

At June 30, 2017, the City has a legal debt margin of approximately $62,989,585.
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Net Investment in Capital Assets

Net investment in capital assets at June 30, 2017 is computed as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation $ 19,864,739 $ 73,518,256
Less: capital debt
Gross debt 1,622,175 4,528,548
Net investment in capital assets $ 18,242,564 § 68,989,708

Interfund Balances and Activity
Due To/From Other Funds:

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Receivable
Fund
Payable Fund Water Fund Purpose
Sewer Fund $ 631,841 Advances of grant expenditures

Transfers To/From Other Funds:

The composition of interfund transfers for the year ending June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Transfers Out

Major Nonmajor
General  Governmental Major Major Major

Fund Fund Hectric Water Sewer Total
Transfers In:
Major General Fund $ - 3 167,857 $1,118,859 $ 131,063 $ 99,632 $ 1,517,411
Nonmajor governmental funds 396,289 - 65,000 17,500 17,500 496,289
Nonmajor enterprise funds 118,656 - 72,813 - - 191,469
Major water - - - - 111,540 111,540
Total $ 514945 $ 167,857 $1,256,672 $ 148,563 $228,672 $ 2,316,709
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Transfers to and from the General Fund to the Public Safety Capital Reserve Fund were for
support for debt payments. Other transfers to and from the General Fund to the nonmajor
governmental funds were transfers to close out the various projects and City contributions to
the various projects. Transfers from the Electric Fund to the General Fund were annual
dividends from the Electric Fund and the Electric Fund's share of economic development
expenses and fire engine purchase. Transfers from the Water Fund to the General Fund were
for the annual Highway 17 debt service and the Water Fund's share of economic development
expenses. The transfers from the Sewer Fund to the General Fund were for the annual
Highway 17 debt service and the Sewer Fund's share of economic development expenses.

Jointly Governed Organizations
Mid-East Commission

The City, in conjunction with five counties and 28 other municipalities, established the Mid-
East Commission (the “Commission”). The participating governments established the
Commission to coordinate various funding received from federal and State agencies. Each
participating government appoints one member to the Commission’s governing board. The
City paid membership fees of $3,142 to the Commission during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017.

North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency

The City, in conjunction with 32 other local governments, is a member of the North Carolina
Eastern Municipal Power Agency (the “Agency”). The Agency was formed to enable
municipalities that own electric distribution systems to finance, construct, own, operate, and
maintain generation and transmission facilities. Each participating government appoints one
Commissioner to the Agency’s governing board. The 32 members, who receive power from
the Agency, have signed power sales agreements to purchase a specified share of the power
generated by the Agency. Except for the power sales purchase requirements, no local
government participant has any obligations, entitlement, or residual interest. The City’s
purchases of power for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 was $22,230,242.

On July 31, 2015, the NCEMPA completed the sale of most of its electricity generating assets
to Duke Energy. These proceeds were used to defease the NCEMPA'’s outstanding revenue
bonds. The NCEMPA entered into contractual arrangements with its member cities and Duke
Energy. Under these arrangements, the NCEMPA will supply wholesale power to its members
and will purchase this power from Duke Energy. In addition to payments made for electric
power, NCEMPA members will make payments for their share of the debt service on the
NCEMPA’s new revenue bonds.
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Related Party Transactions

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the City of Washington contributed $35,000 to the
Tourism Development Authority to assist in the operation of the Civic Center, per the Lease
and Management agreement between the City and the Authority. The City also remitted
$269,652 during fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, which is the collection fee of three percent of
gross receipts derived from the rental of any room, lodging, or accommodation furnished by a
hotel, motel, inn, tourist camp, or similar place within the City.

Joint Ventures

The City and the members of the City’s fire department each appoint two members to the five-
member local Board of Trustees for the Firemen’s Relief Fund. The State Insurance
Commissioner appoints one additional member to the local Board of Trustees. The Firemen’s
Relief Fund is funded by a portion of the fire and lightning insurance premiums that insurers
remit to the State. The State passes these monies to the local board of the Firemen’s Relief
Fund. The funds are used to assist firefighters in various ways. The City obtains an ongoing
financial benefit from the Fund for the on-behalf of payments for salaries and fringe benefits
made to members of the City’s fire department by the Board of Trustees. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2017, the City reported revenues and expenditures for the payments of $6,983
made through the Firemen’s Relief Fund. The participating governments do not have any
equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity has been reflected in the financial statements at
June 30, 2017. The Firemen’s Relief Fund does not issue separate audited financial statements.
Instead, the local Board of Trustees files an annual financial report with the State Firemen’s
Association. This report can be obtained from the Association at 323 West Jones Street, Suite
401, Raleigh, North Carolina 27603.

Related Organization

The Board of the City of Washington Housing Authority is appointed by the City of
Washington. The City is accountable for the Housing Authority because it appoints the
governing board; however, the City is not financially accountable for the Housing Authority.

Federal and State-Assisted Programs

In 2010, the Department of Transportation, as part of a Highway 17 expansion project, moved
water and sewer lines in the City of Washington at a cost of $1,687,430 and determined that the
City is responsible for the cost of these relocations. The City is contesting the responsibility.
As a result, the State began reducing the City’s annual Powell Bill grant allocation in fiscal
year 2010 by $112,495, which represents one fifteenth of the utility relocation cost. No
additional liability has been booked for this relocation cost.
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Change In Accounting Principles/Restatement

The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. Statement 73,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not Within the
Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67
and 68, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The implementation of the statement required
the City to record beginning total pension liability and the effects on net position of benefit
payments and administrative expenses paid by the City to the Law Enforcement Officers’
Special Separation Allowance during the measurement period. As a result, net position for
governmental activities decreased $564,787.
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Required Supplemental Financial Data

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted accounting
principles.

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability (LEO)

Schedule of Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll (LEO)
Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
Notes to the Required Schedules for the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) for the Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS)

Contributions for the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS)
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

Schedule A-1

Beginning balance

Service cost

Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Benefit payments

Ending balance of the total pension liability

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior December 31.

73

2017

$

1,347,579
49,469
47,306

(30,360)
(44,942)

$

1,369,052




Schedule A-2
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY AS A PERCENTAGE OF COVERED PAYROLL

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

2017
Total pension liability $ 1,369,052
Covered payroll 1,692,125
Total pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 80.91%

Notes to the Schedules:
The City of Washington has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4of GASB

Statement 73 to pay related benefits.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Liability Unfunded UAAL as a

Actuarial Value of (AAL) - Projected AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Valuation Assets Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (©) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/2010  $ -5 3,377,142 $ 3,377,142 0.00% $ 9,286,875 36.40%
12/31/2012 - 3,981,807 3,981,807 0.00% 9,134,362 43.60%
12/31/2014 - 4,653,806 4,653,806 0.00% 9,629,860 48.33%
06/30/2016 - 3,927,101 3,927,101 0.00% 9,149,850 42.90%

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual
Required Percentage
Year Ended Contribution of ARC
June 30 (ARC) Contributed
2012 $ 338,037 24.63%
2013 319,046 36.80%
2014 319,046 36.80%
2015 359,357 34.55%
2016 359,357 34.55%
2017 312,983 65.94%

Notes to the Required Schedules:
The information presented above was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the dates indicated.

Additional information as of the latest valuation follows:

Valuation date 06/30/2016

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay, closed
Remaining amortization period 30 years

Amortization factor 26.1695

Asset valuation method Market value of assets
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return * 4%

Pre-medicare trend rate 7.75% - 5.00%

Year of ultimate trend rate 2022

* Includes inflation at 3.00%
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Schedule A-4
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS *

Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System

2017 2016 2015 2014
City's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 0.17302% 0.18802% 0.19138% 0.19320%
City's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) ($) $(3,672,064) $ (523,170) $(1,128,655) $ 2,328,802
City's covered-employee payroll $ 8,943,238 $10,055,380 $ 9,991,016 $ 9,352,659
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of its covered-employee payroll (41.06%) (5.20%) (11.30%) 24.90%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability** 91.47% 98.09% 102.64% 94.35%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.
Pension schedules in the required supplementary information are inteded to show information for ten years
and that additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes available.

** This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the LGERS plan.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
CITY OF WASHINGTON'S CONTRIBUTIONS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS

Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System

2017 2016 2015 2014
Contractually required contribution $ 784,712 $ 596,514 $ 713,653 $ 708,333
Contributions in relation to the contractually required
contribution 784,712 596,514 713,653 708,333
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ -
City of Washington's covered-employee payroll $10,586,622 $8,943,238 $10,055,380 $ 9,991,016
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 7.41% 6.67% 7.10% 7.09%

* Pension schedules in the required supplementary information are intended to show information for ten years
and that additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes available.
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Major Governmental Fund

General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government
which are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another
fund. The City has legally adopted an Economic Development Fund. Under GASB 54 guidance the
Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund is consolidated in the General Fund.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS - GENERAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2016

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net

Due from other funds
Inventories

Prepaid items

Restricted cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Customer deposits

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Taxes receivable

EMS receivable

Other accounts receivable

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund Balances:

Non-spendable, not in spendable form:
Inventories

Prepaid items

Restricted:

Stabilization by State statute
Restricted, all other

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances
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2017 2016
7,359,414 § 6,265,591
121,136 178,502
1,579,835 1,518,157
- 16,934
71,783 77,837
- 98,748

5,045 2,210
9,137,213 $ 8,157,979
362,238 $ 453,053
5,045 2,210
367,283 455,263
121,136 178,502
220,759 212,763
26,373 41,579
368,268 432,844
71,783 77,837
- 98,748
1,456,088 1,413,315
171,075 197,626
2,521 2,521

- 148,100
6,700,195 5,331,725
8,401,662 7,269,872
9,137,213 $ 8,157,979




Schedule 2
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND CONSOLIDATED

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Economic
Development
General Capital
Fund Reserve Fund Eliminations Total
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes $ 4,526,986 $ -3 -3 4,526,986
Other taxes and licenses 2,850,545 - - 2,850,545
Unrestricted intergovernmental 2,043,145 - - 2,043,145
Restricted intergovernmental 721,910 - - 721,910
Permits and fees 122,492 - - 122,492
Sales and services 1,107,998 - - 1,107,998
Investment earnings 41,418 - - 41,418
Miscellaneous 197,392 - - 197,392
Total revenues 11,611,886 - - 11,611,886
Expenditures:
General government 1,836,094 - - 1,836,094
Public safety 6,027,734 - - 6,027,734
Transportation 959,602 - - 959,602
Environmental protection 371,084 - - 371,084
Cultural and recreation 2,066,701 - - 2,066,701
Debt service:
Principal retirement 177,160 - - 177,160
Interest and fees 44,187 - - 44,187
Total expenditures 11,482,562 - - 11,482,562
Revenues over (under) expenditures 129,324 - - 129,324
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds 1,517,411 328,336 (328,336) 1,517,411
Transfers to other funds (514,945) (328,336) 328,336 (514,945)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,002,466 - - 1,002,466
Net change in fund balances 1,131,790 - - 1,131,790
Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1 7,267,351 2,521 - 7,269,872
End of year - June 30 $ 8,399,141 $ 2,521 $ - 3 8,401,662
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Taxes $ 4328958 $§ 4,492,113 § 163,155 $§ 4,301,975
Police station tax 171,854 - (171,854) -
Penalties and interest 40,000 34,873 (5,127) 38,470
Total 4,540,812 4,526,986 (13,826) 4,340,445
Other Taxes and Licenses:
Local option sales tax 2,316,626 2,475,562 158,936 2,330,383
Local occupancy tax 250,000 277,992 27,992 259,553
Automotive licenses 45,000 46,293 1,293 47,080
Rental vehicle tax 17,000 21,402 4,402 19,929
Privilege licenses 400 1,311 911 1,504
PEG channel tax 28,000 27,985 (15) 27,972
Total 2,657,026 2,850,545 193,519 2,686,421
Unrestricted Intergovernmental:
Payment in lieu of taxes 670,500 670,500 - 665,067
Franchise tax 1,300,000 1,261,970 (38,030) 1,284,505
Beer and wine tax 45,000 43,628 (1,372) 42,419
Court costs and fines 3,000 3,491 491 3,951
ABC Board distributions 18,000 22,468 4,468 28,396
Public housing payment 34,829 41,088 6,259 34,829
Total 2,071,329 2,043,145 (28,184) 2,059,167
Restricted Intergovernmental:
Local forfeiture 1,000 1,372 372 2,374
Powell Bill 180,736 176,392 (4,344) 180,736
Beaufort County - library 7,800 7,800 - 7,800
Beaufort County - recreation 15,732 20,054 4,322 15,732
Controlled substance tax 4,000 6,492 2,492 3,438
Beaufort County - rescue squad 154,172 154,172 - 151,149
Washington Park - firefighting 39,127 39,127 - 38,360
State reimbursement for Medicaid EMS 195,000 172,142 (22,858) 159,607
State aid to public libraries 7,000 9,475 2,475 10,077
Mid-East Commission - recreation 32,209 36,013 3,804 38,654
Governor's Crime Commission grant 23,829 20,842 (2,987) -
Hurricane Irene FEMA grant 226,557 37,028 (189,529) -
Other grants 2,482 41,001 38,519 47,311
Total 889,644 721,910 (167,734) 655,238

80



CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Permits and Fees:

Fire permit and inspection fees
Building permits

Total

Sales and Services:

Rents

Fire contracts

Public works fees
Administrative charges -gas
Garbage collection and penalties
Recreation fees and assessments
Sale of materials and property
Municipal citations

Grass mowing and lot cleaning
Rescue squad

Library fees and fines
Development filing fees
Aquatic Center

Contracted police services
Paving assessments

Other

Total

Investment Earnings:
Interest

Miscellaneous:
Contributions
Other

Total

Total revenues

Expenditures:

General Government:

City Council:

Salaries and employee benefits
Professional services

Other operating expenditures
Election expenses

Total

Schedule 3

Page 2 of 10
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
2,000 4,110 2,110 2,960
60,000 118,382 58,382 92,692
62,000 122,492 60,492 95,652
77,674 42,855 (34,819) 43,761
1,400 1,480 80 1,479
500 5,231 4,731 1,425
11,000 19,752 8,752 12,144
- (10) (10) -
138,460 141,941 3,481 109,779
5,000 14,807 9,807 26,400
2,000 1,445 (555) 2,920
4,000 3,246 (754) 9,285
628,451 712,531 84,080 713,875
21,000 18,565 (2,435) 21,471
1,000 1,325 325 1,415
74,400 107,308 32,908 98,313
20,000 30,308 10,308 34,526
2,573 7,192 4,619 4,403
20 22 2 35
987,478 1,107,998 120,520 1,081,231
33,507 41,418 7,911 36,861
41,261 66,788 25,527 35,690
23,550 130,604 107,054 108,592
64,811 197,392 132,581 144,282
11,306,607 11,611,886 305,279 11,099,297
33,689 32,549 1,140 31,220
8,775 7,165 1,610 8,789
15,455 8,684 6,771 6,961
- - - 5,451
57,919 48,398 9,521 52,421
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Mayor's Office:

Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures
Election expenses

Total

City Manager:

Salaries and employee benefits
Professional services

Other operating expenditures
Total

Human Resources:

Salaries and employee benefits
Professional services

Other operating expenditures
Maintenance and repairs
Contracted services

Total

Tourism Director:

Salaries and employee benefits
Professional services

Other operating expenditures
Total

Finance Director:

Salaries and employee benefits
Professional services

Other operating expenditures
Total

Purchasing and Supply:
Salaries and employee benefits
Professional services

Other operating expenditures
Maintenance and repairs
Capital outlay

Total
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2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
11,791 11,393 398 11,859
1,860 1,035 825 1,517
- - - 970
13,651 12,428 1,223 14,346
297,990 296,959 1,031 259,519
500 - 500 233
16,380 12,596 3,784 13,880
314,870 309,555 5,315 273,632
257,508 254,312 3,196 255,110
5,655 5,403 252 4,766
68,181 62,116 6,065 51,117
3,410 3,013 397 602
60,500 59,913 587 25,000
395,254 384,757 10,497 336,595
114,546 110,418 4,128 107,878
200 196 4 193
2,000 1,396 604 2,649
116,746 112,010 4,736 110,720
421,491 419,654 1,837 431,240
81,000 75,503 5,497 87,164
15,685 13,061 2,624 13,412
518,176 508,218 9,958 531,816
121,251 118,336 2,915 119,138
90 90 - 70
23,783 22,526 1,257 14,336
2,494 2,438 56 25,855
- - - 51,482
147,618 143,390 4,228 210,881
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Customer Service:
Salaries and employee benefits 327,166 324,531 2,635 335,758
Professional services 17,160 17,159 1 5,048
Other operating expenditures 316,867 308,170 8,697 274,051
Total 661,193 649,860 11,333 614,857
Billing Department:
Salaries and employee benefits 84,637 83,888 749 81,034
Other operating expenditures 86,280 81,704 4,576 83,382
Total 170,917 165,592 5,325 164,416
Information Services:
Salaries and employee benefits 78,086 77,817 269 75,255
Contract services 160,089 157,685 2,404 136,944
Other operating expenditures 80,016 74,106 5,910 35,695
Maintenance and repairs 6,884 6,460 424 10,124
Capital outlay 25,000 24,670 330 42,625
Total 350,075 340,738 9,337 300,643
Municipal Building:
Salaries and employee benefits 82,439 80,456 1,983 53,336
Contracted services 6,610 6,306 304 6,741
Other operating expenditures 67,311 66,105 1,206 58,098
Maintenance and repairs 110,606 102,429 8,177 42,394
Professional services 35 34 1 -
Total 267,001 255,330 11,671 160,569
Legal Services:
Professional services 142,000 135,699 6,301 221,623
Non-Departmental:
Other operating expenditures 568,115 473,786 94,329 629,537
Maintenance and repairs 1,000 794 206 794
Capital outlay - - - 131,786
Hurricane Irene FEMA expenses 226,557 39,268 187,289 -
Contingency 63,396 - 63,396 -
Total 859,068 513,848 345,220 762,117
Economic Development:
Operating expenditures 217,862 159,072 58,790 102,550
Professional services 5,000 - 5,000 19,000
Total 222,862 159,072 63,790 121,550
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Planning/Zoning:

Salaries and employee benefits
Professional services

Contract services

Other operating expenditures
Capital outlay

Total

Code Enforcement/Inspections:

Salaries and employee benefits
Contract services

Other operating expenditures
Maintenance and repairs

Total

Reimbursement:
Enterprise funds
Tourism Authority
Total

Total general government

Public Safety:

Police:

Salaries and employee benefits
Professional services

Other operating expenditures
Maintenance and repairs
Contracted services

Capital outlay

Total

E-911 Communication:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures
Maintenance and repairs

Total

Schedule 3
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2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
296,820 294,866 1,954 278,403
32,000 31,774 226 13,847
600 - 600 -
18,540 17,961 579 14,919
1,700 - 1,700 27,900
349,660 344,601 5,059 335,069
225,298 218,089 7,209 221,186
18,260 17,386 874 15,538
43,440 23,753 19,687 50,026
2,900 2,177 723 2,531
289,898 261,405 28,493 289,281
(2,391,394) (2,391,394) - (2,260,292)
(119,941) (117,413) (2,528) (110,721)
(2,511,335) (2,508,807) (2,528) (2,371,013)
2,365,573 1,836,094 529,479 2,129,523
2,409,216 2,339,634 69,582 2,294,319
5,700 4,297 1,403 8,556
385,750 343,553 42,197 339,108
162,100 104,937 57,163 96,049
34,000 28,387 5,613 24,381
43,829 20,842 22,987 49
3,040,595 2,841,650 198,945 2,762,462
271,896 262,805 9,091 256,328
37,400 21,279 16,121 21,692
9,360 5,649 3,711 7,697
318,656 289,733 28,923 285,717
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Fire:
Salaries and employee benefits 479,509 477,447 2,062 472,608
Professional services 7,533 7,368 165 6,450
Contracted services 2,100 2,100 - 1,980
Other operating expenditures 512,903 498,781 14,122 145,586
Maintenance and repairs 71,624 69,453 2,171 68,793
Capital outlay 19,000 18,709 291 -
Contribution to Fireman’s Association 2,405 804 1,601 3,979
Total 1,095,074 1,074,662 20,412 699,396
Rescue:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,575,255 1,575,032 223 1,547,149
Professional services 54,951 54,850 101 51,351
Other operating expenditures 171,144 168,997 2,147 246,357
Maintenance and repairs 21,460 21,190 270 23,611
Capital outlay 13,100 1,620 11,480 28,304
Total 1,835,910 1,821,689 14,221 1,896,772
Total public safety 6,290,235 6,027,734 262,501 5,644,347
Transportation:
Street Maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits 333,788 314,756 19,032 310,857
Professional services 92,781 87,415 5,366 74,241
Other operating expenditures 78,620 75,841 2,779 87,382
Maintenance and repairs 53,600 49,473 4,127 38,323
Capital outlay - - - 9,703
Total 558,789 527,485 31,304 520,506
Street Construction - Powell Bill:
Salaries and employee benefits 108,300 101,356 6,944 107,378
Professional services 1,000 937 63 128
Other operating expenditures 114,455 95,297 19,158 40,677
Maintenance and repairs 23,842 19,851 3,991 10,557
Contracted services 126,384 126,384 - 8,119
Total 373,981 343,825 30,156 166,859
Street Lighting:
Street lighting services - - - 136,426
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page 7ot 10
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Equipment Services:
Salaries and employee benefits 83,307 37,962 45,345 85,583
Professional services 150 136 14 132
Other operating expenditures 41,920 35,802 6,118 61,977
Maintenance and repairs 5,400 2,422 2,978 4,742
Capital outlay 12,000 11,970 30 -
Total 142,777 88,292 54,485 152,434
Total transportation 1,075,547 959,602 115,945 976,225
Environmental Protection:
Public Works Director:
Salaries and employee benefits 78,575 78,221 354 76,276
Professional services - - - 108
Other operating expenditures 2,334 1,499 835 2,049
Total 80,909 79,720 1,189 78,433
Drainage Improvements:
Salaries and employee benefits 291,323 291,310 13 295,727
Other operating expenditures 54 54 - 207
Total 291,377 291,364 13 295,934
Total environmental protection 372,286 371,084 1,202 374,367
Cultural and Recreational:
Recreation Centers:
Salaries and employee benefits 103,493 102,775 718 103,573
Professional services 725 705 20 480
Other operating expenditures 27,960 26,805 1,155 24,218
Maintenance and repairs 43,530 41,682 1,848 40,970
Programs 29,980 27,686 2,294 24,104
Capital outlay - - - 64,464
Total 205,688 199,653 6,035 257,809
Senior Citizens Programs:
Salaries and employee benefits 122,446 112,266 10,180 149,601
Professional services 2,300 780 1,520 144
Other operating expenditures 27,440 24,039 3,401 20,549
Programs 16,349 15,607 742 15,519
Maintenance and repairs 24,990 20,506 4,484 21,198
Capital outlay - - - 5,894
Total 193,525 173,198 20,327 212,905
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page 8 of 10
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Recreation Administration:
Salaries and employee benefits 79,245 78,735 510 76,248
Professional services 1,050 951 99 408
Other operating expenditures 48,450 42235 6,215 45,737
Maintenance and repairs 11,400 10,149 1,251 15,806
Total 140,145 132,070 8,075 138,199
Library:
Salaries and employee benefits 272,091 267,597 4,494 272,697
Contract services 33,364 28,778 4,586 32,665
Professional services 500 302 198 400
Other operating expenditures 108,090 106,607 1,483 100,492
Maintenance and repairs 16,218 16,210 8 4,868
Total 430,263 419,494 10,769 411,122
Parks and Grounds Maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits 267,654 263,906 3,748 265,850
Professional services 806 741 65 6,652
Contracted services 15,560 14,060 1,500 12,500
Other operating expenditures 106,571 102,214 4,357 93,536
Maintenance and repairs 106,626 101,746 4,880 119,676
Capital outlay 196,478 101,797 94,681 97,628
Total 693,695 584,464 109,231 595,842
Waterfront Docks:
Salaries and employee benefits 58,184 54,982 3,202 55,239
Professional services 400 176 224 208
Other operating expenditures 38,950 17,647 21,303 32,357
Maintenance and repairs 14,970 11,423 3,547 3,957
Capital outlay 50,000 45,844 4,156 -
Total 162,504 130,072 32,432 91,761
Contributions to OQutside Agencies:
Zion Shelter 7,650 7,650 - 7,650
BHM Library 7,800 7,800 - 7,800
Boys and Girls Club 12,960 12,960 - 14,400
The Blind Center 1,012 1,012 - 1,125
Purpose of God 16,200 16,200 - 18,000
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Right Flight
Eagle Wings
Special Olympics
Pamlico Pals
Sound River
Corner Stone
Total

Civic Center:

Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures
Maintenance and repairs
Contracted services
Professional services

Total

Aquatic Center:

Salaries and employee benefits
Professional services

Other operating expenditures
Maintenance and repairs
Program expenses

Capital outlay

Total

Reimbursement:
Civic Center
Library Trust Fund
Total

Total cultural and recreation
Debt Service:

Principal retirement

Interest and fees

Total debt service

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Schedule 3

Page 9 of 10
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
2,835 2,835 - 3,150
810 810 - 900
3,024 - 3,024 -
4,788 - 4,788 -
24,024 - 24,024 -
8,100 8,100 - 9,000
89,203 57,367 31,836 62,025
57,170 46,687 10,483 60,728
2,250 772 1,478 8,149
- - - 10,435
- - - 40,000
200 70 130 70
59,620 47,529 12,091 119,382
152,906 132,809 20,097 152,453
5,750 893 4,857 622
124,704 117,529 7,175 133,356
51,803 45,722 6,081 67,411
890 749 141 -
121,142 77,774 43,368 -
457,195 375,476 81,719 353,842
(64,047) (51,947) (12,100) (62,125)
(600) (675) 75 (702)
(64,647) (52,622) (12,025) (62,827)
2,367,191 2,066,701 300,490 2,180,060
177,160 177,160 - 205,250
44,189 44,187 2 48,446
221,349 221,347 2 253,696
12,692,181 11,482,562 1,209,619 11,558,218
(1,385,574) 129,324 1,514,898 (458,921)
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page 10 of 10

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer From:
From Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund 328,336 328,336 - 177,050
From Electric Fund 908,723 908,723 - 654,281
From Water Fund 71,963 71,963 - 71,963
From Sewer Fund 40,532 40,532 - 40,532
From Public Safety Capital Reserve Fund 166,970 166,970 - 166,970
From capital project funds - 887 887 149
Transfer To:
To Public Safety Capital Reserve Fund (166,970) (166,970) - (166,970)
To Airport Fund (118,656) (118,656) - -
To Facade Program Fund (20,000) (20,000) - (20,000)
To CPF (195,019) (195,019) - (56,926)
To other funds (14,300) (14,300) - -
Appropriated fund balance 383,995 - (383,995) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,385,574 1,002,466 (383,108) 867,049
Net change in fund balance $ - 1,131,790 $ 1,131,790 408,128
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 7,267,351 6,859,223
End of year - June 30 $ 8,399,141 $§ 7,267,351
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Schedule 4
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers to General Fund $ (335,518) $ (328,336) $ 7,182 § (177,050)
Transfers from Electric Fund 217,318 210,136 (7,182) 113,312
Transfer from Water Fund 59,100 59,100 - 31,869
Transfer from Sewer Fund 59,100 59,100 - 31,869
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balance $ - - S - -
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 2,521 2,521
End of year - June 30 $ 2,521 $ 2,521
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2017

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Notes receivable, net
Total assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Advances from grantros

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:

Non-spendable, not in spendable form:
Notes receivable

Perpetual maintenance - library care
Perpetual maintenance - cemetery care
Restricted:

Stabilization by State statute
Restricted, all other

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

Schedule 5

Special Revenue Capital Project Permanent
Fund Funds Funds Total

$ 19,330 § 1,407,276 § 549,853 § 1,976,459
- 7,176 - 7,176

191,385 - - 191,385

$ 210,715  § 1,414,452 § 549,853 § 2,175,020
$ -3 25214  § -5 25,214
- 1,500 - 1,500

- 26,714 - 26,714

191,385 - - 191,385

- - 95,395 95,395

- - 454,458 454,458

- 290,065 - 290,065

19,330 84,941 - 104,271

- 987,901 - 987,901

- 24,919 - 24,919
- (8%) - (8%)

210,715 1,387,738 549,853 2,148,306

$ 210,715 § 1,414,452 § 549,853 § 2,175,020
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

Environmental protection

Cultural and recreation

Economic and physical development
General government

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Schedule 6

Special Revenue Capital Project Permanent
Fund Funds Funds Total

$ 3,447 § 111,340 - 8 114,787
- 6,814 3,742 10,556

3,447 118,154 3,742 125,343

- - 3,067 3,067

- 262 675 937

- 338,539 - 338,539

- 96,105 - 96,105

- 434,906 3,742 438,648
3,447 (316,752) - (313,305)

- 496,289 - 496,289
- (167,857) - (167,857)

- 328,432 - 328,432

3,447 11,680 - 15,127

207,268 1,376,058 549,853 2,133,179

$ 210,715  § 1,387,738  § 549,853 § 2,148,306
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditures for particular purposes.

* CDBG Program Income Fund
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Schedule 7
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - CDBG PROGRAM INCOME FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Economic development loan repayments and interest ~ $ 5957 § 7,524 § 1,567 $ -
Expenditures:
Economic and physical development 5,957 - 5,957 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures $ - 7,524 § 7,524 -
Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis to
Modified Accrual Basis:
Current year economic development loan repayments (4,077) -
Net change in fund balance - modified accrual basis 3,447 -
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 207,268 207,268
End of year - June 30 $ 210,715 $ 207,268
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds account for funds to be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities.

* New Police Station Project Fund

» Public Safety Capital Reserve Fund

* Facade Program Fund

* Pedestrian Project Fund

*  Way Finding Project Fund

+ IDX Impressions Building Reuse Grant Fund
*  Washington Downtown Properties Fund

* Downtown Revitalization Fund

* Trillium Health Resources Grant Fund

* Hotel Project — New Age Properties Fund
* Havens Garden Park Pier Project

* Ribeyes Building Reuse Grant Fund

* Financial and Utility Software Project



Schedule 8

Page 1 of 2
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA 5
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2017
IDX
Impressions
New Police Public Safety Facade Building
Station Capital Reserve Program Way Finding Reuse
Fund Fund Fund Project Grant
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,044,429 $ 1,225  $ 26,169 $ 72,936 $ 1,500
Accounts receivable, net - - - 4,080 -
Total assets $ 1,044,429 $ 1,225  $ 26,169 $ 77,016 $ 1,500
Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 -
Advances from grantors - - - - 1,500
Total liabilities - - - - 1,500
Fund Balances:
Restricted:
Stabilization by State statute 105,485 - 1,250 75,868 -
Restricted, all other - - - - -
Committed 938,944 1,225 - 1,148 -
Assigned - - 24919 - -
Unassigned - - - - -
Total fund balances 1,044,429 1,225 26,169 77,016 -
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1,044,429 § 1225 § 26,169 $ 77,016 $ 1,500
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2017

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Advances from grantors

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:

Restricted:

Stabilization by State statute
Restricted, all other
Committed

Assigned

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Schedule 8
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Hotel Financial
Project - Havens Ribeyes and Utility Total
New Age Garden Building Billing Nonmajor
Downtown Property Park Reuse Software  Capital Project
Revitalization Fund Pier Grant Fund Funds
$ 1 $ 70,641 § 14300 $ 25,000 $ 151,075 $ 1,407,276
88 - - - 3,008 7,176
$ 89 $ 70,641 § 14300 $ 25,000 $ 154,083 $§ 1,414,452
$ 89 § - 8 - $ 25000 $ 125§ 25,214
- - - - - 1,500
89 - - 25,000 125 26,714
88 - - - 107,374 290,065
- 70,641 14,300 - - 84,941
- - - - 46,584 987,901
- - - - - 24,919
(88) - - - - (88)
- 70,641 14,300 - 153,958 1,387,738
$ 89 § 70,641 § 14300 $ 25,000 $ 154,083 § 1,414,452
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Schedule 9

Page 1 of 2
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA &
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
New Police Public Safety Facade Washington
Station Capital Reserve  Program Pedestrian Way Finding  Downtown
Fund Fund Fund Project Project Properties
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental $ -3 $ - 8 -3 -3 -
Investment earnings 6,408 3 21 - 319 -
Total revenues 6,408 3 21 - 319 -
Expenditures:
General government - - - - - -
Cultural and recreational - - - - - -
Economic and physical development - - 20,658 10,000 63,132 13,165
Total expenditures - - 20,658 10,000 63,132 13,165
Revenues over (under) expenditures 6,408 3 (20,637) (10,000) (62,813) (13,165)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 171,854 166,970 20,000 - 10,000 13,165
Transfers out - (166,970) - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 171,854 - 20,000 - 10,000 13,165
Net change in fund balances 178,262 3 (637) (10,000) (52,813) -
Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1 866,167 1,222 26,806 10,000 129,829 -
End of year - June 30 $ 1,044,429 § 1,225 § 26,169 $ - $ 77016 $ -
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures:

General government

Cultural and recreational

Economic and physical development
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Schedule 9
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Hotel Financial
Trillium  Project - Havens Ribeyes and Utility Total
Health New Age  Garden Building Billing Nonmajor
Downtown  Resources Property Park Reuse Software Capital Project
Revitalization Grant Fund Pier Grant Fund Funds

$ 94,340 $ - $ (8,000) $ - $ 25,000 $ - 111,340
- - - - - 63 6,814

94,340 - (8,000) - 25,000 63 118,154

- - - - - 96,105 96,105

- 262 - - - - 262

94,340 - 112,244 - 25,000 - 338,539

94,340 262 112,244 - 25,000 96,105 434,906
- (262) (120,244) - - (96,042) (316,752)

- - - 14,300 - 100,000 496,289
- (887) - - - - (167,857)

- (887) - 14,300 - 100,000 328,432

- (1,149) (120,244) 14,300 - 3,958 11,680

- 1,149 190,885 - - 150,000 1,376,058

$ - 8 - $ 70,641 § 14300 $ - $153,958 1,387,738
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Schedule 10
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - NEW POLICE STATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance

Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
Investment earnings $ 70,000 $ 33,276 $ 6,408 $ 39,684 $ (30,316)
Expenditures:
Public Safety:
Legal fees 20,000 14,889 - 14,889 5,111
Engineering fees 325,000 132,724 - 132,724 192,276
Equipment 110,000 - - - 110,000
Land acquisition 786,854 19,496 - 19,496 767,358
Total expenditures 1,241,854 167,109 - 167,109 1,074,745
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,171,854) (133,833) 6,408 (127,425) 1,044,429
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from General Fund 1,171,854 1,000,000 171,854 1,171,854 -
Net change in fund balance $ -3 866,167 178,262 $§ 1,044,429 $ 1,044,429
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 866,167
End of year - June 30 $§ 1,044,429
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Schedule 11
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - PUBLIC SAFETY CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Restricted Intergovernmental:
Investment earnings $ -5 3 8 38 2
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from General Fund 166,970 166,970 - 166,970
Transfers to General Fund (166,970) (166,970) - (166,970)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balance $ - 3 $ 3 2
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 1,222 1,220
End of year - June 30 $ 1,225 $ 1,222
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Schedule 12
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - FACADE PROGRAM FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Investment earnings $ - 8 21§ 21§ 16
Expenditures:
Economic Development:
Facade grants 26,000 20,658 5,342 18,000
Revenues over (under) expenditures (26,000) (20,637) 5,363 (17,984)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriated fund balance 6,000 - (6,000) -
Transfer from General Fund 20,000 20,000 - 20,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 26,000 20,000 (6,000) 20,000
Net change in fund balance $ - 637) $ (637) 2,016
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 26,806 24,790
End of year - June 30 $ 26,169 $ 26,806
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Schedule 13
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - PEDESTRIAN PROJECT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance

Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
Contribution from Pitt County $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ -3 10,000 $ -
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical Development:
Construction 10,000 - 10,000 10,000 -
Net change in fund balance $ - 3 10,000 (10,000) $ - 8 -
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 10,000

End of year - June 30 s -
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Schedule 14
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - WAY FINDING PROJECT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance

Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
Investment earnings $ - 8 742§ 319§ 1,061 § 1,061
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical Development:
Design 50,000 20,913 5,000 25,913 24,087
Installation 110,000 - 58,132 58,132 51,868
Total expenditures 160,000 20,913 63,132 84,045 75,955
Revenues over (under) expenditures (160,000) (20,171) (62,813) (82,984) 77,016
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds 160,000 150,000 10,000 160,000 -
Net change in fund balance $ - § 129,829 (52,813) § 77016 § 77,016
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 129,829
End of year - June 30 $ 77,016
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Schedule 15
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - IDX IMPRESSIONS BUILDING REUSE GRANT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance

Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
Building Reuse grant $ 500,000 $ - 8 -3 - $ (500,000)
Contributions 8,500 - - - (8,500)
Electricities grant 4,000 2,500 - 2,500 (1,500)
Total revenues 512,500 2,500 - 2,500 (510,000)
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical Development:
Grant administration 12,500 2,500 - 2,500 10,000
Building reuse 500,000 - - - 500,000
Total expenditures 512,500 2,500 - 2,500 510,000
Net change in fund balance $ -3 - - 8§ - $ -

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 -

End of year - June 30 s -
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Schedule 16
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - WASHINGTON DOWNTOWN PROPERTIES
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance
Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
Contributions $ 82,500 $ 48,000 $ - 8 48,000 $ (34,500)
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical Development:
Professional services 53,165 26,500 13,165 39,665 13,500
Legal 3,000 - - - 3,000
Engineering 19,500 8,376 - 8,376 11,124
Acquisition 23,000 23,000 - 23,000 -
Total expenditures 98,665 57,876 13,165 71,041 27,624
Revenues over (under) expenditures (16,165) (9,876) (13,165) (23,041) (6,876)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds 16,165 9,876 13,165 23,041 6,876
Net change in fund balance $ - 3 - - 8 - 8 -

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 -

End of year - June 30 s -
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Schedule 17
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance

Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
State grant $ 94,340 $ - $ 94,340 $ 94,340 $ -
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical Development:
Downtown improvements 94,340 - 94,340 94,340 -
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - - $ - 8 -

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 -

End of year - June 30 s -
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Schedule 18
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES GRANT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance

Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
Contributions 3,600 $ 3,600 - 8 3,600 $ -
Trillium Play Together grant 280,556 279,798 - 279,798 (758)
Total revenues 284,156 283,398 - 283,398 (758)
Expenditures:
Cultural and Recreation:
Playground equipment 284,156 282,249 262 282,511 1,645
Revenues over (under) expenditures - 1,149 (262) 887 887
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer to other funds - - (887) (887) (887)
Net change in fund balance - $ 1,149 (1,149) § -3 -
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 1,149

End of year - June 30
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - HOTEL PROJECT - NEW AGE PROPERTIES
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance

Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
Rural Infrastructure grant $ 100,000 $ - $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ -
Developer contributions 101,400 214,400 (108,000) 106,400 5,000
Total revenues 201,400 214,400 (8,000) 206,400 5,000
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical Development:
Construction 164,800 - 110,600 110,600 54,200
Engineer 24,500 - - - 24,500
Construction and administration 17,100 23,565 1,644 25,209 (8,109)
Total expenditures 206,400 23,565 112,244 135,809 70,591
Revenues over (under) expenditures (5,000) 190,835 (120,244) 70,591 (65,591)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds 5,000 50 - 50 (4,950)
Net change in fund balance $ - $ 190,885 (120,244) $ 70,641 § 70,641
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 190,885
End of year - June 30 $ 70,641
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Schedule 20
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - HAVENS GARDENS PARK PIER
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance

Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
Coastal Management grant $ 83,700 3 -5 - 8 - $  (83,700)
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical Development:
Professional services 5,000 - - - 5,000
Construction 93,000 - - - 93,000
Total expenditures 98,000 - - - 98,000
Revenues over (under) expenditures (14,300) - - - 14,300
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds 14,300 - 14,300 14,300 -
Net change in fund balance $ - 8 - 14300 $ 14,300 § 14,300
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 -
End of year - June 30 $ 14,300
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - RIBEYE'S BUILDING REUSE GRANT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance

Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
Building Reuse grant $ 25,000 $ -5 25,000 $ 25,000 $ -
City Match 1,250 - - - (1,250)
Total revenues 26,250 - 25,000 25,000 (1,250)
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical Development:
Construction 26,250 - 25,000 25,000 1,250
Net change in fund balance $ - 3 - - 8 - $ -

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 -

End of year - June 30 s -
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Schedule 22
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - FINANCIAL AND UTILITY SOFTWARE PROJECT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance

Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
Interest earnings $ - 8 -3 63 $ 63 $ 63
Expenditures:
General government:
Software 250,000 - 96,105 96,105 153,895
Revenues over (under) expenditures (250,000) - (96,042) (96,042) 153,958
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds 250,000 150,000 100,000 250,000 -
Net change in fund balance $ - $ 150,000 3,958 $ 153958 § 153,958
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 150,000
End of year - June 30 § 153,958
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Permanent Funds

Permanent Funds are used to account for the fiduciary relationship in which the trust corpus may
not be expended but must be kept intact.

Library Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the corpus of the George H. and
Laura E. Brown Trust which was transferred to the City for the benefit of the Brown
Library. Interest earned on the corpus is paid to the General Fund to help defray a portion
of the costs associated with the upkeep of the library.

Cemetery Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for payments which have been
received for the continued upkeep of certain lots within the City’s two cemeteries. Interest
earned on the corpus is paid to the Cemetery Fund to help defray a portion of the costs
associated with the upkeep of the cemeteries.
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Schedule 23
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2017
Total
Nonmajor
Library Cemetery Permanent
Fund Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 95,395 $ 454,458 $ 549,853
Fund Balances:
Non-spendable, not in spendable form:
Perpetual maintenance - library care $ 95395 $ -3 95,395
Perpetual maintenance - cemetery care - 454,458 454,458
Total fund balances 95,395 454,458 549,853
Total deferred inflows of resources and fund balances $ 95,395 § 454,458 § 549,853
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Revenues:
Interest earnings

Expenditures:

Current:

Environmental protection
Cultural and recreation

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30
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Total
Nonmajor
Library Cemetery Permanent
Fund Fund Funds
$ 675 § 3,067 $ 3,742
- 3,067 3,067
675 - 675
675 3,067 3,742
95,395 454,458 549,853
$ 95,395 $ 454,458 $ 549,853




Schedule 25
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUND - LIBRARY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

Revenues:

Interest earnings $ 700 $ 675 $ (25 $ 702
Expenditures:

Administration 700 675 25 702
Net change in fund balance $ - -3 - -
Fund Balance:

Beginning of year - July 1 95,395 95,395
End of year - June 30 $ 95,395 $ 95,395
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Schedule 26
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUND - CEMETERY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

Revenues:

Interest earnings $ 3,500 $ 3,067 $ (433) $ 3,104
Expenditures:

Administration 3,500 3,067 433 3,104
Net change in fund balance $ - -3 - -
Fund Balance:

Beginning of year - July 1 454,458 454,458
End of year - June 30 $ 454,458 $ 454,458
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Major Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises. The intent of the government’s council is that the costs of
providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges, or the government’s council has decided that the
periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes.

*  Water Fund - This fund is used to account for the City’s water utility operations.
* Sewer Fund - This fund is used to account for the City’s sewer utility operations.
* Electric Fund - This fund is used to account for the City’s electric utility operations.

* Stormwater Utility Fund - This fund is used to account for the City’s stormwater
operations.

» Water Capital Reserve Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of funds
for future water fund capital outlays.

+ EDA Water System Improvements Fund - This fund is used to account for the design and
construction of water infrastructure improvements.

* Springs Road Mobile Home Park Water System Fund — This fund is used to account for
the engineering and construction work associated with reworking the water system
associated with the Springs Road Mobile Home Park.

* Sewer Capital Reserve Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of funds
for future sewer fund capital outlays.

* EDA Sewer System Improvements Fund - This fund is used to account for the design and
construction of sewer infrastructure improvements.

*+ CWSRF Sewer Grant Fund - This fund is used to account for sanitary rehabilitation
financed by the Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Fund.

*  Wastewater Asset Inventory Grant Fund — This fund is used to account for a wastewater
asset inventory and assessment grant.

* Recovery Zone Bond Stormwater Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for the
accumulation of funds for storm water drainage improvements in the Jacks Creek, Cherry
Run, and Runyon Creek drainage basins.
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Schedule 27

CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of 4
ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

Operating Revenues:
Water sales
Other Operating Revenues:

$ 3,035,100 $ 2,838,029

$ (197,071) $ 3,189,163

Connection and reconnection fees 40,000 42,816 2,816 44,887
Water taps 3,200 24,375 21,175 15,262
Fire hydrants 13,660 13,660 - 13,660
Late penalty charges 20,000 22,490 2,490 22,759
Total operating revenues 3,111,960 2,941,370 (170,590) 3,285,731
Non-Operating Revenues:

Rents 37,320 35,723 (1,597) 20,076
Recovery of doubtful accounts 500 728 228 710
Interest earnings 8,000 15,060 7,060 11,394
Sale of surplus and scrap - 4,340 4,340 566
FEMA assistance 8,106 - (8,106) -
Miscellaneous 1,000 1,800 800 6,519
Total non-operating revenues 54,926 57,651 2,725 39,265
Total revenues 3,166,886 2,999,021 (167,865) 3,324,996
Operating Expenditures:

Water Administration:

Public Works Director:

Salaries and employee benefits 116,301 104,893 11,408 107,241
Supplies 1,500 911 589 1,288
Employee development 250 150 100 -
Telephone 775 687 88 424
Repair and maintenance - - - 4,435
Professional services 5,850 2,846 3,004 4,150
Total Public Works Director 124,676 109,487 15,189 117,538
Miscellaneous - Non-Departmental:

Workers’ compensation 6,254 5,712 542 3,516
Unemployment wages 10,000 - 10,000 -
Insurance and bonds 38,000 33,335 4,665 35,964
Printing and publishing 2,700 2,052 648 2,410
Utility service fee - General Fund 529,665 529,665 - 486,130
Utility service fee - Electric Fund 162,095 162,095 - 162,095
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Repair and maintenance

Hurricane Irene FEMA grant expenses

Contingency
Other expenses

Total miscellaneous - non-departmental

Total water administration

Water Treatment and Distribution:

Water Meter Services:
Salaries and employee benefits
Telephone

Employee development
Repair and maintenance
Supplies

Materials

OSHA safety mandates
Professional services

Total water meter services

Water Treatment Plant:
Salaries and employee benefits
OSHA safety mandates
Employee development
Telephone

Printing and publishing
Water and electric services
Repair and maintenance
Supplies

Chemicals and lab supplies
Dues and subscriptions
Professional services
Contract services
Employee advertisement
Total water treatment plant

Schedule 27

Page 2 of 4
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
500 397 103 397
8,106 241 7,865 -
12,565 - 12,565 -
8,897 2,376 6,521 12,224
778,782 735,873 42,909 702,736
903,458 845,360 58,098 820,274
103,622 99,384 4,238 102,235
2,400 2,216 184 1,671
1,440 1,440 - 785
109,700 101,100 8,600 103,048
1,950 1,265 685 1,250
5,660 5,637 23 1,459
500 305 195 120
500 185 315 1,518
225,772 211,532 14,240 212,086
479,387 470,085 9,302 469,680
2,500 1,462 1,038 1,968
3,000 2,883 117 3,440
7,920 7,916 4 4,762
750 440 310 533
250,000 218,201 31,799 228,984
155,055 141,815 13,240 148,158
5,000 4,949 51 5,145
403,535 274,894 128,641 242,349
7,525 5,606 1,919 6,558
3,000 2,439 561 13,640
12,000 7,472 4,528 7,930
670 660 10 -
1,330,342 1,138,822 191,520 1,133,147
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Water Distribution Maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits
Contract services

Water and electric services
Employee advertising

Repair and maintenance

Supplies
Materials

Professional services
Total water distribution maintenance

Total water treatment and distribution

Capital outlay

Total operating expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriated net position

Transfers to:

Capital Project Fund
Water Capital Reserve Fund
Economic Development Fund

General Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses

Schedule 27
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2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

148,606 148,089 517 139,713
89,881 89,881 - 86,458
7,430 6,344 1,086 7,009

25 - 25 -
40,287 28,028 12,259 10,340
1,710 1,709 1 1,441
11,705 11,685 20 13,875
225 222 3 208
299,869 285,958 13,911 259,044
1,855,983 1,636,312 219,671 1,604,277
234,610 168,647 65,963 224,775
2,994,051 2,650,319 343,732 2,649,326
172,835 348,702 175,867 675,670
15,728 - (15,728) -
(57,500) (17,500) 40,000 (18,182)
- - - (43,172)
(59,100) (59,100) - (31,869)
(71,963) (71,963) - (71,963)
(172,835) (148,563) 24272 (165,186)
$ - $ 200,139 $ 200,139 $ 510,484
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Schedule 27
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page 4 of 4

ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis

(Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual Basis:
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ 200,139 § 510,484
Capital outlay 168,647 224,775
Change in compensated absences (3,134) (4,060)
Change in OPEB liability (1,222) (8,423)
Change in deferred outflows of resources - pension 177,721 -
Change in deferred inflows of resources - pension 15,745 -
Change in net pension liability (197,978) -
Change in deferred revenues (63,544) -
Depreciation (701,228) (700,495)
Bad debt provision 7,809 (6,324)
Inventory adjustment (4,151) (524)
Loss on disposal of capital assets (1,751) -
Capital contributions 28,925 11,920
Transfer to Water Capital Reserve Fund - 43,172
Transfer from Sewer Capital Project 111,540 -
Capital contributions, revenue from:

Water Capital Reserve Fund 25,922 5,260
Water Capital Project Fund - 769,313

Cherry Road Water Extension Project - (103,399)
Pension expense - (20,054)
Deferred outflows of resources for contributions

made to pension plan in the current fiscal year - 41,756
Change in net position $  (236,560) $ 763,401
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of 4
ENTERPRISE FUND - SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Operating Revenues:
Sewer sales § 3,236,681 $ 3,316,047 $ 79,366 $ 3,232,197
Other Operating Revenues:
Sewer taps 5,000 25,525 20,525 10,525
Late penalty eharges 24,107 25,886 1,779 26,261
Total operating revenues 3,265,788 3,367,458 101,670 3,268,983
Non-Operating Revenues:
Recovery of doubtful accounts 500 1,296 796 955
Interest earnings 10,000 15,825 5,825 11,052
Sewer assessments 5,896 5,897 1 7,181
FEMA assistance 62,559 33,439 (29,120) -
Miscellaneous - 41 41 4,148
Total non-operating revenues 78,955 56,498 (22,457) 23,336
Total revenues 3,344,743 3,423,956 79,213 3,292,319
Operating Expenditures:
Sewer Administration:
Public Works Director:
Salaries and employee benefits 107,972 104,891 3,081 117,089
Supplies 500 140 360 367
Employee development 150 - 150 75
Dues and subscriptions - - - 4,100
Telephone 737 687 50 424
Total public works director 109,359 105,718 3,641 122,055
Miscellaneous - Non-Departmental:
Workers’ compensation 6,254 5,712 542 7,710
Printing and publishing 3,000 2,052 948 2,410
Insurance and bonds 45,500 38,349 7,151 36,540
Utility service fee - General Fund 570,305 570,305 - 538,077
Repair and maintenance 500 397 103 397
Other expenses 15,673 2,376 13,297 2,593
Utility service fee - Electric Fund 56,867 56,867 - 56,867
Hurricane Irene FEMA grant expenses 62,559 18,577 43,982 -
Contingency 10,092 - 10,092 -
Total miscellaneous - non-departmental 770,750 694,635 76,115 644,594
Total sewer administration 830,109 800,353 79,756 766,649
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page2 of 4
ENTERPRISE FUND - SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Waste Collection and Treatment:
Wastewater Treatment:
Salaries and employee benefits 462,293 453,081 9,212 459,788
Employee advertising 500 - 500 32
Employee development 3,300 3,292 8 3,856
Telephone 950 839 111 740
Printing and publishing 1,000 - 1,000 25
Water and electric service 285,094 285,093 1 264,036
Repair and maintenance 119,307 113,989 5,318 109,063
Supplies 94,906 72,300 22,606 78,485
Dues 6,600 6,491 109 6,039
Professional services 2,000 1,724 276 -
Contract services 116,700 103,354 13,346 85,327
Licenses and permits 7,050 6,910 140 5,560
OSHA safety mandates 2,500 1,249 1,251 2,572
Total wastewater treatment 1,102,200 1,048,322 53,878 1,015,523
Wastewater Collection Maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits 148,093 141,469 6,624 134,599
OSHA safety mandates 1,000 239 761 845
Employee development 800 110 690 894
Telephone 3,700 3,345 355 2,684
Repair and maintenance 20,500 18,100 2,400 10,343
Supplies 2,654 1,817 837 1,308
Materials 13,000 5,483 7,517 12,475
Contract services 65,650 43,309 22,341 35,534
Other expenses 1,146 1,146 - 4,207
Professional services 150 144 6 196
Total wastewater collection maintenance 256,693 215,162 41,531 203,085
Sewer Pumping Station:
Salaries and employee benefits 67,067 66,689 378 64,495
Water and electrical service 162,225 162,225 - 155,084
Repair and maintenance 75,470 54,289 21,181 93,379
Supplies 3,130 2,791 339 2,906
Chemicals 4,854 4,853 1 119
Professional services 2,000 1,177 823 1,132
Total sewer pumping station 314,746 292,024 22,722 317,115
Total waste collection and treatment 1,673,639 1,555,508 118,131 1,535,723
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page 3 of 4
ENTERPRISE FUND - SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

Debt Service:
State Loan:
Principal retirement 268,504 168,503 100,001 168,503
Interest 28,708 28,187 521 31,377
Total debt service 297,212 196,690 100,522 199,880
Capital outlay 373,961 311,572 62,389 238,311
Total operating expenditures 3,224,921 2,864,123 360,798 2,740,563
Revenues over (under) expenditures 119,822 559,833 440,011 551,756
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriated net position 4,810 - (4,810) -
Transfer to:
Economic Development Fund (59,100) (59,100) - (31,869)
Capital Project Fund (25,000) (17,500) 7,500 (18,182)
General Fund (40,532) (40,532) - (40,532)
Total other financing sources (uses) (119,822) (117,132) 2,690 (90,583)
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ -5 442,701 § 442,701 461,173
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis
(Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual Basis:

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses

Capital outlay

Capital contribution

Principal retirement

Change in compensated absences

Change in OPEB liability

Change in deferred outflows of resources - pension
Change in deferred inflows of resources - pension
Change in net pension liability

Change in deferred revenues

Depreciation

Bad debt (provision) recovery
Inventory adjustment
Capital contributions, revenue from:
Sewer Capital Reserve Fund
Sewer Capital Project funds
Non-capitalized expenses from projects
Transfer to Water Project Fund
Capital contributions

Pension expense

Deferred outflows of resources for contributions
made to pension plan in the current fiscal year

Change in net position

Schedule 28
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2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
442,701 $ 461,173
311,572 238,311
- 11,614
168,503 168,503
(2,147) (17,193)
(12,158) (18,306)
177,721 -
15,745 -
(197,978) -
(63,544) -
(694,886) (669,868)
14,044 (9,732)
(3,542) 629
35,263 10,615
208,758 747,274
- (116,204)
(111,540) -
55,407 -
- (20,054)
- 41,756
343,919 $ 828,518
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of 5
ENTERPRISE FUND - ELECTRIC FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Operating Revenues:
Electric sales 34,015,329 $§ 33,720,363 $ (294,966) $ 33,207,572
Other Operating Revenues:
Underground services 45,000 38,836 (6,164) 68,430
Reconnection fees 85,000 76,237 (8,763) 77,779
Facility connection fees 5,000 4,643 (357) 5,017
Pole attachment fees - cable TV 18,000 20,690 2,690 19,571
Connection fees 22,000 21,100 (900) 21,392
Late penalty charges 280,000 292,368 12,368 271,102
New construction fee 1,500 1,600 100 1,500
Total operating revenues 34,471,829 34,175,837 (295,992) 33,672,363
Non-Operating Revenues:
Recovery of doubtful accounts 2,500 8,345 5,845 6,657
Interest earnings 30,000 71,213 41,213 41,324
Sale of surplus and scrap 23,000 40,559 17,559 23,421
Fines and meters 13,000 9,385 (3,615) 11,017
FEMA assistance 28,003 55,296 27,293 -
Miscellaneous 427,398 412,794 (14,604) 37,892
Total non-operating revenues 523,901 597,592 73,691 120,311
Total revenues 34,995,730 34,773,429 (222,301) 33,792,674
Operating Expenditures:
Administration:
Office of Electric Director:
Salaries and employee benefits 306,368 274,963 31,405 265,494
Employee development 8,900 8,766 134 16,021
Professional services 205,760 86,342 119,418 49,382
Telephone 2,500 1,556 944 1,860
Printing and publishing 500 322 178 40
Maintenance 6,700 5,624 1,076 6,607
Supplies 4,500 4,231 269 3,777
Dues and subscriptions 1,000 270 730 501
Total Office of Electric Director 536,228 382,074 154,154 343,682
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - ELECTRIC FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Miscellaneous - Non-Departmental:
Printing and publishing

Dues and subscriptions

Insurance and bonds

Workers’ compensation

Rents

Maintenance

Utility service fee - General Fund
Utility assistance contribution
Hurricane Irene FEMA grant expenses
Other expenses

Total miscellaneous - non-departmental

Total administration

Utility Communications:
Salaries and employee benefits
Employee advertising
Employee development
Professional services
Telephone

Water and electric services
Rents

Maintenance

Supplies

Total utility communications

Meter Services:

Salaries and employee benefits
Employee advertising
Employee development
Telephone

Water and electric service
Maintenance

Supplies

Materials

Professional services

Other expenses

Contract services
Reimbursement from other funds

Total meter services

Schedule 29
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2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
5,500 4,105 1,395 4,789
1,777 1,106 671 1,232
116,500 116,334 166 112,535
63,562 63,561 1 54,258
10,000 10,000 - 18,000
1,000 794 206 794
1,356,387 1,356,387 - 1,331,459
10,000 10,000 - 10,000
28,003 17,324 10,679 -
342,384 335,260 7,124 353,775
1,935,113 1,914,871 20,242 1,886,842
2,471,341 2,296,945 174,396 2,230,524
233,262 230,806 2,456 220,846
283 283 - -
200 142 58 -
5,000 4,230 770 4,144
11,200 11,008 192 12,275
2,400 2,367 33 1,606
17,320 17,320 - -
4,800 4,052 748 4,801
2,517 2,281 236 2,085
276,982 272,489 4,493 245,757
417,148 415,031 2,117 408,716
200 - 200 44
4,000 3,975 25 3,739
5,000 4,670 330 3,418
8,000 7,734 266 5,865
83,885 80,483 3,402 84,740
3,500 3,409 91 2,328
3,360 2,378 982 5,955
1,000 72 928 1,315
2,500 2,371 129 1,235
30,000 29,976 24 26,268
(218,962) (218,962) - (218,962)
339,631 331,137 8,494 324,661
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - ELECTRIC FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Power Line Maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits
Employee advertising
Employee development
Telephone

Water and electric service
Printing and publishing
Maintenance

Supplies

Materials

Contract services
Professional services
Insurance

Other expenses

Total power line maintenance

Substation Maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits
Employee advertisement
Employee development
Professional services
Telephone

Water and electric service
Maintenance

Supplies

Contract services

Other expenses
Contingency

Total substation maintenance

Load Management:
Salaries and employee benefits
Employee advertisement
Employee development
Supplies

Heat pump rebates
Maintenance

Materials

Marketing and promotions
Contract services

Other expenses

Total load management

Schedule 29
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2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
808,441 806,062 2,379 838,916
250 - 250 80
27,550 26,791 759 14,632
5,470 5,470 - 3,404
149,680 149,679 1 7,712
100 - 100 120
133,815 132,557 1,258 104,381
64,400 63,322 1,078 53,559
157,104 152,534 4,570 164,431
526,735 526,048 687 400,702
10,200 685 9,515 9,626
6,000 5,413 587 20,296
14,850 12,359 2,491 2,617
1,904,595 1,880,920 23,675 1,620,476
169,993 168,449 1,544 159,750
200 - 200 -
1,300 769 531 2,549
9,900 5,991 3,909 33,005
2,000 1,711 289 1,796
24,490 23,519 971 22,841
89,938 86,898 3,040 100,264
2,500 2,290 210 2,322
10,225 10,025 200 9,705
8,995 8,690 305 10,124
15,376 - 15,376 -
334,917 308,342 26,575 342,356
94,443 91,084 3,359 93,232
100 - 100 -
1,000 280 720 278
500 - 500 224
15,000 11,200 3,800 14,575
704,718 497,164 207,554 235,842
2,000 1,944 56 678
20,000 15,146 4,854 20,000
55,000 54,883 117 124,320
68,430 68,430 - -
961,191 740,131 221,060 489,149
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - ELECTRIC FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Total electric operations
Electric power purchases
Capital outlay

Debt Service:
Installment Notes:
Principal retirement
Interest

Total debt service

Total operating expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriated net position

Transfers to:

Capital Project Fund

General Fund

Cemetery Fund

Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses

Schedule 29
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2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

3,817,316 3,533,019 284,297 3,022,399
23,307,743 22,475,608 832,135 21,543,209
4,647,862 2,628,414 2,019,448 2,393,719
89,147 89,146 1 220,800
1,476 1,476 - 3,896
90,623 90,622 1 224,696
34,334,885 31,024,608 3,310,277 29,414,547
660,845 3,748,821 3,087,976 4,378,127
595,827 - (595,827) -
(65,000) (65,000) - (63,636)
(908,723) (908,723) - (654,281)
(72,813) (72,813) - -
(210,136) (210,136) - (113,312)
(660,845) (1,256,672) (595,827) (831,229)

- $ 2,492,149 $§ 2,492,149 $ 3,546,898
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - ELECTRIC FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis
(Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual Basis:
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses

Capital outlay

Principal retirement

Change in compensated absences

Change in OPEB liability

Change in deferred outflows of resources - pension

Change in deferred inflows of resources - pension

Change in net pension liability

Depreciation

Bad debt provision

Inventory adjustment

Capital contributions

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

Pension expense

Deferred outflows of resources for contributions
made to pension plan in the current fiscal year

Change in net position

Schedule 29
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2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

$ 2,492,149 $ 3,546,898
2,628,414 2,393,719
89,146 220,800

3,574 32,603

(15,796) (42,088)
406,222 -
35,988 -
(452,519) -
(1,147,753) (1,098,738)
(11,181) 2,842
(9,770) 17,614

889 -

(12,033) -

- (45,836)

- 95,442

$ 4,007,330 $ 5,123,256
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Schedule 30
Page 1 of 2
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - STORMWATER UTILITY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Sales and Services:
Public works fees $ 679,639 $ 670,762 $ (8,877) $ 586,445
Miscellaneous - 3,408 3,408 52
Late penalty charges 3,500 5,246 1,746 4,377
Permit fees 4,000 5,000 1,000 2,000
Total operating revenues 687,139 684,416 (2,723) 592,874
Non-Operating Revenues:
Interest earnings 69,488 64,977 4,511) 71,413
FEMA assistance 2,328 - - -
Total non-operating revenues 71,816 64,977 (4,511) 71,413
Total revenues 758,955 749,393 (9,562) 664,287
Operating Expenditures:
Professional services 6,555 6,079 476 18,131
Water and electric service 22,820 14,166 8,054 35,021
Maintenance and repairs 47,800 30,556 17,244 12,610
Supplies 2,425 2,279 146 1,143
Contracted services 8,400 7,772 628 7,772
Materials 10,000 5,109 4,891 5,629
Insurance 1,238 1,088 150 1,052
Contingency 2,996 - 2,996 -
Hurricane expenses 2,328 - 2,328 -
Miscellaneous 2,476 2,419 57 2,418
Total operating expenditures 107,038 69,468 37,570 83,776
Debt Service:
Principal 333,334 333,333 1 333,333
Interest 151,083 151,083 - 166,703
Total debt service 484,417 484,416 1 500,036
Capital outlay 277,835 124,684 153,151 39,606
Total expenditures 869,290 678,568 190,722 623,418
Revenues over (under) expenditures (110,335) 70,825 181,160 40,869
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - STORMWATER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Schedule 30

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriated net position

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses

Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis
(Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual Basis:

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses

Depreciation

Capital outlay

Capital contributions

Principal retirement

Investment earnings from Capital Project Fund

Bad debt expense (recoveries)

Change in net position

Page 2 of 2
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
110,335 - (110,335) -
- 3 70,825 $ 70,825 $ 40,869
$ 70,825 $ 40,869
(133,403) (133,159)
124,684 39,606
(889) -
333,333 333,333
445 222
(16) (2,894)
$ 394,979 $ 277,977
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Schedule 31
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

Revenues:
Water impact fees $ 4,000 $ 25,033 § 21,033 § 4,713
Investment earnings - 889 889 547
Total revenues 4,000 25,922 21,922 5,260
Expenditures
Reserved for future capital expenditures 4,000 - 4,000 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures - 25,922 25,922 5,260
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from Water Fund - - - 43,172
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ - 25,922 § 25,922 48,432
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 279,114 230,682
End of year - June 30 $ 305,036 $ 279,114

This fund is consolidated into the Water Fund.
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Schedule 32
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - EDA WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
WATER CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance
Authorization Years Years to Date Over/Under

Revenues:
EDA grant funds $ 722,129 § 625982 § - § 625982 § (96,147)
Total revenues 722,129 625,982 - 625,982 (96,147)
Expenditures:
Water Line:
Administrative and legal 12,359 12,359 - 12,359 -
Construction 816,040 785,347 - 785,347 30,693
Contingency 949 - - - 949
Total water line expenditures 829,348 797,706 - 797,706 31,642
Liquid Chlorine:
Administrative and legal 3,689 3,688 - 3,688 1
Architectural and engineering 42,970 42970 - 42970 -
Other architectural and engineering 10,004 10,004 - 10,004 -
Project inspection fees 30,571 30,571 - 30,571 -
Construction 423,220 358,715 - 358,715 64,505
Total liquid chlorine expenditures 510,454 445,948 - 445,948 64,506
Total expenditures 1,339,802 1,243,654 - 1,243,654 96,148
Revenues over (under) expenditures (617,673) (617,672) - (617,672) 1
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer to other funds (88,460) - (88,461) (88,461) (1)
Transfer from other funds 706,133 706,133 - 706,133 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 617,673 706,133 (88,461) 617,672 (1)
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses ~ $ - 3 88,461 (88,461) $ -3 -
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year, July 1 88,461

End of year, June 30 s -

This fund is consolidated into the Water Fund.
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Schedule 33
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - SPRINGS ROAD MOBILE HOME PARK WATER SYSTEM
WATER CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance
Authorization Years Years to Date Over/Under

Expenditures:
Water Line:
Architectural and engineering $ 40,000 $ - 9 15,470 $ 15,470 $ 24,530
Construction 200,000 - - - 200,000
Total water line expenditures 240,000 - 15,470 15,470 224,530
Revenues over (under) expenditures (240,000) - (15,470) (15,470) (224,530)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Intrafund transfers 128,460 - 128,460 128,460 -
Transfer from other funds 111,540 - 111,540 111,540 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 240,000 - 240,000 240,000 -
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ -3 - 224530 $§ 224,530 $§ (224,530)
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year, July 1 -
End of year, June 30 $ 224,530

This fund is consolidated into the Water Fund.
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Schedule 34
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Sewer impact fees $ 10,000 $ 35,069 $ 25,069 $ 10,566
Investment earnings - 194 194 49
Total revenues 10,000 35,263 25,263 10,615
Expenditures
Reserved for future capital expenditures 10,000 - 10,000 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures $ - 35,263  $ 35,263 10,615
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 58,059 47,444
End of year - June 30 $ 93,322 $ 58,059

This fund is consolidated into the Sewer Fund.
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Schedule 35
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - EDA SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
SEWER CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance
Authorization Years Years to Date Over/Under

Revenues:
EDA grant funds $ 719,920 $ 816,067 $ -3 816,067 $ 96,147
Investment earnings - 7 - 7 7
Total revenues 719,920 816,074 - 816,074 96,154
Expenditures:
Cherry Run:
Administrative and legal 1,286 1,286 - 1,286 -
Architectural and engineering 10,971 10,971 - 10,971 -
Other architectural and engineering 3,488 3,488 - 3,488 -
Project inspection fees 6,649 6,649 - 6,649 -
Construction 119,426 95,098 - 95,098 24,328
Total cherry run expenditures 141,820 117,492 - 117,492 24,328
Generator:
Administrative and legal 6,091 6,090 - 6,090 1
Architectural and engineering 51,969 51,969 - 51,969 -
Other architectural and engineering 16,520 16,520 - 16,520 -
Project inspection fees 31,494 31,493 - 31,493 1
Construction 446,038 419,056 1,556 420,612 25,426
Total generator expenditures 552,112 525,128 1,556 526,684 25,428
Water and Bonner:
Administrative and legal 6,632 6,632 - 6,632 -
Architectural and engineering 75,089 75,081 - 75,081 8
Other architectural and engineering 17,989 17,989 - 17,989 -
Project inspection fees 52,792 52,785 - 52,785 7
Construction 363,510 360,864 - 360,864 2,646
Contingency 102,410 - - - 102,410
Total water and bonner 618,422 513,351 - 513,351 105,071
Total expenditures 1,312,354 1,155,971 1,556 1,157,527 154,827
Revenues over (under) expenditures (592,434) (339,897) (1,556) (341,453) 250,981
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer to other funds (111,540) - (111,540) (111,540) -
Transfer from other funds 703,974 703,974 - 703,974 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 592,434 703,974 (111,540) 592,434 -
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ - $ 364,077 (113,096) § 250981 $ 250,981
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year, July 1 364,077
End of year, June 30 $ 250,981

This fund is consolidated into the Sewer Fund.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - CWSRF SEWER GRANT

SEWER CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Schedule 36

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance
Authorization Years Years to Date Over/Under

Revenues:
Clean Water State Revolving loan principal forgiveness $ 500,000 - 8 208,758 $ 208,758 §  (291,242)
Expenditures:
Construction 1,697,940 40,383 393,594 433,977 1,263,963
Loan fee 2,000 - - - 2,000
Engineering 300,060 124,950 93,132 218,082 81,978
Total expenditures 2,000,000 165,333 486,726 652,059 1,347,941
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,500,000) (165,333) (277,968) (443,301) 1,056,699
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Long-term debt issued 1,500,000 - 208,759 208,759 (1,291,241)
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ - (165,333) (69,209) § (234,542) § (234,542)
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year, July 1 (165,333)
End of year, June 30 $ (234,542)

This fund is consolidated into the Sewer Fund.
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Schedule 37
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - WASTEWATER ASSET INVENTORY GRANT
SEWER CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance
Authorization Years Years to Date Over/Under

Revenues:
State grant funds $ 150,000 $ -3 - 8 - $§ (150,000
Expenditures:
Professional services 157,500 - 2,250 2,250 155,250
Revenues over (under) expenditures (7,500) - (2,250) (2,250) 5,250
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Intrafund transfer 7,500 - 7,500 7,500 -
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ -3 - 5250 § 5250 § 5,250
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year, July 1 -
End of year, June 30 $ 5,250

This fund is consolidated into the Sewer Fund.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - RECOVERY ZONE BOND
STORMWATER PROJECTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Schedule 38

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance
Authorization Years Years to Date Over/Under

Revenues:
Investment earnings $ 12,039 § 12,116 § 445 ' § 12,561 § 522
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical Development:
Professional services 40,445 40,445 - 40,445 -
Engineering 526,632 526,631 - 526,631 1
Construction 4,288,674 4,128,452 - 4,128,452 160,222
Easement acquisition 156,288 156,288 - 156,288 -
Total expenditures 5,012,039 4,851,816 - 4,851,816 160,223
Revenues over (under) expenditures (5,000,000) (4,839,700) 445 (4,839,255) 160,745
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Long-term debt issued 5,000,000 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 -
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ - 8 160,300 445 $ 160,745 $§ 160,745
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year, July 1 160,300
End of year, June 30 $ 160,745

This fund is consolidated into the Stormwater Fund.
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Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises. The intent of the government’s council is that the costs of
providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges, or the government’s council has decided that the
periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes.

*  Warren Field Airport Fund - This fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s
airfield operations.

» Airport Terminal Capital Project Fund - This fund is used to account for the construction
of the airport terminal.

* Airport Runway Capital Project Fund - This fund is used to account for the NC Division
of Aviation Runway 5-23 Pavement Rehabilitation Overlay Design Project.

* Airport Rehabilitation Capital Project Fund - This fund is used to account for the
rehabilitation projects at the airport.

* Solid Waste Fund - This fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s solid
waste operations.

* Cemetery Fund - This fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s cemetery
operations.
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Schedule 39
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

Warren Field Solid Total Nonmajor

Airport Waste Cemetery Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds

Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 121,908 $ 593,816 $ 29,015 $ 744,739
Accounts receivable, net 21,025 231,598 10,811 263,434
Inventory 36,706 - - 36,706
Total current assets 179,639 825,414 39,826 1,044,879
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable capital assets 1,273,905 - 5,760 1,279,665
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 2,984,044 277,561 115,381 3,376,986
Total non-current assets 4,257,949 277,561 121,141 4,656,651
Total assets 4,437,588 1,102,975 160,967 5,701,530
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year - 47,084 15,694 62,778
Pension deferrals - 141,041 47,014 188,055
Total deferred outflows of resources - 188,125 62,708 250,833
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,391 35,677 3,166 44,234
Current portion of installment notes - - 4,877 4,877
Current portion of compensated absences 2,881 42,575 14,621 60,077
Total current liabilities 8,272 78,252 22,664 109,188
Non-Current Liabilities:
Net pension liability - 220,324 73,440 293,764
Non-current portion of OPEB liability 1,068 94,496 52,835 148,399
Total non-current liabilities 1,068 314,820 126,275 442,163
Total liabilities 9,340 393,072 148,939 551,351
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension deferrals - 19,330 6,443 25,773
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 4,257,949 277,561 116,264 4,651,774
Unrestricted 170,299 601,137 (47,971) 723,465
Total net position $ 4,428,248 $ 878,698 $ 68,293 $ 5,375,239
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Schedule 40
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Warren Field Solid Total Nonmajor
Airport Waste Cemetery Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for sales and services $ 254365 $ 1,344,903 $ 206,439 §$ 1,805,707
Miscellaneous 5,624 632 2 6,258
Total operating revenues 259,989 1,345,535 206,441 1,811,965
Operating Expenditures:
Operations 347,917 1,196,007 268,175 1,812,099
Depreciation 103,800 63,475 10,717 177,992
Total operating expenditures 451,717 1,259,482 278,892 1,990,091
Operating income (loss) (191,728) 86,053 (72,451) (178,126)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenditures):
Investment earnings 269 1,648 26 1,943
Solid waste disposal tax - 6,475 - 6,475
Grant funds 5,612 71,210 - 76,822
Hurricane Irena FEMA grant expenses - (24,336) - (24,336)
Interest expense - - (120) (120)
Total non-operating revenues (expenditures) 5,881 54,997 (94) 60,784
Income (loss) before capital

contributions and transfers (185,847) 141,050 (72,545) (117,342)
Capital Contributions and Transfers:
Capital contributions 10,604 5,224 - 15,828
Transfers in 118,656 - 72,813 191,469
Total capital contributions and transfers 129,260 5,224 72,813 207,297
Change in net position (56,587) 146,274 268 89,955
Net Position:
Beginning of year - July 1 4,484,835 732,424 68,025 5,285,284
End of year - June 30 $ 4,428,248 $ 878,698 § 68,293 § 5,375,239
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash received from customers

Cash paid to employees

Cash paid to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Payments to/from other funds

Transfers from other funds

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Interest expense
Acquisition of capital assets
Principal payments on long-term debt
Capital contributions
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment earnings

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents/investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents/Investments:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)

to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Non-operating expenses
Non-operating revenues
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources for pensions
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources for pensions
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Non-Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Capital contributions
Total non-cash investing, capital, and financing activities

Schedule 41

Warren Field Solid Total Nonmajor
Airport Waste Cemetery Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ 275,193 $ 1,361,336 $ 205,462 $ 1,841,991

(62,674) (541,889) (61,608) (666,171)
(299,596) (672,175) (202,682) (1,174,453)
(87,077) 147,272 (58,828) 1,367
(16,934) - - (16,934)
118,656 - 72,813 191,469
101,722 - 72,813 174,535
- - (120) (120)
(2,668) - (5,760) (8,428)
- - (7,245) (7,245)

7,257 - - 7,257
4,589 - (13,125) (8,536)
269 1,648 26 1,943
19,503 148,920 886 169,309
102,405 444,896 28,129 575,430
$ 121,908 593,816 $ 29,015 § 744,739
$ (191,728) $ 86,053 $ (72,451) § (178,126)
103,800 63,475 10,717 177,992
- (24,337) - (24,337)

5,612 77,685 - 83,297
9,592 (61,224) 979) (52,611)
(17,430) - - (17,430)
- (152,334) (50,778) (203,112)

978 (267) (3,359) (2,648)

- (13,496) (4,499) (17,995)

- 169,694 56,563 226,257

1,031 1,208 1,685 3,924
1,068 815 4,273 6,156

$ 87,077) $ 147,272 § (58,828) $ 1,367

$ 10,604 $ 5224 § - 8 15,828

$ 10,604 $ 5224 § - 8 15,828
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Page 1 of 2
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - WARREN FIELD AIRPORT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Sales and Services:
Fuel sales $ 185,000 $ 181,473 §$ (3,527) $ 169,064
Rentals 76,805 72,892 (3,913) 68,033
Miscellaneous revenue - 5,624 5,624 3,387
Total operating revenues 261,805 259,989 (1,816) 240,484
Non-Operating Revenues:
Interest earnings 200 269 69 234
FEMA assistance 252 - (252) -
Grant funds 300,000 5,612 (294,388) 2,068
Total non-operating revenues 300,452 5,881 (294,571) 2,302
Total revenues 562,257 265,870 (296,387) 242,786
Operating Expenditures:
Salaries and employee benefits 65,903 64,773 1,130 64,684
Professional services 1,090 90 1,000 44
Utilities 25,723 25,069 654 21,121
Fuel purchases 160,000 141,374 18,626 116,552
Maintenance and repairs 40,371 37,767 2,604 34,802
Supplies 1,950 1,410 540 1,918
Contracted services 21,265 15,643 5,622 12,401
Equipment rental 10,000 8,400 1,600 8,400
Miscellaneous 5,176 4,173 1,003 3,290
Insurance 16,000 14,842 1,158 15,326
Grant expense 333,334 - 333,334 -
Utility service fee - General Fund 32,277 32,277 - 22,113
Total 713,089 345,818 367,271 300,651
Miscellaneous - Non-Departmental:
Hurricane Irene FEMA Grant expenses 252 - 252 -
Capital outlay - 2,668 (2,668) 8,532
Total expenditures 713,341 348,486 364,855 309,183
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Schedule 42

CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page2 of 2
ENTERPRISE FUND - WARREN FIELD AIRPORT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

Revenues over (under) expenditures (151,084) (82,616) 68,468 (66,397)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriated net position 50,659 - (50,659) -
Transfer to airport capital project funds (18,231) (18,231) - -
Transfers from General Fund 118,656 118,656 - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 151,084 100,425 (50,659) -
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ - 8 17,809 $ 17,809 § (66,397)
Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis

(Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual Basis:
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ 17,809 $ (66,397)
Capital outlay 2,668 8,532
Depreciation (103,800) (75,350)
Change in compensated absences (1,031) (470)
Change in OPEB liability (1,068) -
Transfer from other funds - project 18,231 -
Capital contributions, grant revenue from projects 7,257 363,440
Capital contributions 3,347 -
Interest earnings from projects - 31
Non-capitalized expenses from projects - (20,150)
Change in net position $ (56,587) $ 209,636
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - AIRPORT TERMINAL

WARREN FIELD AIRPORT CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Schedule 43

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance
Authorization Years Years to Date Over/Under

Revenues:
Federal grants - Airport Improvements grant $ 500,000 $ 500,000 $ - 500,000 $ -
State grants - Airport Improvements grant 298,971 298,972 - 298,972 1
Interest earnings 804 802 - 802 2)
Insurance proceeds 130,702 130,703 - 130,703 1
Total revenues 930,477 930,477 - 930,477 -
Expenditures:
Professional services 223,305 223,305 - 223,305 -
Construction 924,494 924,494 - 924,494 -
Rental building 30,150 30,150 - 30,150 -
Furnishings 77,728 77,728 - 77,728 -
Total expenditures 1,255,677 1,255,677 - 1,255,677 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures (325,200) (325,200) - (325,200) -
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds 325,200 325,200 - 325,200 -
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ - 8 - - -3 -

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year, July 1

End of year, June 30 $

This fund is consolidated into the Warren Field Airport Fund.
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Schedule 44
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - AIRPORT RUNWAY

WARREN FIELD AIRPORT CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance

Authorization Years Years to Date Over/Under
Revenues:
State grant funds $ 164,074 $ - 8 7257 $ 7,257 §  (156,817)
Expenditures:
Professional services 182,305 - 7,257 7,257 175,048
Revenues over (under) expenditures (18,231) - - - 18,231
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds 18,231 - 18,231 18,231 -

Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ - § - 18,231 $ 18,231 § 18,231
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year, July 1 -
End of year, June 30 $ 18,231

This fund is consolidated into the Warren Field Airport Fund.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - AIRPORT REHABILITATION

WARREN FIELD AIRPORT CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
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Actual
Project Prior Current Total Variance
Authorization Years Years to Date Over/Under

Revenues:
State grant funds $ 325,000 $ 324999 § - $ 324999 $ (1)
Federal grant funds 89,109 74,547 - 74,547 (14,562)
Total revenues 414,109 399,546 - 399,546 (14,563)
Expenditures:
Professional services 109,466 104,215 - 104,215 5,251
Airport rehabilitation 350,655 339,724 - 339,724 10,931
Total expenditures 460,121 443,939 - 443,939 16,182
Revenues over (under) expenditures (46,012) (44,393) - (44,393) 1,619
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds 46,012 46,012 - 46,012 -
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ - 1,619 -3 1,619 $ 1,619
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year, July 1 1,619
End of year, June 30 $ 1,619

This fund is consolidated into the Warren Field Airport Fund.
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Page 1 of 2
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA &
ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Sales and Services:
Garbage collection fees $ 1,291,236 $§ 1,341,752 §$ 50,516 $ 1,326,030
Miscellaneous revenues - 632 632 1,442
Total operating revenues 1,291,236 1,342,384 51,148 1,327,472
Non-Operating Revenues:
Interest earnings 800 1,648 848 892
FEMA assistance 62,550 71,210 8,660 -
Disposal tax 6,000 6,475 475 6,137
Total non-operating revenues 69,350 79,333 9,983 7,029
Total revenues 1,360,586 1,421,717 61,131 1,334,501
Operating Expenditures:
Salaries and employee benefits 570,560 547,776 22,784 554,083
Utilities 605 485 120 551
County tipping fees 273,236 272,709 527 240,460
Employee development 150 - 150 207
Maintenance and repairs 136,904 113,999 22,905 148,000
Supplies 1,500 1,333 167 956
Materials 22,496 21,315 1,181 19,114
Miscellaneous 6,026 4,770 1,256 5,182
Insurance 15,000 8,427 6,573 15,661
Contingency 77 - 77 -
Workers' compensation 6,254 5,712 542 5,471
Utility service fee - General Fund 213,594 213,594 - 195,229
Total operating expenditures 1,246,402 1,190,120 56,282 1,184,914
Debt Service:
Principal - - - 17,703
Interest - - - 192
Total debt service - - - 17,895
Miscellaneous - Non-Departmental:
Hurricane Irene FEMA Grant expenses 62,550 24,336 38,214 -
Capital outlay 51,634 - 51,634 -
Total expenditures 1,360,586 1,214,456 146,130 1,202,809
Revenues over (under) expenditures $ - 3 207,261 $ 207,261 $ 131,692
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Schedule 46

Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis
(Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual Basis:

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses

Depreciation

Principal retirement

Capital contributions

Change in compensated absences

Change in OPEB liability

Change in deferred outflows of resources - pension

Change in deferred inflows of resources - pension

Change in net pension liability

Bad debt expense (recoveries)

Pension expense

Deferred outflows of resources for contributions
made to pension plan in the current fiscal year

Page 2 of 2
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

207,261 $ 131,692
(63,475) (61,733)

- 17,703

5,224 -
(1,208) 391
(815) (8,392)
152,334 -
13,496 -
(169,694) -
3,151 (5,004)
- (17,188)

- 35,791

146,274 $ 93,260

Change in net position
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of 2
ENTERPRISE FUND - CEMETERY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Sales and Services:
Sale of cemetery plots $ 86,550 $ 78,749 $ (7,801) $ 74,079
Cemetery grave openings 118,000 112,023 (5,977) 111,745
Administrative charges 27,000 15,667 (11,333) 16,304
Total operating revenues 231,550 206,439 (25,111) 202,128
Non-Operating Revenues:
Interest earnings 150 26 (124) 241
FEMA assistance 575 - (575) -
Miscellaneous - 2 2 2,102
Total non-operating revenues 725 28 (697) 2,343
Total revenues 232,275 206,467 (25,808) 204,471
Operating Expenditures:
Salaries and employee benefits 229,783 209,926 19,857 214,281
Other operating expenditures 16,424 14,551 1,873 18,475
Maintenance and repairs 14,814 11,575 3,239 13,584
Utility service fee - General Fund 24,879 24,879 - 21,963
Total operating expenditures 285,900 260,931 24,969 268,303
Debt Service:
Principal 7,246 7,245 1 7,147
Interest 120 120 - 218
Total debt service 7,366 7,365 1 7,365
Miscellaneous - Non-Departmental:
Hurricane Irene FEMA grant expenses 575 - 575 -
Capital outlay 16,500 5,760 10,740 63,754
Total expenditures 310,341 274,056 36,285 339,422
Revenues over (under) expenditures (78,066) (67,589) 10,477 (134,951)
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Schedule 47
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA Page 2 of 2

ENTERPRISE FUND - CEMETERY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017 2016
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from Electric Fund 72,813 72,813 - -
Appropriated net position 5,253 - (5,253) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 78,066 72,813 (5,253) -
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ - $ 5224 $ 5224 $ (134,951)
Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis

(Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual Basis:
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ 5,224 $ (134,951)
Depreciation (10,717) (9,558)
Capital outlay 5,760 26,307
Principal retirement 7,245 7,147
Change in compensated absences (1,685) (15)
Change in OPEB liability (4,273) (6,640)
Change in deferred outflows of resources - pension 50,778 -
Change in deferred inflows of resources - pension 4,499 -
Change in net pension liability (56,563) -
Pension expense - (5,729)
Deferred outflows of resources for contributions

made to pension plan in the current fiscal year - 11,930
Change in net position $ 268 $§  (111,509)
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Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department for agencies of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

Workers’ Compensation Reserve Fund - This fund is used to finance and account for the City’s
workers’ compensation insurance program.

Vehicle Replacement Reserve Fund - This fund is used to finance and account for the City’s
General Fund vehicle replacements.

Facility Maintenance Reserve Fund - This fund is used to finance and account for maintenance
and rehabilitation of City facilities.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

Assets:

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Total current assets

Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets:
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

Schedule 48

Workers' Vehicle Facility
Compensation Replacement Maintenance
Reserve Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 1,036,509 $ 936,240 $ 502,598 2,475,347
- 3,214 - 3,214
1,036,509 939,454 502,598 2,478,561
- 1,311,188 - 1,311,188
1,036,509 2,250,642 502,598 3,789,749
114,808 8,899 - 123,707
- 1,311,188 - 1,311,188
921,701 930,555 502,598 2,354,854
$ 921,701 $ 2,241,743 § 502,598 3,666,042
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Schedule 49
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Workers' Vehicle Facility

Compensation Replacement Maintenance

Reserve Fund Fund Fund Total
Operating Revenues:
Charges for sales and services $ 94,000 $ 708,081 $ -3 802,081
Operating Expenses:
Insurance claims 63,324 - - 63,324
Depreciation - 132,995 - 132,995
Total operating expenses 63,324 132,995 - 196,319
Operating income (loss) 30,676 575,086 - 605,762
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Miscellaneous revenue - 11,416 - 11,416
Investment earnings 5,731 2,349 1,531 9,611
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 5,731 13,765 1,531 21,027
Change in net position 36,407 588,851 1,531 626,789
Net Position:
Beginning of year - July 1 885,294 1,652,892 501,067 3,039,253
End of year - June 30 $ 921,701 $ 2241,743 $ 502,598 $ 3,666,042
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received from customers

Cash paid to employees for services

Cash paid to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Acquisition of capital assets

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Investment earnings

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents/investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents/Investments:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Non-operating revenues
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
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Workers' Vehicle Facility
Compensation Replacement Maintenance
Reserve Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 94,122 $ 717,515  $ - 8 811,637
(68,180) - - (68,180)
- (28,990) - (28,990)
25,942 688,525 - 714,467
- (167,234) - (167,234)
5,731 2,349 1,531 9,611
31,673 523,640 1,531 556,844
1,004,836 412,600 501,067 1,918,503
$ 1,036,509 $ 936,240 §$ 502,598 $ 2,475,347
$ 30,676 $ 575,086 $ -3 605,762
- 132,995 - 132,995
- 11,416 - 11,416
122 (1,982) - (1,860)
(4,856) (28,990) - (33,846)
$ 25942 $ 688,525 $ - 3 714,467
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
WORKERS' COMPENSATION RESERVE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

FINANCIAL PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Operating Revenues:
Contributions from employer

Operating Expenditures:
Workers' compensation claims

Operating income (loss)

Non-Operating Revenues:
Investment earnings

Change in net position

Net Position:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30
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Financial Variance
Plan Actual Over/Under

$ 94,000 $ 94,000 $ -

97,000 63,324 33,676

(3,000) 30,676 (33,676)

3,000 5,731 2,731

$ - 36,407 $ 36,407
885,294
s o0



Schedule 52
CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

VEHICLE REPLACEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FINANCIAL PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Financial Variance
Plan Actual Over/Under

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 708,081 $ 708,081 $ -
Non-Operating Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue - 11,416 11,416
Investment earnings 1,000 2,349 1,349
Total non-operating revenues 1,000 13,765 12,765
Total revenues 709,081 721,846 12,765
Operating Expenditures:
Vehicle replacement costs 765,343 300,229 465,114
Revenues over (under) expenditures (56,262) 421,617 477,879
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriated net position 56,262 - (56,262)
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ -3 421,617 $ 421,617
Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis

(Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual Basis:
Revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ 421,617
Capital outlay 300,229
Depreciation (132,995)
Change in net position $ 588,851
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
FACILITY MAINTENANCE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

FINANCIAL PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Non-Operating Revenues:
Investment earnings

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Contingency

Change in net position

Net Position:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30
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Financial Variance
Plan Actual Over/Under
$ 500 $ 1,531 $ 1,031
(500) - 500
3 - 1531 8 1S31

501,067

502,598



Additional Financial Data
This section contains additional information on property taxes, interfund transfers, and cash and
investments.
* Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

* Analysis of Current Tax Levy
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE
JUNE 30, 2017

Schedule 54

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Year July 1, 2016 Additions and Credits June 30, 2017
2016-2017 $ -3 4,494,120 $ 4,416,681 $ 77,439
2015-2016 104,390 - 71,422 32,968
2014-2015 30,916 - 13,375 17,541
2013-2014 34,583 - 6,704 27,879
2012-2013 33,996 - 2,453 31,543
2011-2012 21,750 - 1,876 19,874
2010-2011 13,840 - 825 13,015
2009-2010 18,631 - 354 18,277
2008-2009 16,712 - 258 16,454
2007-2008 21,133 - 317 20,816
2006-2007 18,621 - 18,621 -
Total $ 314,572 $ 4,494,120 $ 4,532,886 275,806
Less allowance for uncollectible ad valorem taxes receivable:
General Fund (154,670)
Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable, Net:
General Fund $ 121,136
Reconcilement With Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes - General Fund $ 4,526,986
Refunds 6,196
Write-offs and releases 34,577
Penalties and interest collected (34,873)
Total collections and credits $ 4,532,886
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY - CITY-WIDE LEVY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Original Levy

Discoveries

Abatements

Total property valuation

Net Levy

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2017
Current Year's Taxes Collected

Current Levy Collection Percentage

Schedule 55

Total Levy
Property
Excluding
City-Wide Registered Registered
Property Motor Motor
Valuation Rate Total Levy Vehicles Vehicles
$ 880,253,269 052 § 4577317 $ 4,186,954 § 390,363
6,843,654 0.52 35,587 35,587 -
(22,843,077) 0.52 (118,784) (118,784) -
$ 864,253,846
4,494,120 4,103,757 390,363
77,439 77,439 -
$ 4416681 $§ 4,026,318 § 390,363
98.28% 98.11% 100.00%
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Statistical Section
(Unaudited)

This part of the City of Washington’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the finance
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the
government’s overall financial health.

Contents Pages
Financial Trends 158

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the government’s financial performance and
well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 162
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
government’s most significant local revenue source.

Debt Capacity 169
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt
and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 173
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help
the reader understand the environment within which the government’s
financial activities take place.

Operating Information 176
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the government’s financial
report relates to the services the government provides and the activities
it performs.



This page left blank intentionally.



8€Y'086°9L1 €06'G89°'LLL $ GlZLge'eol $ 6€L°026C0L $ 28L'€S0'VOL $ 82ZvLS920L $ L¥Z'028'66 2.6'766°L6 v18°'L19'66 $ 622'6CLC6 $ uonisod jau Juswusenob Arewd [ejo |
v18'9L1°/2 680'908'CZ L¥/'GE9'61 €00°'L¥L 02 166°022'02 YrL'v6L'61 1€8°L0v'61 969°196'61 90.°1.6'61 615°00L'02 pejousaiun
25115 170'86.°C 800°c.€C €11°119°C e L' 2.6'0L0°€ 200°096°C ¥1¥°208 856617 EYy'8LL pajouisay
zle'zee’L8 1/1°180'98 $ 09v'z/E'L8 $ €9€LSL'08 ¢ vS6'0ZvL8 $ CLE'98L'6L $ 80V'8SY'LL 206'0€2°LL 0SL'068'vL $ L9z'0LL'0L $ sjesse [e}ided Ul JuswisaAul JoN

juswulanob Arewid

8/6'9/2°68 GG6'9.9'v8 $ 9lv'zer'.. $ LLS'V96°SL $ 96£°L6SV. $ 8692S6'€L $ 0LL°08S°CL 968'600°69 90.'665'99 ¢ €S¥'0v9'€9 ¢ uonysod jou sanioe adA}-ssauisng [ejo |
0.8'982'02 129°201°21 viv'Lvr'el €29'0.LE'¢€) 185'0zs'el 865'9.L1'ElL 819'GBlL el Leo‘'szl L Lze'lsL'0lL 9L LS L pejouisaiun
- - - - - - - - pajousay
80.'686'89 ¥€€'695°29 $ 200°LSO'¥9 $ ¥68'€65C9 ¢ 608'0L0°L9 $ 00L'9L'09 $ ¢GL'GSE'6S G98'v88'LS 6.E'CYv'9S $ 182'660'CS $ sjosse [e}ded Ul juswisaAul JoN

saAoe adAy-ssauisng

098°€0.°22 8¥6'800°/Z $ 66.'888'GZ $ 2T9'G00°ZC $ 162'19v'6C $ 0£.'869'8C $ L.v'69Z°/C 9,0°G86'8Z 80LzL0'6Z $ 9..'88¥'8C $ uonisod jou SalIAOE [ejusuIaAob [ejo
¥¥6'688'9 ¥9v'869'G €EC'VBL'9 08€'02L9 ¥0v'00.L9 9vs'LLE9 612'902'9 GZ9'9€8'8 6.€'718'6 €GE'6GL'6 pajplysaiun
2GE1LST L¥0'86.°C 800°€LEC €12'119°C YT L' 2.6'0L0°€ 200°'096'C vL¥'208 8G6'6¥.L eYy'8LL pajousay
¥95'cre 8l eyy'zig'el § 8gvlee’sL $ 69¥°LSS°LL $ SPL'0GE'0Z § zicole'sL  $ 9SZ'E0l'8l LE0'9VE'6L LLL'IYP'8L  § 086'0L9°8L $ sjosse [e}ided Ul juswisaAul JoN

SBIIAIJOE [BJUSWIUIBA0D

2102 102 102 102 102 102 110 102 6002 8002

| aiqel

(DNILNNODJV 40 SISVE TvNyIIV)
SYVIA TVISId NIL 1SV
ININOJINOD A9 NOLISOd 13N

VNITO¥VO HLYON ‘NOLDNIHSVM 40 ALID

158



- - 62G'c y¥Z'SSL 06221 8LY'LY 261’891 8L9'9y 0.L2'L€S Lgz'esL
62€'L€ 609°'9¢ €6€°'19 652'9C €9€'9GL 96€'61 L19'Ge 089°'0S LEV'ES 02Z'LS
- - - - - 689'9 LLe'ee - - -
- - - - - - - - LE0'vLE 2ee'vse
SLLLEY 826'cSE lz1'e8e g€’ LSy veL'98Y LEL'ELE 098'62Y 168'8vy 0vE'¥9€ 108'vS¢
100°'LY LLE'PE €8G'C €8Y'C YAZAVA 006°0L zzLoL - L1G'691 zle'ee
- - 000'0€ - 6G.'67 80€'9. 002'c€ 9e6'eCl 26.'6 -
109'vEE €62'59¢ ¥9Z'v61 80%'602 695°¢ie ¥S¥'622 206'06¢ 216'e62 zee9le 62.'S0€
- - - - - - - - 961992 GE0'6EE
€cr'el G68'GE 8.€'S 1G2'9 959'% €96'Ge 629'v €.0'6 - -
¥20'€S.L G96'09. 6£2'859 [4XAVA] ¥21'069 296'c6¥ 000'8 - 9/G'0SS 089'Gee
8G6G'/8¢C $ 680'¢8C 69Y°'LGL ¢ ogzoeL'L $ 119'9z8 $ 919'e88 $ €80°LvL $ 289619 $ ¥6G'2G9'L  $ ZL8'v8.
062'688'67 $ 6¥S'viC8y 0/2'981°SS ¢ 290'¥L¥'6G  $ GE6'LS6'VS $ LzgLlE'SS ¢ 0.6'62¥'LG  $ 89¥'606'YS $ 9v¥'L¥O'YS $ LEI'ZHL'0S
€12'691'8€ €0¥'€25'9¢E 6G6'G2E'EY 2GL'LE6'EY Zyl'zee'ey 619'291°¢y 6G8'8EE VY 002'690°cy S0S5'698 LY 625'806'8€E
210'6.2 086'GLE veL'ele 168'08¢ 9¥G'G8C 166'9/2 ¥19'69¢ 0£8'792 - -
818'¢8Z'l 9€2'9¢eC’L S19°102°L €€2'€62°1L L€0'9GZ°L 906°'2eet 288°'€9¢e’l 182°9GL°L 961°09L°L 002'8€0°L
LL21SY 129'96¢ 8L8'vLY 682'S0S 652969 ¥0°'LSY G/5'v6€ 081'v9¢ 0S9'60¥ 900°29S
¥G6'€5€ 8€9'¢8¢ zee'eey 068°18¢€ 6¥€'06€ [ReieR R4 S9E' L0y 061295 898°0€S 9¥€'95S
9L€'0LG'6C 681'8€8'L¢C €8¥'€06'vE SPe'SLY'GE L€2'856'VE z9z'vee'se 669'9.£°9¢ 02S'vL1'Se v.€'G62'vE 2LE'190°LE
€62°10L° 686'CEL'E 056'970°¢ 619'6/6'C 116'811°C 162'€09°C 16€'G8.°C 0€2'6,9°C 8€8'Lv.L'C v28'79L°¢
€91'68L°¢ 0S.'6L2'¢ 199'€90°¢ 610'620° £79'910°¢ 890'658°C VASSWAINA 62¥'298°C 6.G'1€L°C L€2°025°C
210'022'LL 9vL'169'LL 118°098°LL 01€'9.¥'S1L €61'G/G'L1 ZrS'evlel 112'060°EL 892'0¥8'L L6'LLL'CL 20L'¥82'LL
28G' vy ovv'sy €02'eS 0.6'LL 0L0°9LL 808'951 ¥60°'GCL €1G'9pL 0,525 S¥8'0v
6€5'8€E (ove'sst) gle'se 199'%29 SlE'v6C ¥16'v. 8€/'691 2€€'095 ¥€L'¥9G 10G'¥8L
£69'€60'C 129'569' 658'26€'C 620°'262'C 916'909'L £YP'eL0‘e G0€'269'C 0,0'091‘C 9¥Z's09'c 016'c.9'
118'98¢ 701959 ¥91°2€9 Lv¥'0L9 819'759 12€'269 0€9'2¥9 L0€'9 0S9'719 16€'vSE
09z'ece’t 8/1'756 128'G26 ¥€8°'108 788226 2€.'258 G.¥'950°L 1/8'8G8 96l'eeL 2.2'6.0°'L
¥66'861'9 8/€'000'9 GE1'€89'G GG.'¥8.'S €1€'69.'S 286'c.2'9 90z'ere'9 150'618'S 1.6'882'9 zel'esy's
2L0'VEY'L $ 6S.L'v61'L gle'oel’c ¢ vi9'see’'s  $ Ll9'Lig'e $ 2e9'SLL'C ¢ €92'.60'Cc  $ cso'esz'c  $ vil'elZ'L  $ SS0'69v°L
1102 9102 5102 v102 €102 (41114 1102 0102 6002 8002
€ jo | abed

zolgel

1gep wus}-buo| uo jsaisiu|
juswdojaasp |eaisAyd pue ojwouod]
uolealdal pue [ednynd
uonoajoud [EjusWUOIIAUT
uoneyuodsues |
Ayayes oljand
Juswuianob |essus

suonnqguuod pue syuelb buiesado

juswdojanap |eaisAyd pue oiwouod]
uoleaIo8l pue [ednynd
uonoajoid [EjuUBWIUOIIAUT
uonepodsuel |
Kyages oland
juswuianob [essussy

:$901AJI8S Jo} sabieyn

SOI}IAO. [B)UBWIUIBAOD)

sanuanay weiboid

sasuadxa juswulanob Arewnd |ejo
sanIAljoe adA}-ssauisnq [ejo |
Kisyowa)
d)sem pljog
Hodury plai4 uauep
Aynn JeyemuLols
ouo9|3
Jamag
J91BAN
:soljIAloe adA}-ssauisng

SOIjIAlO. [B)UBWIUISAOD [Bjo |
1gep wJsy Buoj uo }saiayu|
juswdojanap |eaisAyd pue oiwouod]
uoleaIdal pue [ednynd
uonoajoid [EjUBWIUOIIAUT
uonepodsuel |
Kyages oland
juswuianob [essussy

'SOIIAJO. [B)UBWIUIBAOD)

sasuadx3y

(DNILNNODIV 40 SISVE TVNHIIV)
SYVIA TVISId NIL LSV
NOILISOd 13N NI SIONVHO

VNITOHVO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID

159



(6L1'9€2'€) ¢ (062°086) $ (T1v'025°2)  $(sie’z06'6)  $ (v26°221°2) $ (#8L'¥¥9'G)  § (61G'GLG'9) $ (S56'668'G) $ (898°LL8Y) & (L08°0¥8'G) $

G/6'65.°G LEY'290°8 €5Y°'88Y°C 192°665'| 98eZLY'L G9Z'0vET 606'LLLY ¥0.'662°€ 296°LLLE ¥25v19C

(v60'967'6)  $ (L2z'8r0'6) $ (598°850°0L) $ (926°905°LL) $ (09€065°8) ¢ (6¥0's86°2)  § (8z¥'LvL'0L) $ (659'66L°6) ¢ (0£8'€26'L) $ (52E'SSH'8) $

LLL'ESL'OY ¢ BGL'€€T'l¥ $ 8SE'9L9LY  $ /¥L'Q0S'6Y  $ 196'6LL'LF $ LEV'999'6Y $ LSO'¥S8'0S  $ €15'600'6¥ $ 8.G'6CZ'6Y $ 0€8'LSEVY $

8%2'626'CY ¥£8°065 v ZLY'vL8'Gy €10°/€5°G 825V6.L v ¥v6'L0G'GY 89/°015°8¥ ¥06'89€'9¥  L9¥'L86'FY €50°€25° LY

- - - - - 608 - - - -

v2z's - - - S6 - - - - -

#0901 805°G9¢ 8Z¥'€G59 0Z¥'90% 058'67Y G¥8'62L 18E'LLL SZ'682 126'€ 6€LL¥T

- - - - - - 000°00} - - -

- - 00.°GE G.¥'G8S LSY'6¥C £v9'967'L 9677 LY - zLYL9 -

59192 v.ZlvL 8v0'9LL £96'29 (L¥S) £85'621 ¥26'LL 6£9'GhY vE8'y -

526'82 Z1€'69. 86.89 z€T'SL (€11) ¥82'1L8 68.'€ £€6'79L €25'695 00L°LL

0Lz'LL - - - - - - 00091 - 0529

z19's - - €02°0€) - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - (zoo'el) 695°C

962'GS - - - - - - - - -

BEY'EE - - - - - - - - -

L7902 0€Z'v02 6£0°00Z ¥88°'9%C 866°LL) €v9'LLL €26°'291 €€9'€1Z - -

010'25€°L ¥09'82¢‘L 118°952°L 8€0°€LZ'L 9/¥'092°L 12z v’ LzL'vez'L 896'¢82') vE2'992°L 00¥°0EL‘L

686652 ¥8Y' 0¥ 6€0°L1Z 180°2€2 961299 6l1z'lee €02'vez 62691 29022z 88Y'8.€

00%'¥89 086'685 G/1'60S 510°60S 128005 8.6'10G 1G6L1G 0€6'L1G 056'66% 9z8'8zy

0Z6°'9%9'v€ 05€°152°€E 8%2°159'9¢ 16G€L6'GE A A VA4 8G1'€82'GE 611°10€'6E LLL'Y9Z e 629ThY'9E £46°90G°€E

192°09¢‘e LoLzez'e 2€8'626'C 1€8°L00°E ¥59°160°€ 1+5'260'€ z6£'80L°€ €/9'G96'C 0S¥'2¥6'C Zv5'288'C

25.'v¥6'T 166°LLES 889'G/L'E 08.'¥5L'€ 66£'€86'C ¥SLLGL'E 69Y'9¥L'e €81°/€0'€ 88€196'C 969'€€6'C

£26'€22°C G26'279C 9v6'L08°} ¥£1'696'€ £E7'G86'C £67'85L Y €82EVET 609°0+¥9°C LLLsrey 1118282

L0vvLL 00v¥°25€ YeTYS 992'81G G€%G1L 88Z°¢lE - 689'¢8Y - 18v'9

€10'9¢ z50°e€e 99L°/¢ 686'8% 8262 6.5'85¢C SvLLE 78L'6% 990°9¢ 129'Ly

765921 9¢/°081 065°€81 ¥00'v81L 98/°291 £65'G0. 85+°92¢ 09Z'¥82 - -

- 169°L v16'9¢ - GE6°0EE 1£6'6 zLLee 980602 00%'€ 005°L9L

- - - - - 599'GZL 866°L ¥6.'L2 959'vL 1¥0°26
1102 9102 S10¢ yroz £10¢ 102 1102 0102 002 002

¢ jo Z abeg

¢ 9lqel

anuaal/(asuadxa) Jou Juswuianob Atewnd [ejo |

saAljoe adA)-ssauisng
SBI}IAOE [EJUBWIUIBAOD)
anuaAay/(asuadx3) jJaN

sanuaal weuboid Juswuianob Atewnd jejo |

sanuanal welboid sanianoe adA}-ssauisng |ejo |
Aisyowa)
d)seM pllos
Hoday pjal4 uaiepn
AN Jsyemuwiols
o1)09|3
James
FEIETYY
:suoinqglyuod pue sjuelb [eyded

8ISEM pPlloS
Hodury plal4 uaiep
Ajmn Jeyemulols
eI RET =]
Jamag
191 M
:suonnqguuod pue syuelb Buiesado

Aivyowa)
SISEM PlloS
Hodury plal4 uaLep
AN Jsyemuwiio}s
19)udd dllenby
19U JIAID
sjousip Jajem Ajunood Jojneaq
ouo9|3
Jamag
I9)B AN
:s901AI8S U0} abey)
:soljIAloe adA}-ssauisng

sanuanal weiboid saniAloe [eyuswuianob [ejo |
juswdojanap |esisAyd pue oiwouod]
uolealoal pue [ednynd
uonepodsuel |
Kyages onand
JUSWUIBAOL) [BIBUSS)

:suonNquIuod pue syuelt [eyded

(DNILNNODIV 40 SISVE TVNHIIV)
SYVIA TVISId NIL LSV
NOILISOd 13N NI SIONVHO

VNITOHVO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID

160



22€'658'S  $ 889'v0c's ¢ 68G°L28'L  $ (L¥0'€80'L) $ 6GLLOVL  $ LGL9LLT $ G/T'Ge8’t  $ 8GL'e8e’T  § 68G'Z8v'e  § 68L'65.C $ jJuswuienob Arewnd [ejo
€29'665'V 65 78L'L L119'evL'T LzL'ele’) 869'8€9 868'98Z| 1GT'6vE'E 06L°0LY'C €62'656'C 19€'601'C saApoe adA)-ssauisng
669'652'L  $ 6¥L'0zL'L  $ (880°9L€) $ (891L°95¥'7) $ 190°€9. $ egz'eey't  $ (286'ces’t)  $ (ze0'L2) $ zee'ezs $ 22¥'059 $ SOIIAIOE [BJUSWIUIBA0D
uoisod JoN ui abueyn
Lv¥'66G'6  $ 8/¥'G82'6  $ 100'86E'6  $ 89Z'v28'8 $ €€.'6/G'8 $ G€6'09¢€'8  $ ¥6L°00¥'8 $ €LL'€82'8 $ €Sv'v6C'8  $ 0650098 $ Juswuienob Atewnd [ejo
(zge'09L'L) (268'288) (922'%¥€) (ov1'922) (889°¢.4) (£9£'€50°1) (259'228) (¥15'688) (602°251) (2G1°509) semAnoe adA}-ssauisng [ejo L
(868°0€€'L) (162°020°1) (290°z8Y) (6¥5'89€) (01¥°506) (zev'e6ll) (525'€06) (€21°506) (1¥9'592) (112'%08) sigjsuel
- - - - - - - - - - uojBuiysepn Jo AlD 03 uoissiwwo) poday
- - - - - - - - - - uale\\ wolj Jajsuel] Josse JoN-wall _m_owaw
- - - - - - - - - - Sal}jIAl}oe J8Yyjo woJj/0) suoinglujuod _E_QNO
- - - - - - - - - - sjasse [eydeo Jo |esodsip uo (sso|) ules)
- - - - - - - - - - snoaue||adsI
9vs‘0LL 66¢°LEL 162'L€1L 6012yl zeliiel G90°07 L €.8'08 609'GL ze6'CLL ¥50'662 sbujules juswysanu|
:sanAloe adA}-ssauisng
£61'GG2'01 0/£'891°01 111.'Tvl'6 80%'050'6 1Z¥'€GE'6 Z0E'vLY'6 9v¥'€2Z'6 129'2L1'6 291°'Lyv'8 1v1'S0L'6 'SBIIARO. [BjUBWIUIBAOE [ejo ]
868°0€€'L 162°020°} 190°28Y 6¥5'89¢ 01¥'506 zev'eel L G25'€06 £21°506 1¥9'69Z 112408 sigjsuel ]
- - - - - - - - - - 1}0e J8yjo WoJlj/0} suoijngliuod _S_QNO
- - - - - - - - - - sjosse [eydeo Jo |esodsip uo (sso|) ules)
- - - - - - - 688'/2V 810919 9Lyl Snosue||osI
G85°1L9 025'9S 5/8'65 0£6'6S 086'cE 8.¢g'le SYe'zs 9/1'69 8€0'zel ¥66°'L.2 sbujules juswysanu|
SYl'ev0'e 191'650'C 8.2'9¥0'C 0z.'e8S'L 622'085'} GE8'62G L 200'5¥9'L 181'069°L £68°109'L slz'ovy'L |BjuBILIBAOBIBIUI PBJO}SBIUN
G5'068'C 12+'989'2 ¥98'228'C 8Z.'%€5' 160'2.5'C ¥€1'218'C 9G1'¥St'T 9¥5'290'C ¥8'896°L 8€5'90.'C sexe] Jaulo
0z9'69Y'y  $ Ll6'SYE'Y  $ €69°'lee’y  $ 18V L0S'Y  $ S0LL6Z'Y  $ €26'060'F $ 8LY'8IL'Y  $ ZLLZLO'Y  $ 82.'798'C $ €S6'6ELE  § sexe} Apadoid
SAIIIAIJOE |BJUSWIUIBAOD)
uollSOd }9N ul sabuey) J1ayjQ pue sanuaAdy |eiauan
12102 9102 S10Z v102 €102 Z102 1102 0102 6002 8002
(DNILNNODIV 40 SISVE TVNHIIV)
SUVIA TVISId NIL 1SV
NOILISOd L3N NI SIONVHO
VNITO¥VO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID
¢ Jo ¢ abed

¢ 9lqel

161



1161198 0/6'192°L LLEL cov'le €62'91 266°'L.C 295'S.Lv'e 286'92G'Y 2102
86£'€8Z'8 S0S'v82‘L ¥0S°L 62661 080°Ly €65'65¢ €8€'0€€'C vv'ove'y 910¢
0812258 G/€'982°L EVEVLL 1088l €16'lS 181°'1vC 960'29€°C 6SL L vy 1014
625'852'8 796'0v1°L zslhezt 989'9l 0v1'89 80¢'cze 108'880°C 2.5'86S'v ¥10¢
898'686°. 129Gy L L¥6'6.L1 oLL'st cll'6e 9v€'60¢ 6817'960°C €¥9'L0E'Y €10¢
819'658°. ¥90°'0€1L°L G89'c8l 8l.'0C 6€0'6€ 0€6'0S¢ 80.'9¥0°C 705681 ‘v 404
¥22'v08°'.L ¥.1'902°}L YIv'SLL 910'9l 650'8¢€ 095°6€2 881'€96°L €81'G9L v L10¢
€08'91G°.L GGv'861°L 620'891 6Ll 600°'6€ 829'v¥e €88'900°C G09'9/8°¢ (0] %014
916165 991'981°} 198'v91 9€9°'¢l ¥16'6€ 082'S5¢ G82'960°C 89¢'9€8°'c 600¢
Zv6L6v'L S¥6°190°L 125'v01 2092l 82Z Ly 8€8'95¢ 15682 G¥8'GEL'E 800¢
lejol saxe] Sasuaol xeJ Sasuaol saxe] saxe] saxe] ICETR
asiyosueli ssauisng EIRIIEY ony AuednooQ sojes Auadoayg |easiq
|ejusy

€ 9lqel

(DNILNNOD2V 40 SISVE TvNHIIV a3141a0n)

SUVIA TvISId NaL 1SV

30UNOS A9 SANNIATY XV1 SAILIAILIV TVLINIWNAYIAOO

VNITO¥VO HLYON ‘NOLDNIHSVM 40 ALID

162



‘uonyejuswaldwi sy Jaye sieak xis yum Buole ‘4G gSVo 40 uonejusws|dwi sy} 0} Joud Jewllo} sy ul pajuasald ale sieak Jno4
"1 102 JeaA |eosy ul ,suoniuyag adA] pund |ejuswiuianos pue Buipoday aouejeq pun4, #G "ON juswalels gSyo pajuswaldwi AJD 8yl 9J0N

90e'8yL’c $ 6LL'EEL'C $ L0G'608'L $ €€8'¥¥9’L $ B0L°€L9'L ¢ 1E€'Gl9°L $ _0€6'009°L $ 8€6'8L8°L $ _60S'G.6  $ SS'e9zL $ Spuny [ejuSLIUISACE JBYlO [le [EJOL
(88) (ev1L'2G1) (000°02) (z66°181) (ze0'12) (09°'G1) (199'62) - - - spuny josfoud |eyded
- - (025') (10g°2) (900'69) (26L'v1) - - - - spuny enuaAal [epads
:paubisseun
616'7C 908'92 06.'%2 0L9'L1 129'L1 8068 vOL‘LL - - - spuny josfoud [epded
:paubissy
106286 r0'LyL L SO¥'LLO"L Zr9'eS0°L 122'2€0') Zr9'100°L 655'2€6 - - - spuny josfoud epded
- - - G/G'G - - - - spunj anuanal |e1padg
‘poRILIWOD
- 66 201 - - - - - - - Spunj jusuewusd
900°G.€ 1GE'6GE G81°0€ 18€'9z¢ ¥5¥'88 G€6'0C) 9eL'LLL - - - spuny josfoud epded
0ee’6l 892'202 8€9°Cl 9se'9 €98°C. 1682 L19'1S - - - spunj anuaAal |e1oadg
‘pajollsay
G816l - 002'66} - - - - - - - spunj anuaAal |e1oadg
€586V ¥GL'6YS 1GL'6YS 112'S2S 9.5'z61 SlL'Tly G.S'TSY - - - spund jusueuied
:9|qepuads UoN
- - - - - - - 891'G86 - 982°0LS spuny joafoud [eyded
- - - - - - - 6.2'¥8¢ 8lLe'ovs LL9'0vE spunj anuanal |e1oads
zjofewuou ul payodas pajeubisapun ‘paniasalun
- - - - - - - - - - spuny j08foud |eyden
- - - - - - - - - - spun} anuanal [e1padg
‘paAtssalun
- - - - - - - L6611 161'62F 866'70¥ paAtesal [ejo
- - - - - - - G/G'9EY Gl6'VLY G/6'701 spund jusueuied
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 9le'cl $ 9lz'vl $ ¢ $ spung snusasy eroeds
. panlesay
Spun4 |ejuUsWUISA0Y) JaulQ IV
299'L0v'8  $ /8692, $ v¥.'198'0 $ €66'GZS'8 $_L6G'GH0'8 ¢ LE€0'€8E'8 $ 6€9°/96°L $ LOVL0V'S $ 8.9WLv'6 $ 2506958 $ pun |eseusg [ejoL
G61°00L'9 160°192'S 009'618'% €12'8€2'9 82€'C96'G 9zT'TYS's T16'8.E'S - - - paubisseun
- 0oLyl Gel'/9 SY6'eve LL¥'68L 11¥'68L - - - - paubissy
125'C 128'C 125'C (¥4 1z (¥4 1z - - - papwwo)
€91°229°) 695°189°L €e€'08.L ) 199'616°L 0S¥'cLL) €8€'G95°C ¥¥1'06%'C - - - pajoLIsey
€8L°1L G8G'9/LL GGS'161 €G9'ezl lzefiel 0£6'G8 2€6°'L6 - - - 8|qepuads uoN
- - - - - - - 2€5'€9.'S 0EY'9€S'S 9/6'/86'% paAJasaiun
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ G/8'ev9'T $ 8¥C'8l8'c $ 9.0°185'C $ pantesay
pun4 |ejsuag
1102 9102 S10C vroz €10C [4Xi14 110g 0102 6002 8002

(9NILNNODOV 40 SISVE TvNHOIV a3i4Id0ON)
SUVIA TVISId N3L LSV
SANN4 TVLNIWNYIA0D ‘STONVIVE ANNH

VNITO¥VD HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID
v alqel

163



299°l0v'8 ¢ z/8692°L $ - $ - $_- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
7/8'692'L ¥v.°198'9 - - - - - - - -
%62 %1ET %EY'T %L¥'9 %¥9'22 %E6'T %EI'G %¥8'Y %68 %99°¢
06L°L€EL'L ¢ 8CL'80V $ (6¥2799°L) $ 61L9°11LG $ (950'6€€) $ €6.'62Y $ (651°99) $ (zv8'col) $ 089°8¥S $ (229'919)
99%°200°} 6¥0°298 (g6v°282°1) 115°28¢ £v5'62'e 866°296°| GZ1L'69L°) 608°CLY 005266 8GY L1Z7)
- - - - - - - - - 1v2' 197
- - - - (990'¥83) 99G°'69. 065'9¥2 - 00S°ZLE -
(5v6'71LG) (968'c¥2) (119°261°2) (60€'016) 60961 | (205'6.9) (000'292) (629'242'2) (0€2'286) (162'%09)
LIP2LG'L Gv6°0LL L 911016 928°262'L 000°61€°2 vE6'2LL L G/S¥89°L ¥8¥'16L°C 0€.°269°L 200°607° L
vze'eel (126'85") (¥52°9.2€) 201'v2lL (665°795°€) (g0z'ees L) (¥82'ge9°1) (169°2€9) (0z8'cry) (080°888°1)
295°28Y L1 812'855°L1 L16°E9V L1 1919291 vE1°616'V1 8/9'6/6'Cl ¥£8°099°Z1 8L0°LYL L G1Gv0eCt ¥88°90€°E1
181 Y v 8y 602°€S 9/6°1L 80¥1El 86E LY ¥60°6Z | €ISl 0/5CS1 SY8°0v
091221 052's0Z 9e0'LLz G2/'v%69 £50'€68'C ¥05'veT ¥61°26G 819'86¢ ZL9'LLY 8v8'ere
102990 090°08L°2 16€°1€2'2 z6£'912'C 0S2'0LL'2 8L1'eEV'T 198'8/4'2 Z15'090'2 611'€85'C 810'82LC
- - 0ve'c68 SLEY6T 9zL L) €6LLLL ze£'095 ¥€1¥9G 10S'v81
¥80°12€ 198'v1¢ SL¥18¢ G29'06€ G¥5'99¢ 180°16€ 281'69¢ G91°08 1v2'8ee 20€'85¢
209'656 966°08. ¥91'260°L 192228 102°191°) 900°009°} 20L'612°) 8v8°/68 692°698 0L9'¥€0°)
¥€1'120'9 LYEPY9'S 190'61LG'S 166°0LY'S 981°/9.'G 0zZePYL‘9 v11'G16'G 121°T7v8's GEY'GEL9 029'902Z'2
¥60°9£8°L YR rANA £€20'v16°) Shi'ozL'e 0L1L'¥6L°C 6G1'€26'L 828°c9/‘L £V6'e6L L 69¥'612°) ¥80°19¢°L
988°119°)1 162°660°) | 1G1°/80°L1 £98°05/°Z1 GES VIV L cly'orv'zl 065°G20°} 1 19€°€0L L1 G69°098°} | ¥08'8LY° L1
265161 28Tyl 780°¢e €L0°/11L ¥8€°261 688°091 905901 228°C6 810919 9,172
SLY' LY 198'9¢ 60Z'cy S0¥'0S 262°0¢ 699 7288y 25¢€'89 8€0°zel 668'6£€
866°L0L°L L€2°180°} 0€6°L¥6 22H'06€°C 996°L6Y'| 6ELTEY L 8v0'8.2'L 6v.'002°L £90°95¢‘} £6.°26G°L
z6v'cel 259'G6 9ve'98 09¢'68 992'%9 0€5°16 ¥95°29 L1¥'68 9ez'es cLe'lel
0L6‘12L 9£2'659 689°G99 £85°08¢°L 8G9°L1Z'L €LS' P 696v92' | 908765} 212 199°) ¥61'872" |
GYL'ev0'C 191'650'C 812'9%0'C 0z.'€8S'} 622'055'} G€8'625') 200°G¥9'L 181°069°L £68°109'} 9v1'GLG L
G¥5°068°C 1279892 ¥98°228'C 82L'¥€5'T 160°2.5°C v€1'215'C 9G1'¥5v' SEV'06Y'C 29885 8€5°90.°C
986'92S'y  $ SroveE'y $ 6SLUvY'Y ¢ 26865y $ €V9'LOE'Y  $ v0S'68LY  $ €8¥'GOL'y ¢ G09'9/.8'€  $ 89€'9e8'c  $§ Gie'sEL'e
7102 9102 G102 102 102 102 1102 102 002 002

G alqel

0€ aunp - Jeak jo pug
| AInp - Jeak jo Buluuibag
:saouejeg pund

awooul |euosiad [ejo}
10 abejuaoiad e se ao1AI8s 199

sooue|eq puny ur aBueyd JoN

(sasn) saounos Bujoueuly Jayjo (B0

predai/panssi jqap wis)-6uo
9]0U JuBWI[E}SUI WO} SP8320.d
N0 sigjsuel]

ul siajsuel]

(sasn) saainog Buioueulq 18Yy30

salnjpuadxa
(4opun) JaA0 sBNUBASI JO SSBIX]

saln}puadxa |ejo |
S99} pue }salaju|
juswaJnal [ediould
:90IMBS 1990
|euolnjealdal pue [einynd
juswdojanap |edisAyd pue olwouoo]
uol}oajoud |ejUBWILOIIAUT
uonjenodsuel |
Kyayes oljand
juswulanob |elssusn
sain)puadx3y

sonuaAal [ejo]
SNoBUE||8oSIA

sBujues jsaivyu|

S9OIAISS pue S9jes

S99} pue sjwiad
[ejusWwUIaA0BIBIUI PajoL)SeY
|ejuawulanobisul pajouIsaIun
$8SUS|| pue Saxe} JaYl0
Soxe} WalojeA py

sanuaAay

(SNILNNOJ2V 40 SISVE TvNY¥IIV a3i4Idon)

SYUVIA TvISId NIL LSV

SANNL TVLNIWNYIAOD ‘SIONVIVE ANN4 NI SIONVHI

VNITOYVO HLYON ‘NOLDNIHSVM 40 ALID

164



‘0L0Z ‘I Aenuepr uo sem Juswissasseal Jse| 8y ‘sieaA Jybie Aiaas passasseal s| Aijuno) Lojneag ul Auadold ({)

"anjeA Jo 001$ Jed (€)

"an|eA passasse s|enba anjen |enjoe pejewnsy (2)

‘Aledoud [euosiad pue [eal Yj0g apnjoul sjunowe asay |

"anuaAay Jo Juswueds( euljoied YUoN ayl Aq LD ayi 0} papiroad ale suonenjea seiuedwod a21A18s olignd (1)

'S8JON

saIneT Xe | Auadolid pue uonenjea jo uoday Aluno) |enuuy :99IN0Sg

165

0ZL'v6v'y 2so 9¥8'€SZ 98 88/'Gov'Zl 0¥5'2e9'C/l 81G6'GG1°6/9 110¢
688'C62'V 050 008°//.5'8S8 €0.'6E¥'CL ¥90°90%'G91 €€0'2€.°089 910¢
90.°19¢'Y 080 00Z'1¥€'C/8 11682901 €0e°159°281 086010629 G10¢
88¢'sev'y 050 009°/60'G88 Zv6'v19'01 8G/'01€'961 006°L€1'829 ¥10¢
L1V'veT'y 080 001'G68'v¥8 192°€86°L 1 8lL1‘€cz 99l 610689999 €L0¢
¥9G°0GL'Y 050 008zl L'0€8 L1€266°'LL 882°'G66'CS| G61°GZL G99 cLoc
€0e'8.L'Y 050 009°099°Ge8 0¥8°005°C1 0S6°060°2S 1 018890129 (¥) LL0Z
z6EeCl6'e 090 81€'690'2S9 ¥6.'0L.'6 LyLLLELGL £8£°'c86'061 010¢
191'69.°¢ 090 00S'v61 ‘829 9862970l 002'92.°C¥l ¥12'G00'G.Y 600¢
y€8'6L.°'¢C 090 0lL¥'2.6'619 19G'/GS'6 6€.°2EY'0S1 ¥01°286'6SY 800¢

AnaT () a1y (2) anjep (1) seiuedwon Aadouad Aadouad Jea)

xe| xe| passossy 92IAIaS 2l|qnd |euosiad |eay |eosiq

a|qexe] [ejo]

SYUVIA TvIOSId N3IL 1SV
ALY3dO¥d 379VXVL 40 ANTVA TVNLIOV ANV ANTVA d3SSISSVY

VNITO¥VO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID
9 a|qeL



010z ‘| Aenuepr uo panjeaal jse| sem Auadoud [eay (1) 810N

GG’ zs €6L0° 100G 1102
€g° 0g° €61L0° L08Y° 9102
€g° 0g° €6L0° L08Y° Gloz
€g° 0g° rrL0° 968t 102
€g° 0g° ad0l 968t €102
€g° 0g° Lo 968t z1oe
oS’ 0S8’ vrL0 958Y’ (1) Loz
09’ 09’ 20 8G° 0L0Z
09’ 09’ 20 8G° 6002
09° 09° z0° 8G° 8002

5::00 }oalia OAIDSIY _mu_nmo :Oum:_r_wm>> og sunpe

Hoynesg lejol Kyoyeg o11qnd j0 Ao papu3

sojey buiddepiano

Lalqe]

ajey j0auq Ano

siea) |eosid

SYUVIA TVISId NIL 1SV

SLININNJYIAOO ONIddVTHIAO ANV LO3d1d

S31VY XV1 ALd3d0¥d

NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID

166



juswyedeq xe] AJunod pojnesg :90IN0S

0Lv'c.6'6L9  $ uonenjep 9r8'eSC'v98  $ uopenjep
%99°¢lL 655'0L9'18 $ S|ejoL %856 168'108'28 $ s|ejol
%8L°0 ol 2€0'918'y ojejs3y |esy SOJeI00SSY pue simey %650 ol 692°120'S djeis3y |esy Auedwo) Ajeay |1BN
%¥8°0 6 168'S61°S djejs3 |eay payisianiq siedojarsq %09°0 6 8vlvlz's alejs3y |esy S9JBI00SSY B simey
%68°0 8 G¥/°90G°S "BYA 10130 [BOL}OBIT [enbig swajsAg souel|ddy peid %190 8 09.2'062°'S Buibpo] 071 ‘sejeroossy Buibpo
%S6°0 L S6¥'€/8'S Aumn  ydeiBeje pue suoydsje | euljoie) %06°0 A 951’18, Jainjoejnue Jayi4 [euisnpul 077 ‘suonnjos siapue|4
%16°0 9 0€9'720°9 lleyo "OU| ‘SJajue) SWOH S,8M07 %S6°0 9 002'€618 lleyoy Ou| ‘sisjua) SWOH S,9M07
4 S 818'vv6'8 juswdinb3 AneaH 071 ‘Buisesn] sjood Aiobain %€0°} S 296'768'8 djejs3y |esy ‘ou| ‘ulenug |esd
%9G"} 14 862'159'6 ojejs3y |esy "ou] ‘ulepug [ead %€0° L 14 61€'968'8 uonesi4 iy suonn|os a|Iqojy sulbu3 Jooie|
%€9°L € GGE'G80°01 |lejoy @ ejejs3 |eay ssaulsng sjeis3 [eay HeN-[eM %LV € 622'8L0°0L Jalnjoejnue Jayi4 [euisnpul ‘ou| ‘sJa)|i4 siepue|4
%691 4 256°Lv¥'0L Jainjoejnuel I8yl [elysnpu| "ou| ‘sis)ji4 sispue|4 %YL 4 192'202'0L Ile}oy B 9jejsy |esy ssauisng ajejs3 [eay HeN-lEM
%26°C 3 LEE'VCL'GL $ Jainjoejnuely jexseg  uonelodio) aAjowolny sukpeues %971 3 18G'9¥9CL  $ yuawdinb3g AneaH 071 ‘Buises sjood Alobaug
uolnenjep yuey uoljen|ep ssauisng jo adA| 19Aedxe ) uolnenjep yuey uoljen|ep ssauisng jo adA | J19Aedxe )

passassy passassy passassy passassy
|ejol jo |ejol jo

abejuasiad abejuasiad

8 9lqelL

8002 JBIA |BISl]

L10T 13 |BdSly

OOV SYVIA 6 B JVIA LNIHIND
SYIAVAXVL ALYIdOUd TVdIONRd

NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID

167



wswyedsq xe| AJuno) Uojneag :80IN0g

%82°'86 189°9LY'Y - %8786 189°9LY'Y 0zl'v6v'y (261'€8) L1€°21S'y 110¢
%€Z 66 126'652'Y 896°C¢ %1516 6617881t 688°262't 110z 8/806Z't 910¢
%62°66 06.°0¢€'V €G/°18 %<y’ L6 1€0'6¥C'v 90.2°19¢'v 9€9°C 0/0°6SE'v G10¢
%<¢Z'66 G0.06E' Y 190'6el %7.1°96 8€9'GSZ'Y 88Z'Gev'y (0¥8's1) 8L L'y ¥10¢
%0Z'66 18¥'061 ‘Y G9¢'gee %6.°¢6 911°296'c L1v'vee'y 6vv'clL 8c0zle'y €10¢
%8166 v18'8ZLy 109'6€2 %0.°€6 102'688°'c $9G6°05L'Y (z12'28) 9e8‘z8L'y ZLoc
%.9°66 cov'valL'y 9¢z'oee %S2 6 1€2'8¢€6'C €0e'8LL'Y (298's€) 0LL'viC'y 1102
%¢c¢G'66 192°€68°¢C 9/6cze %€8°C6 G8lL‘L/9'¢e 26£°C16'e (828°L€) 0/2'v¥6'€ 010¢
%9G°66 GS‘TSL'e L1G'061 %056 ¥6°19G'c 191'69.'¢ (ysz'ol) 1ZV'6LL°€ 600¢
%E¥ 66 10.°869°¢C 295081 %8S 76 6€1°81G'c 7€8'6L.°C (#¥0°01) 8/8'62.'¢ 8002
AnoT palsnipy junowy EICEYN Aaa7 [euiblig junowy Ano paysnlpy  sjuaunisnipy (AaeT jeuibuQ) ICEYN
Jo abejuaoliad juanbasqng ui Jo abejuasiad |ejol IeaA [eosiy |leasiq
9je 0} Suo1399||0) [BjoL Su01399]|0D Ana7 ayj Jo Jeap |eosiy ay} Joy
a3 ulym pajo9||o) PaIAST saxe]

SYVIA TVISId N3l 1SV
SNOILD3T70D ANV S3IATT XVL ALd¥3d0¥d

VNITOYVO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID
6 dl9el

168



‘ejep uone|ndod pue swooul [euos.tad Jo} {| |qe] 89S (1)
"SJUSWISIE]S [BIOUBUL S} O} SBJ0U 8U} Ul punoy aq ueo jgap Buipuessino s,An0 ayy Buipsebal sjieeg
a|ge|ieAe 124 Jou uopewlolu] - /N

V/N V/N €2.'051'9 zee'ees’e 1€0°G9 6.1°0€9°L - 899°CC - 10G°66S°} L10¢
%E8LLL %EY0 LGELLL'9 G99'09L ‘e 8ci'19l €26'68G°| - Gee'se - 000'v2.L°) 910¢
%880L¢ %¥¥0 1800292 866'661'C 8/0°L0% 92y'8S.° L - 20082 - €8G5°9/6°L G1L0c
%08S5G¢ %¥S0 GG9'cl8'8 Lee'ees’e v11°169 626'926°| 000°0v7) 699'0¢ - 256'1781°C 7102
%08.LE %690 GGG'Ge60L G99°99L ‘v zLieeze’l 2ev'e60°e 000°0€Y Gee'ee - 110°228C €10¢
%.0S8¢ %€8°0 €81°909'C1 866'66Y'V G60'GY.L L 169C/8°1L 000°000°} 200'9e 021'959°' 112'96. 44014
%S8EYY %S6°0 L¥1'G86°Cl 12e'ee8'y €02'€08°‘C v12'G¥8°L 000°0SS°L €/9°8¢ €S vl 116'661 1102
%S..0€ %990 116'0/6'6 - 1G8'¥59°'C 60°216°} 000'620°C - 9€1'69.°C Sy veY 0L0¢
%CS6SE %8L°0 00L LYY LL - €19'681'C 88801 000°061°¢ - 89¢'818'C GeT'vv8 6002
%/10EY %£6°0 ¥S.'v18'CL - £6e'252'e 069'0v2'C 000'529't - 000298 112688 800¢
(1) endesn (1) swoouj JUBWIUIBA0D spuog sueo ueon spuog spuog ueo sueo ICEIN
19d |euosiad J0 Kewng ‘A8 dlwouodg  juawjeisu]  Buinjorsy uonebijqo *A9(] 21Wou02g vasn juawielsu| |easiq
obejusosad  abejuasiad lejol auoz Kianoosay ajels |elauan) auoz A1anooay
sal}IAoY adA}-ssauisng SOIIAIIOY [BJUBWIUIDAOD

SUVIA TVISId NIL 1SV
3dAl A9 1930 ONIANVLSLNO 40 SOILVY

VNITOYHVO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID
0l @9elL

169



"elep anjeA Auadoud 1o} 9 9inpayos 99s ()

‘elep uonejndod pue awodul [euositad o) | o|qe] 88 (1)

"SJUBWIE]S [elOURUIH 8} 0] S8J0U 3Y) Ul punoj ag ued 1gap Buipuelsino s,All0 ayy bBuipiebal sjiejag
"a|qejieAe 194 10U UoiewlIoU|-Y/N

VIN VIN %000 0 - - 110¢
%000 %000 %000 0 - - 910¢
%000 %000 %000 0 - - G10¢
%EE 907 %100 %c0°0 000°0¥) - 000°0v’} ¥10¢
%9.°0G¢) %€0°0 %S00 000°‘0EY - 000°0EY €10¢
%S9 ¥50¢ %100 %cCL°0 000°000°} - 000°000°} cloc
%EC616Y %LL0 %610 0000GS°) - 000°0SS°) L10C
%<CS 7079 %¥1°0 %cC€0 000°G/0°C - 000°G/0°C 0L0¢
%18'8L001 %<CZ'0 %LS0 000‘061L°¢ - 000°06L°¢ 600¢
% L€ B6EEYL %L€0 %S.°0 000°G29'Y - 000'G29'y 800¢

(1)endes awoou| (z)Aadoud jo |eloL jediouiid spuog lea )\

Jad |ejo] |euosiad jo anjep ajqexe Buifeday o) uonebilqo |easiq
abejuaolad abejuaolad |enjoy jo pajoulsay |eJauan
aberjuaoliad sjunowy :sso

SYHVIA TVOSId N3L 1SV
ONIANVLSLNO 1930 d3ANO4d TVH3INIO 13N 40 SOILVY

VNITOYVO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID
Il 3lqel

170



‘A0 ayy Aq anp 1gep Jo uoiod ayj Buunbly pue AJuno)H Hojneag ulym sjuapisal uojbuiysepn Jo A jo
abejuaoiad ay) Bupje) Aq palenojes si Ajuno) uoineag yyum jqep Buiddeusao pue joaa1p JO aleys pajewiiss |ejo) ay] :8joN

180°292°9 $ €08'ov.Lce $ Jgap Buiddepsano pue joalip [ejo L
ZL6'vr9y %00°L¢C 8c9'8llce Auno9 pojneag
G/1°229') $ %00°001 G/1°229') $ uojbulysepn jo AN
19°Q a|qeoiddy Buipuelsino JIUN [EJUSWIUI9A05)

Buiddepang abejuaolad j99Qq wua]-buon

pue joalig pajewns3y

Jo aleys

pajewnys3y

2102 ‘0€ ANNC 40 SV
1930 SALLIAILIV TTVLININNYIAOO ONIddVTIIAO ANV LOFIA

VNITOHVO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID
¢l ?qel

171



%06°8

%8L'6

'SpUOQ aNUdARJ pue ‘panssl 94 Jou spuog Bulpunyas pue Buipuny ‘sjuswssasse |eoads pajosjjooun ‘sesodind Jemod

*Aoyine Buimouiog |eba) s A0 sy sjuasaidas pue ‘Jwi| sy o} s|qeoldde Buipue)sino 1gap 1au s,A)10 By} pue Jiwi| }gap dY} usamiaq aduaiayip ay} si uiblew jgap |ebs| syl

09| 10 ‘seb ‘Jajem 1oy pawnoul jqap ‘lediound Jo JuswAked Joj pjoy Asuow

ay} 0} a|qeal|dde 1gap Jau Je aALLe 0} Jgap SSoJB Woly apew ale suolonpap Buimolo) ey ‘uonexe) o} Joalgns Auedoud jo anjea pasiesdde sy} Jo %g 0} Jgap Buipuelsino sAi0 ey} S| §5-65LSD AINJe}S DN :BJON

%00°L1 %0¥°Cl %0191 %081 %EE 9L %EY LI %cL6l %SL YL
685°686'C9 $ 169'9¢6°L9 $ €€0'620°29 $ €6€vvT T $ 2z8'ers'os $ 6L0°L29'VS $ 028'9€6'SS $ ee9'oLo'er $ 8eo’Lve’oy $ 666'6LCCh
€2.'0G1L°9 LGE'LLL9 180°029°2L GG9'€18'8 929'8¥8'04 162'8¥2'Th 820'916'0L 2657606 225'806'6 Y6L'LLE L
- - - - 6LL°L LlL'ee 925'105°C 06018 GlETYL L9v¥'€Te
- - - - 01869 69.'vCE 185°19S 622'G6. 1L0Z'96€° L 62v'161L°C
€21°051°9 LSELLL9 180°0L9°L §59'cl8's GSG'GZ6'0L €81°009°C1L Ly1'G86'El 116'0,6'6 860°'LbY'LL 069'2EL'6
80€'0v1'69 8Y0'759'89 0Z1'G¥72'69 810'850°}.L 8YY'Z6E L9 9/€'G26'99 8¥8°258'99 §22'991'TS 095°552'0S €6.°16G'6Y
ov8'eGZT'y98  $ 009621868  $ 000'7i8'LZ8  § 00962888  $ 009'GOv'Zy8  § 00Z°/959¢8 $ 009'099'GE8 $ 81€°'G90CG9 $ 00S'¥6L'829 $ 0L¥'CTL6°6L9

1102 102 Sl0C 102 102 102 Lioe 102 6002 002

ywi| Jgep Jo abejusdiad e se jiwi| sy} o} a|qesidde jqep jou [ejo |

$ uibiepy 199Q [e6o]

| 0} ajqealjdde 1qap Jou [ejoL
sasodind aujo9)e Joj Buipuelsino jqeq
sasodind Jayem Joy Buipuejsino 1qaq :sso
1gep sso19
ywi 0} 8|qedyddy 1ge( o Junowy

(uoneywr Aioiels) anjeA passassy Jo %g W 198

$ Auadoud jo anjep passassy

€l alqelL

SAUVIA TVISId NIL LSV
NOILVINYOANI NIDYVIN 19340 TvO3a1

VNITOHVO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID

172



Jeak Jepusied Jold ay) Jo) ale saunbl4 "eosswwo) Jo Juswuedsq ‘'S ‘N ‘sisAjeuy dlWouoog Jo neaing

"Juswiedaq suonoadsu| uojbuiysepn Jo AuD Aq panssi sjwiad Buipjing Jo Jequinu [ejo |

g)
¥)
€)
2)
"snsua) ‘SN Jo/pue Jajus) ejeq djeis “O°N (1)

‘SOJON

uolssiwwo) Aunoag uswAhojldw3 D °N
uoneonp3 jo pieog AJuno) Lojneaq

—~ o~~~

"a|ge|IeAR 194 10U UONBWIOM|-Y/N

191 %0.L' ¥ 88/°9 VIN V/IN 111'6 1102
LGl %0.L'G ¥56'9 €11°1¢ 66.°1 6£9'6 9102
zlL %00 ¥06°9 2.£'9¢ 0€L'L 15.'6 G102
191 %0.L". 110°2 GGP'vE GE9') 8896 7102
€/l %066 980°/ 6.E'VE G8S‘L G0.'6 €102
€1z %0L°LL 1569 1€1'2¢ 9zs‘L ov.'6 z1oz
GGl %0Z°LL 120°2 60S°LE 9/¥'L ¥5.'6 1102
Gg8l %0801 eeL'. 66£'2¢ G0S‘L 9/L'0l 0L02
Gzl %09°LL ¥62'. or8‘Le LI¥'L v12'0lL 6002
781 %092 0.2'/ ¥52'2¢ Z6¥'L G500l 8002
(g) panss) (¥) ey (€) yuawyjosuz (2) swoou| suol||IN ul (1) uonendod Jeap
sywIad juswAojdwaun |ooyos |euosiad (2) swoau |easiq
m:_—u__:m aliqnd mu_QmO jeuos.iad
JOo JaquinN 19d |jejol

vl alqel

SYUVIA TVOSId N3L 1SV
SOILSILVLS JINONOD3 ANV JIHdVIOO0N3a

NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID

173



99Jawwo) jo Juswpedaq "O'N (2)

awy [Ny sapN|oul - saluedwod Jo sjuswiledaq 80inosay uewnH (1)

916y lejoL 8¢0°¢c [ejoL
%690 ol LGl DAS 10 uoisinig Asuxoen %€L0 ol 8¢l suoissaidw| XAl
%00’} 6 0ce HeN-lepM %180 6 VA4" SBMOT]
%01 8 474 uojbuiysep Jo Ao %60 L 8 €Ll $8]eI00SsY HeN-[eM
%¥eL L ¥6¢ uoljesodiod auhpeuels %60’} L 9/l uoupty AsuxoenH
%6¢°L 9 S0¢ ON Jo 8jels %60’ L 9 0ze suonn|os 8|iqo sulbug Jooen
%8S ] ove Aunog uoynesg %60’} ] 0ce uojbulysep Jo Ao
%S0 14 (0[+17 "ou| dnoug) Buyels 82104 ebay %Ll 14 LGe Auno) poynesq
%€E€LC € 009 $J8)|l4 sispue|4 %S6°L € €6¢ uoIsiAg DN a4nduly siapueld
%S6°C 4 059 [E}dSOH jJuepIA %561 4 y6¢ 18jua) |edIps|\ JUepIA
%S.L'S l 124" s|jooyog Ajuno) posneasq %¥l'Yv 3 9€8 $|00YyoS "0 Hojnead
(2) Juswhojdwg yuey (1) seaAojdwz Jakojdwg (2) yuswAojdwz yuey (1) seaAojdwig Jafojdwg
funog |ejo] jo fyuno) |eyo] jo
abejuaoiad abejuaoiad
[4 4114 1102

Gl dlqel

. OBY SIeaj aAl4 pue Jeaj Jualing

SYIAOTdINT TVdIONIRId

VNITO¥VO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID

174



‘(anes| ¥2Is pue uonedea ssa)) Jeak Jad sinoy 0g0‘Z YoM |[puuosiad swi ||N4
"Jeak yoeas Jo Oog aunr jo se pajebpng suosiad jJo Jaquinu sjuasaidal 8|Npayds Siyl 810N

Juswiyleda aoueuld A)1D :82IN0S

[ejoL

Hodury

Aispwa)

18)ud9 dljenby

J8juad 2IAID

sjousip Jajem AJunod pojneaq
8)jsem pljog

Ajnn Jelemwiols
o093

Jamag

Jaiepp

:sannoe adA)-ssauisng

uoljealoal pue |eln}nd
uoljo9joid |ejuswuoIIAUg
uoneuodsuel |

Kyages o11gnd
juswiuIanob [essusg)
:Juswuianob Arewd

(Y44 £22 122 £€2 £€2 e £vZ Zve e 6€2
L L L L - - - - - -
g g g g G g G g - -
L L L L L Z Z Z Z Z
- - L L L L L L L L
4 4 €l €l €l €l €l 4 4 zl
- - - - - - - G G 9
1€ o¢ Ge o¢ e o¢ o¢ o¢ o¢ o¢
Gl Gyl Gyl Gyl Gyl Gyl Gyl Gyl vl vl
vl gel Syl Gyl Gyl Syl Syl Gyl Gl Gl
vl Gl Gl Gl vl 9l 9l Gl Gl vl
6 6 6 6 6 6 6 14 6 6
4 L L 4 4 €l €l vl vl vl
z8 z8 8 88 68 z6 z6 z6 88 98
€2 €2 €2 €2 9z 9z 12 12 e 0¢

7102 9102 G102 vioc €10C Z10e 1102 0102 600C 8002

9l 9lqel

weiboig/uonoung

SYUVIA TVOSId N3L LSV

NOILONNA A9 SIIAOTAINT LNJWNYIAOD ALID LINIFTVAINOT FNIL-TTNS

VNITO¥VO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID

175



‘uonouny JuswWuIaA0b |eseuab ay) Joj 8|ge|ieA. JoU BJe SI0JedIpU| 810N
sjuswiiedap AJ10 snoue, :S80In0g

029'8/¢91 985602 77| 6£9'651°81 12€1€6'8L 068258Vl LLY'V66°CL Ly'zcelcl €81815'ce 088°'G6.61 1£6°866°02 HMM p8junodoeun
002°'09€'G/¢ G8G'0,0'89¢ 990°G9¥‘L8C 015°065°08¢ 9/1°160'08¢ vE€L‘0C6'VLC €9¥'TTPL6C 690°8SC°18C  L0SG'88L'€8Z  91£°866'98C PIOS HMM
028'8€.'16C T/1'08¢'¢8C G0.'¥C9'66C 188°125'66¢C 990'V06'v6C G09'VL6°/8¢C V06'VYS'60€  ¢SC'9..'€0€  /8E'v86'C0€ /P2 /66°L0€ paseyadind HMM
829°cl 0S6°€l 209°cl LLG€L 615cl GLY'€L 9Ev'el 90v‘cl v.€€l 8€e'el SJaWwolsnd Jo JlaquinN
sailN ouo8|3
€0S°¢ 180°C cL6'L Geo'e 6L 98Y'L XA 668’} 6€9'L 1191 (suojjeb jo suol|jiw)
juswiealy Ajlep abelany
vl (34" 9€l 8el pAq% 8¢l Lcl och Lcl 9Ll Ao 8pisino
6E8'Y Gl8'Y 88.'Y 9.y vel'y Yrl'y vel'y Gel'y 1LY 119% Ayo episu

SIBWO)SND JO JBqUINN
sali[lIN IS)EMBISEAN

86l¢ 88¢C'¢C v.2'¢ S6¢°C 96¢'¢C 68¢°C cLee Lve'e 1812 92'¢ (suojjeb jo suol|jiw)
uondwnsuod Ajiep abelany

952 yAT4 44 8G¢ 162 4744 [A%4 8z¢ (444 Gze Ao spisino

116Y GY6'Y 926'Y 806'Y 898y 968y 988y €18y 898y 918y Ayo episu|

SJ9WOISND JO JaquinN
SN JSIEM

¥.1°99 69129 £60°L9 zsv'es 810'L. G186 £09'6. €129 7819 866°8S SBWN|OA JO JaquinN

GG6'C6 LY L0L 661101 11962 1.8 Lzl'el Lel'el 68.°08 68998 ¥G0'€6 suoJjed jo _Sﬁ:z
eiq

1671 102 68l 18l 6'l 96'L 9L 8zl 180 ¥8°0 (Aep/suoy) pejos||od sa|qejohoay

1£02 1661 ¥0°0Z £6'61 1£02 6°02 zZe 21z 8622 9Z've (Aep/suoy) pejos||0o asnjey
8)SEM PIOS

- - - - - 120 - Z0 ¥10 - (se|iw) uononnsuo) meN

GS'L - 9/l - - - 8L¢ - - for Al (seiw) Buroepnsal o138
S}eallS

2.6 LGS 8/G €69 898 829 20. €99 99/ £v8 suopoadsul il

€9Z¢ 8/8°C 681’z £9Y'Z GYE'T 6LEC 0412 891°C 0502 LE6'L s|led SN3

GGel G/8 €6 965 €69 689 869 619 GLL LGV s||eo a4
all4

98yl LeG°L £¥0'C LEV'E 0LL°) z8¢e'L LSL°L 122 118°) oLl SUONE|OIA Dlyyel |

99 8G Gee €Ll €0l GGl zs (o[04 €9l zolL suopejoin Buiyied

LeL V1L 800°L 19G°) 9z9‘) 08L‘L 686 LLLL 80t'L 09¢‘} sisalie [eoishud
99l|0d
uonoung

7102 9102 5102 v102 €102 Z102 1102 0102 6002 8002

SUVIA TVOSId N3L LSV
NOILONNd A9 SHOLVIIANI ONILYYIdO

VNITO¥VO HLHON ‘NOLONIHSVM 40 ALID
Ll dqeL



‘uonouny Juswuianob [eseusb ay} Jo} a|gejieAe aie siojeolpul Josse |e)ided oN :8}ON

sjuawpedap A0 snouep :S80In0S

|4 |4 Lece |4 L'ece |4 (4% (4% [4% [4% Sulew w.ojs Jo soliN
Annn serem wuols
9 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 suonelsgqng
AN Z2'st st 2st 2st st st 2st 2st Z2st Soul| uoissiwisued) Jo sIlIN
Glv 0S¥ 00¥ 00¥ 00¥ 00¥ 00¥ 00¥ 00¥ 00¥ saul| uolinqLisip jo saiN
N 2130813
Ge0e Ge0e Ge0e Ge0e Geoe Ge0e 12°'8¢C 12°'8¢C yx4 Y4 Sulew 82104 JO s3lIN
9. 9. 9. €. €. €v. €v. €v.L 122 122 sulew Ajneb jo sajiy
Go'¢ S9'¢ S9'¢ s9'¢ s9'¢ s9'¢ S9'¢ g9'e g9'e g9'e (suojjeb jo suoljiw)
Ayoedeo yuswiealy Ajlep wnwixep
[43 [43 e (4% (4% (4% Le Le 0€ 0€ suonejs Y
3 l l l l l l l l l sjue|d Juswiyeal |
N layemalsep\
z8 z8 z8 z8 z8 z8 6128 6128 18 18 Sulew Isjem Jo s|iiN
S¥'S S¥'S Sv's Sv's Sv's Sv's Sv's S¥'S S¥'S G¥'S (suojieb jo suol|jiw)
Ayoeded Ajlep wnwixe
10 10 10 004 169 169 189 89 [Ax°] 199 sjuespAy ai4
3 l l l l l l l l l sjue|d juswiyeal
4 4 4 4 4 4 € € € €
9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 llegaseg
- - - - - - - - - - lleqyoo4
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 189005
spjold spods
88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 Siied
00¢€ 00¢ 00¢€ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00€ SSBUIBPIIM
291 29l 29l 29l [4°1% 291 291 291 4% 4% aoedg uadQ
0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 2se 2se abea.y |ejo|
siied
14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 sjeog
l l l l l l l l l l Buysi4
siald
cl cl cl cl cl cl Zl cl Zl cl 99.4
9¢ 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ [ejusy
sdiis jeog
14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 sdweu jeog
l l l l l l l l l l Yled a1exs
l l l l l l l l l l 90009
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 S90YsasIoH
- - - - - - - - - - pleogenys
yA yA yA yA yA yA yA yA yA yA lleqieyseq
- 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 sluus
SHUNOY JoopinQ
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 s|ood Bulwimg
l l l l l l l l l l SJ3jUa] JIAID
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 si9jua) pooyloqybiaN
uonealday
GG GG GG gs'L SS°L 95°L 24’ 124’ vee 8¢c’e so|iw panedun
9¥'LS 9v'LS 9y'LS 9v'LS 9Y'LS S¥'LS 9¢€'/S 90°.S 2cs 90°¢S S9|lW paned
10'6S 10'6S 10'6S 10'6S 10'6S 10'6S G'8G §'89 Y¥'GS ¥5°GS S8|iw ejo
Ss}eallS
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 suonels
all4
9l 143 143 143 €l 141 141 141 141 Sl Sjun jolied
3 l l l l l l l l l Suonels
901|0d
uondung
7102 9102 §102 vioz €102 z102 1oz 0102 6002 8002
SYHV3A 1VISI4d NIL 1SV
NOILONNH A9 SOILSILVLS 13SSV 1V1IdVI
8l d|qel VNITO¥VO HLYON ‘NOLONIHSVYM 40 ALID

177



Compliance Section



This page left blank intentionally.



MARTIN ¢ STARNES
& ASSOCIATES, CPAs, P.A.

“A Professional Association of Certified Public Accountants and Management Consultants”

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance And
Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed
In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Washington

Washington, North Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Washington, North Carolina, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2017.
Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the City of
Washington Tourism Development Authority, as described in our report on the City of Washington’s
financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal
control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported separately by those
auditors. The financial statements of the City of Washington Tourism Development Authority were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Washington's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Washington's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Washington's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the City of Washington’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination or deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control reporting that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Washington's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Martins Afornes € Qovocistin), CFA, P .

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P. A.
Hickory, North Carolina
October 26, 2017
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance to GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

» Material weakness(es) identified? No
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported
» Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? No
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

2. Financial Statements Findings

None reported.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

None reported.
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